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2022 ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 

Name of Bank  :  COOPERATIVE BANK OF BOHOL 

 

Address   : 0126 CPG East Avenue, Barangay Poblacion 1, Tagbilaran City 

 

Authority to Operate : CB No. E- 1028 dated October 29, 1980 

 

Contact Numbers : (038) 427-2116; 501-9904 

 

E-Mail Address  : cooperativebank_bohol@yahoo.com 

 

Contact Person  : Juvie D. Calacat – President and CEO 

 

 

CORPORATE POLICY 

 

Vision : A digitalized billionaire cooperative bank with excellent customer      

   service anchored on good governance. 

 

Mission : Develop a passion excellence in customer service 

Formulate sound business decisions 
Expand the bank’s assets and other resources 
Keep abreast with technological innovations 

 

Goals  : Create a customer-driven workforce 

Develop financial literacy and competence 

Promote expansion of membership and services 
Adopt advanced banking technology 

 

Core Values :  

1. Honesty and Integrity 
 Speaks the truth and act truthfully. 

 Demonstrates sound moral and ethical principles at work on which member-

cooperatives, co-workers, and individual clients build relationships, trust, and effective 
interpersonal relationships. 

 A good steward of resources and in exercising frugality that honesty is always the best 

policy and that trust has to be earned. 
2. Reliability 

 Working as a TEAM (Together, Everyone, Achieve, More) so everything can move faster 
to fulfil the vision and mission of the Cooperative Bank of Bohol (CBB). 

 Worthy of trust; dependable not only in providing financial services but also in 
managing carefully  the relationships that has been developed and demonstrating 

consistent behavior as consistency is key to building trust. 

3. Efficiency 
 A commitment to doing great for the whole; do things well, successfully, and without 

waste. 
 Well organized and competent. 
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4. Service to others 
 To serve the member-cooperatives, co-workers, and individual clients effectively as 

they are our prized assets. They must be treated specially, with honesty and empathy, 
and with a sense of honour and respect. 

 To be responsive to the needs of the member-cooperatives, co-workers, and individual 
clients. To satisfy them beyond their expectation and be resourceful in providing 

innovative alternatives and solutions to their concerns. 
 An effort to alleviate poverty and make life better for others. 

5. Open-mindedness 
 A commitment to innovation and excellence being receptive to new ideas, views and 

knowledge of others. 

 

Developmental Goal:  

 

A cooperative which can provide services in terms of cooperative education, 

accommodating deposits and loan applications of the Boholanos especially the farmers and 

fisher folks with the end view of uplifting the quality of life of its clients and consequently 

help the economy of the Province. 

 

Tag Line: Guiding You Through 

 

a) To be a reliable financial institution is the vision of the Cooperative Bank of Bohol. The 

Province of Bohol particularly in the City of Tagbilaran has a lot of commercial banks. 

People used to bank with them because of their popularity and that people consider them 

as big banks. Cooperative Bank of Bohol has upgraded its system; adopt the present 

technology in order to provide quality services among the 138 member-cooperatives and 

the general public.  

 

b) In addition to reliability in financial services to cooperatives and individuals, Cooperative 

Bank of Bohol will be guiding its clients on what kind of facility the bank can offer to 

him/her, how to avail and the personal guidance of the terms and conditions from our 

bank’s personnel. Once, a client have decided to avail in any of the bank’s services, 

processing will take only two hours for salary loans and one to two weeks for loans 

secured by Real Estate Mortgage. That’s how Cooperative Bank of Bohol of service to the 

Boholano community.       

 

c) Crafting a business model is part of establishing a meaningful business strategy. Due to 

its target market and the nature of the bank’s operation, our Bank uses the retail-funded 

business model, relying mainly on retail sources of funding, i.e., through stable sources, 

primarily deposits and have limited interbank activity. It generates deposits from 

individual and corporate clients and lends the same to the public through agricultural, 

agrarian, business and consumption loans. 

As a financial institution, Cooperative Bank of Bohol started its operation on November 3, 

1980 accepting deposits and offering loans to member-cooperatives, Samahang Nayons 

and the general public. Different types of loan which will fit the needs of the clients. The 

bank shall earn income out of the interest and service fee of the loan releases. Other 

income shall be generated from sale of foreclosed properties. Expenses of the bank will 

include interest on deposits, salaries and wages of the employees, honorarium of the 



3 | P a g e  

 

Board of Directors, taxes and licenses, supplies, light and water, fuel and lubricants, and 

other expenses related to bank operation. As a cooperative bank, mandatory reserves 

shall be allocated out of the net income. After the mandatory allocation, the remaining 

income will be available for dividend and patronage refund to the different stockholders. 

The bank aims to grow so that marketing strategies, collection, good management and 

innovative works to answer the present demand of the people are all the concerns made 

for the success of the Cooperative Bank of Bohol.     

 

BUSINESS MODEL 

For the last 40 years, Cooperative Bank of Bohol is into traditional retail banking 

business model. It generates deposits from the banking public, in addition to its capital 

investments in order to lend to customers which drive profit. Management strives to provide 

excellent service to maintain deposits, although not all low cost, and strengthen marketing 

strategies to market new quality loans while monitoring and keeping those existing accounts 

and have to become cost efficient. Further, the bank also crafted its investment policy in 

order to manage well its funds and be able to earn and maximize returns. 

With the evolution of banks in this technological era, and changes in the economic 

environment and to new rules and regulations, Cooperative Bank of Bohol also considers 

these things in building its strategic objectives. Nowadays, availability of variety of 

distribution channels such as online and mobile banking has become important. Customers 

become price sensitive and look for products and services that serve and satisfy their needs 

at the lowest possible cost. In response to this, the bank has to diversify by partnering with 

business leaders to offer Point of Sales (POS) terminals, domestic money transfer and 

remittance, and ATM terminals in order to increase profits. Among its goals for the year is to 

pursue its application for the direct membership with Bancnet for the bank to continue 

offering ATM deposit products to the public enabling our clients to conveniently access their 

funds and account information and receive or transfer funds 24/7. The bank is pursuing its 

application for additional branch in Dauis Panglao Island and a license for a Type A Electronic 

Payment and Financial Services (EPFS).  

Cooperative Bank of Bohol is geared towards digitalization as part of its medium to 

long-term plans. With the current trends, new customer behaviors, the current and future 

regulations supporting it, and the presence of new and aggressive competitors, the bank has 

been more active in product innovation and providing holistic customer service in order to 

retain and market new customers, achieve set targets and ensure sufficient profitability to 

sustain operational growth. 

The board of directors of Cooperative Bank of Bohol promotes a culture that fosters 

environmentally and socially responsible business decisions and ensures that sustainability 
implications are considered in the overall decision-making process. It understood its role in 
leading and institutionalizing the adoption of sustainability principles and also aims to inspire 

our clients, shareholders and other stakeholders in making the same environmentally and 
socially responsible decisions. 

  
 The board and senior management takes a broader view on risk management by 
looking beyond the traditional sources of financial risks encompassing company culture, risk 
management oversight, accountability, and transparency. One important viewpoint in this 

risks is enhancing the understanding and technical skills of bank personnel to enable them to 
navigate the complex aspects of sustainable finance.  In addition, it also gives importance to 
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gender equality and women empowerment in sustainable finance where the bank crafted 
guidelines that aims to ensure Gender Equality and institutionalization of GAD programs and 

related activities to achieving the gender fairness and women empowerment accord with our 
constitutionally guaranteed human rights. Likewise, this guideline promotes the viability and 
growth of cooperatives as instruments of equality, social justice and economic development.  

 
After conducting an assessment of its strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and 

threats, the bank has crafted this year’s objectives and comprehensive action plans in 

achieving them. With the implementation of the new performance assessment tool, the 

Supervisory Assessment Framework (SAFr) which is forward looking, the bank laid out plans 

to strengthen its risk management and internal control systems, governance and oversight 

functions as well as effective monitoring of institutional level supports. Top Management and 

the Board believe that empowered employees who are highly motivated and with high level 

performance makes a successful business. With that, the bank also laid plans on providing 

them trainings, seminars and other activities to equip them with the right knowledge and 

skills and groom them to be well rounded and highly effective professionals and individuals. 

While the business impact of this COVID 19 pandemic continues, the bank has also 

laid strategies as it navigates into the trends of the new normal to be able to sustain growth 

and profitability. 

With the help of the Holy Name University Center for Community Extension, Linkages 

and Partnerships, the bank’s directors, officers and supervisors conducted the 5 year 

development plan. We conducted SWOT analysis to see the current realities of the bank and 

evaluated if its objectives are still relevant and in line with its mission, vision and goals. Such 

evaluation arrived at seven (7) revised strategic directions, namely: 1) Sound asset 

management, 2) Prompt compliance to regulatory bodies, 3) Intensive internal control, 4) 

Aggressive Marketing, 5) Human Resource Management, 6) Corporate Social Responsibility 

and bank activities, and 7) Effective credit risk Management. We have identified the key 

result areas, success indicators and measures of each strategic direction and crafted the 5 

year strategic plan of actions and timelines. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY / FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
        

Minimum Required Data 
Consolidated Parent Bank (Solo) 

Current 

Year 

Previous 

Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Profitability           

  Total Net-Interest Income     
           

55,324,116.00  
           

52,921,895.00  

  Total Non-Interest Income     
             

5,430,365.00  
             

6,858,618.00  

  Total Non-Interest Expenses     
           

58,363,627.00  
           

58,080,479.00  

  Pre-provision profit     

             

3,021,478.00  

             

2,495,837.00  

  Allowance for credit losses     

           

39,996,448.00  

           

39,235,163.00  

  Net Income     
             

2,390,854.00  
             

1,700,034.00  

Selected Balance Sheet Data  

  Liquid Assets     
         

160,806,464.00  
         

226,381,887.00  
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  Gross Loans     
         

340,658,022.00  
         

332,083,381.00  

  Total Assets     
         

579,740,770.00  
         

613,797,635.00  

  Deposits     

         

472,236,564.00  

         

517,889,374.00  

  Total Equity     

           

62,149,049.00  

           

60,908,151.00  

Selected Ratios 

  Return on equity     3.89% 2.56% 

  Return on assets     0.40% 0.30% 

  CET 1 capital ratio (for UBs/KBs)     NA NA 

  Tier 1 capital ratio (for UBs/KBs)     NA NA 

  Capital Adequacy Ratio     11.11 12.02 

Per Common share data (For Ubs, KBs and publicly listed Banks)  

  Net Income per share:         

       Basic     NA NA 

       Dilluted     NA NA 

  Book Value     NA NA 

Others           

  Cash dividends declared     585,759.23 446,258.93 

  Headcount         

       Officers     13 10 

       Staff     38 38 

 

 

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION 

 

The President and CEO congratulates the Cooperative Bank of Bohol and its Shareholders on 

its 43rd General Assembly. This year’s theme, “Four Decades of Banking Services,” highlights how 

Cooperative Bank of Bohol has helped the Boholano Community by empowering small private 

businessmen, fisherfolks, farmers, and individuals, hence, maintaining the bank’s relevance through 

the years by being responsive to the needs of the clients in the whole economy. She is optimistic that 

today’s assembly will bring more success to our bank. All of us are instrumental in the implementation 

of the bank’s well-calibrated plans. 

 
 Philippine banks have shown resilience to the COVID-19 crisis, benefiting from risk 

management and other regulatory reforms of the past two decades. Hopefully, we will be expecting 

an economic rebound after the pandemic which is why we realign our products and services to suit 

the needs of our clients.  

 
Cooperative Bank of Bohol is not complacent despite the remarkable 43 years of dedicated 

banking but adapts to the changing times in order to stay relevant in creating and promoting financial 

stability among Boholanos to be headed in the right direction maintaining the risk appetite the bank 

can handle. 

 
Hence, a new vision of the bank is now “A digitalized billionaire cooperative bank with 

excellent customer service anchored on good governance” with a new mission and goals in order to 

rise above challenges and advance to the next level in banking such as the full implementation of the 

digitalization roadmap for the next five years.  
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With your help along with bank’s stability, we recognize the need to incorporate in our bank’s 

policy, the sustainable finance framework of the bank to achieve a safer, more dynamic, and more 

inclusive financial system that is sound and resilient and be able to properly address credit risk, 

market risks, interest rate risks, and liquidity risk. 

 

 To tell you something about myself, I am a morning person. Every day even on weekends, I 

wake up at 4:30 am or before dawn to think, organize my thoughts and plan my bank day. I found 

that life isn’t about discovery, but it is about creation and planning instead of thinking about what is 

that thing that I love or I’m good at. In the process of understanding myself, the bank and its 

connection, I’ve faced my fears and encountered vulnerability but I still I am capable of producing 

empathy, therefore a perfect recipe for effective leadership. Apparently, this works for me because I 

was able to transform the management style needed for the time being.  

 

However, in this line of work, I must say that, it was more than just a beginner’s luck to 

achieve this great feat in upholding the bank’s standards and credibility for the past 43 years. Thus, it 

can be credited to collaboration, support, and blessings from above. And to our dear Shareholders, 

Board of Directors, and Employees, we will continue to cooperate and collaborate in order to sustain 

this momentum that we have right now. 

 

I am proud to say that we are still included in the BSP top 100 ranking for rural and 

cooperative banks nationwide both for the loans and receivables category and deposit liabilities 

category. We are no. 79 for loans and receivables with a cut-off period of March 31, 2022, and no. 70 

for deposit liabilities with the same reference period. And hopefully, before the year ends, we will 

successfully display our own ATM terminal. 

 

Aside from that, after 17 years of operating with 3 branches only, it brings me great pride 

and honor to say that we will be opening our 4th branch this coming April 20, 2023. Indeed, it was 

once a dream that has now become a reality!  

 

Financial Highlights 

 

The role of the BSP in the economy is through its three pillars of central banking: price 

stability, financial stability, and efficient payments and settlements system. With the Philippine 

recovery underway, the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) has implemented game-changing 

reforms in these pillars that will stimulate the economy. In the next paragraphs, I will be presenting 

how these reforms affected the operation of the Cooperative Bank of Bohol one way or another, 

putting into consideration some other factors: like the negative impact of the pandemic, the 

devastation left by Super typhoon Odette, including our cut-throat competition. 

 

Cooperative Bank of Bohol is in full continuity mode in serving the public needs of its clientele 

and shareholders. With its vision to become a digitalized billionaire Cooperative Bank, consolidation of 

data bank-wide has successfully started and implemented in the year 2022 resulting in a centralized 

Core Banking System.  

 

Moreover, additional products such as Digital Document Management System (DDMS) and 

Check Warehousing were also installed in the bank’s Core Banking System to comply with the BSP 

requirement and to ease the workload of the employees. As CBB embarks new journey, it has been 

part of the long-term plan of the bank to open an additional branch, and after conducting 
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assessments and complying with the pre-requisites, the bank was able to secure a license or authority 

to establish a new branch in Dauis-Panglao Island.  

 

Below are the snapshots of the bank’s financial health, giving insight into its performance and 

operations.   

Note: Figures for 2022 are based on the Audited Financial Statements (AFS) 

1.) As to the Financial Position 

a. Assets 

Particulars 2022 2021 2020 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 16,264,926.00 29,085,103.00 21,421,579.00 

Due from BSP 14,769,825.00 14,895,944.00 14,350,398.00 

Due from Other Banks 130,067,286.00 182,044,045.00 131,333,425.00 

Loans & Receivables (net) 301,589,071.00 293,831,629.00 287,183,510.00 

Non-current Assets held for Sale 12,307,058.00 13,951,921.00 15,221,428.00 

Other Assets 104,629,283.00 79,988,993.00 62,126,906.00 

Total Assets 579,627,449.00 613,797,635.00 531,637,246.00 
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b. Liabilities & Net Worth 

Particulars 2022 2021 2020 

Total Liabilities       517,566,042.00 
               

552,889,484.00  
         

459,787,458.00  

Net Worth (Assets Minus 
Liabilities)         62,061,407.00 60,908,151.00 

            
71,849,788.00  

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

Based on the figures presented above,  bank's assets as of December 31, 2022 are 

made up of 52.03% total loans and receivables, 27.80% cash and cash equivalents (including 

deposit from banks and Demand Deposit),  2.12% ROPA, and 18.05% other assets. 

Additionally, as of December 31, 2022, the primary sources of funding for the bank's total 

assets were 81.47% of its deposit liabilities and 7.92% of its paid-up capital, indicating that 

the bank is financing a large percentage of its assets with liabilities.  

Moreover, for the year 2022, the Board of Directors and the Management 

consistently maintain the bank's good financial standing by lowering its debt-to-equity ratio 

without affecting the compliance of the Minimum Liquidity Ratio since it is more 

advantageous to finance a bank's assets with equity although liabilities may not always be 

bad as this can help finance the bank's growth. Comparing the total Assets of the bank for 

the past 3 years, it decreased to P579.3M as of December 31, 2022, as funds deposited in 

other banks decreased due to significant transactions such as paying its bills payable and 

other liabilities made during the year. Thus, in year 2022, the bank's debt-to-equity ratio 

decreased by 1, from ratio of 9 to 8. 
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 To maintain a good debt-to-equity ratio, increasing the bank’s capital is one of the 

major activities that the bank is promoting because it will not only help to increase liquidity 

but will also help to increase capital adequacy ratio.  

 

2.) As to the Results of Operations- The summary of the cumulative impact of revenue, gain, 

expense, and loss transactions for a given period.  

a.) Profitability 

Particulars 2022 2021 2020 

Gross Income 73,636,112.00 72,480,658.00 60,787,369.00 

Cost & Expenses 71,332,900.00 70,780,624.00 58,217,107.00 

Net Income 2,303,212.00 1,700,034.00 2,570,262.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

b.) Net Income Margin 

 

A high Net Income margin is often an indicator of efficient operation management, low 

expenses, and efficient pricing strategies. For the year 2022, Percentage of Revenue 

remaining after all operating and non-operating expenses have been deducted from the total 

revenue increases by 0.78%, from 2.35% to 3.13%. 

3. Membership 

The bank provides a reasonable and realistic member capital build-up program to allow the 

continuing growth of shareholders’, investments as their economic conditions continue to improve.  

 

Further, the bank made concrete and definite capital planning to preserve capital and build 

sufficient buffers in times of uncertainty to be always above the industry benchmark and the capital 

Particulars 2022 2021 2020 

Net Income Margin (Net Income/Gross 
Revenue) 3.13% 2.35% 4.23% 

 -
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requirement set by Bangko Sentral Ng Pilipinas known as the capital adequacy ratio. Additionally, the 

bank aims to source and infuse additional capital promptly should the capital adequacy ratio (CAR) 

fall below the required minimum.  

 

Thus, the bank increases its authorized capital to two hundred million Pesos (P 

200,000,000.00) upon approval of amended AOC and By-laws and for the year 2023, the bank 

projected an increase of P 3,318,000.00 for Common Shares and P 436,000.00 for preferred shares 

resulting to a total projected Capital of 49,520,000 at the end of the year 2023. 

 

In 2022, the bank conducted a series of Information drives explaining to the shareholders 

their importance in the bank. The first leg was held at Tagbilaran City last January 18, 2022, which 

was followed by the second leg on February 18, 2022, at Inabanga Branch. Finally, the last leg was 

done at Candijay Branch last March 11, 2022. Below is the list of common shareholders who paid for 

additional capital for the year 2022. 

 

Name of MPC 
Fresh Capital (Including 

Patronage Refund) 

1. 1CISP Total 1,000,000.00 

2. Abachanan MPC Total 1,000.00 

3. Alturas MPC Total 75,000.00 

4. Ati Bohol MPC Total 100,000.00 

5. BADOTSCO MPC Total 24,000.00 

6. Bagtic Masagana MPC Total 26,000.00 

7. Bagumbayan MPC Total 3,000.00 

8. Bahian MPC Total 3,000.00 

9. BIT IC Credit Cooperative Total 35,000.00 

10. Bohol Center MPC Total 16,000.00 

11. Bohol DILG Employees MPC Total 200,000.00 

12. Bohol Island Operators & Drivers MPC Total 18,000.00 

13. Bol-anon M P C  - T A C E C C O Total 20,000.00 

14. BOPE Cooperative Total 18,000.00 

15. Bohol PCA Employees MPC Total 50,000.00 

16. BPSTE MPC Total 10,000.00 

17. Calape Community MPC Total 2,000.00 

18. Calinginan Norte Primary MPC Total 2,000.00 

19. Calunasan Sur MPC/Loboc SN Coop/Gon-ob Total 1,000.00 

20. Cansubayon SN MPC Total 1,000.00 

21. Cansumbol MPC Total 28,000.00 

22. Carmen SN MPC Total 150,000.00 

23. CEV Credit Cooperative Total 25,000.00 

24. Clarin District Teacher & Employees MPC Total 30,000.00 

25. Crystal Dream Credit Cooperative Total 13,000.00 

26. Darussalam Bohol MPC Total 4,000.00 

27. Dauis CC Total 2,000.00 

28. Dauis Panglao Island MPC Total 50,000.00 

29. Dimiao Parish MPC Total 5,000.00 
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30. Holy Spirit School MPC Total 9,000.00 

31. Loboc Community MPC Total 95,000.00 

32. Loon Service Providers MPC Total 100,000.00 

33. Manga MPC Total 34,000.00 

34. Quinoguitan MPC Total 1,000.00 

35. Rural MPC Total 7,000.00 

36. San Pascual Bulilis MPC Total 1,000.00 

37. Tabuan MPC Garcia Hernandez Total 4,000.00 

38. Talibon Credit Cooperative Total 166,000.00 

39. Tinago Dauis SN CC Total 1,000.00 

40. Treasure Island Credit Cooperative Total 10,000.00 

41. Tubigon Public School Teachers and Employees Total 100,000.00 

42. Tubod MPC Total 1,000.00 

43. Valencia Cansibao MPC Total 100,000.00 

Grand Total P2,541,000.00 

 

a.) Total Paid-Up Capital 

 

Particulars 2022 2021 2020 

Total Paid-Up Capital 
        

45,898,000.00  
           

43,190,000.00  
      

40,874,000.00  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T

op 10 Member Cooperatives 

 

As of December 31, 2022: 

 

 

Name of Cooperative  Amount  

1 Valencia Cansibao CC 2,600,000.00 

2 B O P E Cooperative 2,454,000.00 

3 BADOTSCO 2,449,000.00 

4 Bagtic Masagana M P C 2,231,000.00 

5 1CISP 2,077,000.00 

Amount
 38,000,000.00

 40,000,000.00

 42,000,000.00

 44,000,000.00

 46,000,000.00

2020 2021 2022

40,874,000.00 

43,190,000.00 
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Total Paid-Up Capital
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6 B I T I/C Credit Coop 1,850,000.00 

7 Loboc Comm. CC  1,570,000.00 

8 Bohol Community Mpc 1,325,000.00 

9 Bohol Island Operators & Drivers  1,110,000.00 

10 Mpc Carmen S N  M P C 634,000.00 

 

Operational Highlights 

 

A. Target vs. Actual 2022 

Except for the Collection targets, the bank was able to meet all of its 2022 targets. 

However, with the new organizational structure implemented by management in 2023, all 

loan accounts are equally divided among all Account Officers, enabling them to closely 

monitor their assigned accounts, particularly those with higher provision, and meet their 

respective targets. 

PARICULARS ACTUAL 2022 TARGET 2022 
VARIANCE OVER 

ACTUAL 

Total Net Income 3,131,737.51 3,082,622.13 49,115.38 

Loan Releases 285,715,222.50 285,633,845.00 81,377.50 

Collection 279,705,310.09 332,176,104.55 (52,470,794.46) 

 

B. 5-Year Significant Accounts 

PARTICULARS                2022  2021 2020 2019 2018 

Total Paid-Up 
Capital 

    
45,898,000.00  

           
43,190,000.00  

           
40,874,000.00  

                 
39,419,000.00  

               
33,324,000.00  

Total Assets 

  

579,627,449.00  

         

613,797,635.00  

         

531,637,246.00  

              

487,791,993.00  

             

466,963,607.00  

Loan Portfolio 

  

340,512,024.62  

         

332,083,381.00  

         

318,604,045.00  

              

304,165,528.00  

             

303,907,840.00  

Total net Income 
       

2,303,212.00  
              

1,700,034.00  
              

2,570,262.00  
                   

3,104,061.00  
                 

5,101,961.00  
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Comparative Performance for the year 2022 and 2021 

PARTICULARS 2022 2021 

REMARKS 

INCREASE/ 
DECREASE 

AMOUNT 

Total Assets 
  579,310,457.90  

   
613,797,635.00  Decrease 

        
(34,487,177.10) 

Loan Portfolio 
  340,512,024.62  

   
332,083,381.00  Increase 

             
8,428,643.62  

ROE (Return on Equity)                                                   

Formula: Net Income After Tax 
for the period/ Ave. Capital for 
the period 

4.00% 2.17% Increase 1.83% 

Past Due Ratio 20.04% 22.11% Decrease -2.07% 
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Financial Ratios: 

Particular Dec 2020 Dec 2021  Dec 2022  

Capital Adequacy Ratio 12.21% 12.02% 12.64% 

Percentage of Compliance with the Agrarian 

Reform Credit 
10.78% 10.04% 16.29% 

Percentage of Compliance with Other Agricultural 

Credit 
19.57% 15.02% 18.73% 

Percentage of Compliance for Micro and Small 

Enterprises 
24.44% 24.09% 21.08% 

Percentage of Compliance for Medium Enterprises 30.17% 30.29% 39.79% 

Minimum Liquidity Ratio 39.895% 45.033% 34.855% 

 

The Board of Directors and its management have been extremely proactive in managing 

operations in the midst of the pandemic. Its capital, liquidity and other ratios are consistently 

monitored in order to maintain a substantial buffer that will assist the bank in overcoming the global 

economic crisis. In fact, majority of the bank’s 2022 financial ratios are increasing. Its Capital 

Adequacy Ratio was increased to 12.64% as Bank's total Qualifying Capital as of December 31, 2022 

was increased to 77,271,987.47. Such increase was due to the Additional Paid-up Capital from the 

Shareholders, decrease of Unsecured DOSRI Loans (net of allowance from Credit Losses), decrease of 

Past Due Loans as well as the increase in Net Income. Further, bank's liquidity ratio or ability to meet 

near term debt obligations such as deposit liabilities and other current liabilities is 34.85%, above the 

20% Minimum ratio required by BSP. Likewise, the bank remains compliant with MSME and Agri-Agra 

loans. 

Thus, our bank has remained resilient and far stronger than before. 

Corporate Social Responsibility   

 

 CBB As a Lending Conduit with Dept. of Agriculture -ACPC 

 

Cooperative Bank of Bohol amidst discouraging effects of typhoon Odette, the bank continues 

to bring the Boholano farmers to higher level by providing robust financial support system to them as 

a lending conduit with Department of Agriculture -ACPC. 

 

Cooperative Bank of Bohol has been a partner lending conduit with the Department of 

Agriculture - Agricultural Credit Policy Council in the implementation of the Department of Agriculture 

- ACPC Agri- fishery credit programs like Expanded Sure Aid and Recovery Project, Agri- Negosyo 

Loan Program ( ANYO) and Kapital Access for Young Agripreneurs (KAYA) for small farmers and 

fisherfolks, and micro and small enterprises (MSEs) amid the pandemic. The total loan releases as of 

December 31, 2022 were P43,525,000, an increase of P13,500,000.00 over the loan releases for the 

previous year. The above increase is made up of loan releases for Sure Aid and Recovery Project 

Assistance (Odette) totaling P10,000,000.00 and Agri-Negosyo Loan Program (ANYO) totaling 

P3,500,000.00, resulting in an increase of 708 recipients from 874 to 1,582. 
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Illustrative Table 

 

 
 

CBB Inspires to Take Bart in Protecting the Environment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This is an annual program of the bank in support to the government in the global celebration 

of the International Coastal Clean-up. It was successfully spearheaded by the bank's Chairperson, 

Atty. Maximiliano A. Cempron and its President and CEO, Dr. Juvie D. Calacat.  

 

Joyfully participated by the members of the Board of Directors, Department Heads, 

Managers, and Supervisors who volunteered to clean up the shorelines of an area in sitio Daorong, 

Barangay Danao, Panglao, Bohol last December 30, 2022. 
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CBB Participates In Creating a Greener Planet 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The senior management of the Cooperative Bank of Bohol ensures to indulge in community-

based activities annually as its contribution to society and in response to the government’s call for 

nature restoration.   

 

Through the bank’s advocacy and initiatives, the Board of Directors led by its Chairman, Atty. 

Maximiliano A. Cempron, and the management headed by the President and CEO, Dr. Juvie D. 

Calacat, Cooperative Bank of Bohol was able to plant thirty-five molave seedlings in its designated 

coop forest located in Loboc, Bohol on September 10, 2022. The management anticipates seeing 

these trees grow to help restore the environment. 

 

CBB Celebrates Its Anniversary with Children 
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In partnership with the senior management of Dauis Panglao Island MPC (DPIMPC) under the 

chairmanship of Dir. Teodora M. Quiwag, one of the shareholders of the Bank, the Board of Directors 

headed by its Chairman Atty. Maximiliano A. Cempron, who was represented by Vice-Chairman 

Francisco M. Evardone and the management headed by Dr. Juvie D. Calacat conducted a feeding 

program for the kindergarten pupils of Totolan Elementary School last November 14, 2022. A total of 

seventy-seven (77) pupils were the beneficiaries of said activity.   

 

With the joint coordination of the senior management of both Cooperative Bank of Bohol and 

Dauis Panglao Island MPC and the assistance of the teaching staff of Totolan Elementary School, 

hundreds of packed meals and numerous bags of school supplies were successfully distributed to 

these pupils.  Aside from that, the team has also organized several fun games and dance numbers for 

the children to participate in and enjoy. 

 

Members Continuing Education Program 

 

CBB Sponsored CDA Mandated seminars facilitated by Neuronco 

    

 
 One of the bank’s strategic directions is Human Resource Management. One of its key result 

areas is to support the Member-Shareholder by specifically providing continuing education programs 

not only for the Board of Directors and Employees but also for the Shareholders. In line with this, the 

bank also sponsored a webinar for our member cooperatives to comply with Cooperative 

Development Authority required training like the three-day training conducted by Negros Oriental 

Union of Cooperatives (NEORUNCO), with its primary topics being Fundamentals of Cooperative, 

Cooperative Governance, and Credit Risk Management with a total of 266 participants composed of 

148 face-to-face participants and 118 online participants. 
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Challenges and Roadmap 
 

Business innovation is no longer a buzzword; it’s imperative. In a world that constantly 

changes at dizzying speeds, there is no more “business as usual”.    

 

It is crucial if we do not have a solid plan and comprehensive strategic decisions that would 

serve as a guide in our future undertakings because the challenges that surround us are growing and 

escalating in numbers and to name a few, increasing competition between banks and other financial 

institutions, the cultural shift of our market from traditional banking to online banking addressing 

changing business models, cyber security of our core banking system and customer retention since 

the expectations from the clients are now different. On top of these challenges, we will not forget the 

regulatory compliance that we should adhere to from our regulatory agencies. Identified challenges 

are keeping abreast with the digitalization roadmap, strengthening the capital structure, and 

implementing a sustainable finance framework.  

 

Hence, management’s policies are designed to identify and analyze these challenges to set 

appropriate actions and controls combined with allowable risk-taking choices to come up with prudent 

judgment. 
 

Digitalization Roadmap 

 

Now competing with digital banks, electronic money issuers, virtual asset providers and 

crypto currency platforms, these institutions can vastly expand their customers at less cost.  

 

Thus, it is crucial for rural and cooperative banks to stay relevant to our clients. BSP aims to 

strike a balance between prudent supervision and nurturing technology innovation.  
 

To leverage with other banks, this is the IT Plan roadmap starting this year up to the year 

2026. 
 

Capital Requirement 
  

The bank aims to promptly source and infuse additional capital should the capital adequacy 

ratio (CAR) fall below the required minimum. Thus, the bank increases its authorized capital to two 

hundred million pesos (P200,000,000.00) upon approval of amended AOC and By-laws for the year 

2023, the bank projected an increase of P3, 318,000.00 for Common Shares and P49, 520, 000.00 at 

the end of the year 2023. 
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Sustainable finance framework 

The board of directors of Cooperative Bank of Bohol promotes a culture that fosters 

environmentally and socially responsible business decisions and ensures that sustainability 

implications are considered in the overall decision-making process in consonance with BSP circular no. 

1085 series of 2020 and per board resolution no. 2022-099 approved last March 4, 2022. The 

framework has four core components such as use of proceeds, project evaluation, management of 

proceeds, and reporting and external review. It is the adoption of sustainability principles through 

environmental and social risk management system in our governance framework and risk 

management system in strategies and operations. 

 

It understands its role in leading and institutionalizing the adoption of sustainability principle. 

It aims to inspire our clients, shareholders, and other stakeholders to make the same environmentally 

and socially responsible decisions. The objectives are as follows; Integrate sustainability principles in 

decisions, dealings, and products; Realize strategic resilience through sustainable bank operation; 

Incorporate environmental, social, and governance sustainability principles in financial products and 

services and comply with sustainable environmental and social standards, local/national regulations, 

and statutes.  

 

Citations for Award and Recognitions 

 

CBB honored at DA-ACPC 2nd Gawad Lingap Awards 

 

 

 

Cooperative Bank of Bohol (CBB) was one of the partner lending conduits (PLCs) of the 

Department of Agriculture-Agricultural Credit Policy Council (ACPC) being honored during the 2nd 

Gawad sa Paglingap sa Magsasaka at Mangingisda (Gawad Lingap Awards) on April 28, 2022 at the 

Novotel Hotels and Resorts in Quezon City.  

 

The award was received by the bank’s President and CEO Ms. Juvie D. Calacat accompanied 

by its Chief Compliance Officer Ms. Marsha M. Bagnol. The Gawad Lingap Awards is held every two 

years to recognize financial institutions nationwide which have given outstanding and exemplary 

contributions in the implementation of DA-ACPC’s innovative credit programs for small farmers and 

fisherfolk and micro and small agri-fishery enterprises. 
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CBB President received an award from BSP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Bohol Bankers Association, Inc. under the presidency of Juvie D. Calacat for the year 

2022 received a citation for actively engaging their stakeholders in financial education initiatives, 

particularly in promoting digital payments and raising awareness on cyber hygiene practices to avoid 

fraud and scams.   

 

The photo was taken at Sheraton Hotel, Cebu City during the 2022 outstanding BSP 

stakeholders’ appreciation ceremonies. Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) Monetary Board Members 

and Deputy Governors with Outstanding Partners from Visayas (front row, from left) namely, Catalina 

Dagodog, Iloilo Supermart, Inc.; Mary May Chiu, Bankers Association of Iloilo, Inc.; Juvie D. Calacat, 

Bohol Bankers Association, Inc.; Delma O. Bandiola, Land Bank of the Philippines – West Visayas 

Branches Group; Allan Kiko B. Delantar, Junior Financial Executives – Cebu Institute of Technology – 

University Chapter; and Emmeline D. Go, Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company (Metrobank) Cebu.  

 

Closing Statement 

As your president, I follow the so-called open-door policy where my co-employees are 

welcome to give feedback or suggestions directly to me. I also empower my senior management, 

managers, and supervisors to skillfully and competently run the bank’s different departments, 

branches, and sections. 

 

With the trust and support coming from the Shareholders, Board of Directors, and my co-

employees, and together with God’s ever-flowing blessings, I know that we will continue to prosper in 

the coming years. 

 

I consider myself a serial reinventor, a person who is nimble and agile to embrace and adapt 

to constant rapid change to properly address the identified challenges that we may face along the 

way. Because I believe that even if we are doing well in business, we should not be complacent but 

rather we should continue innovating to be more successful and efficient in our field. And no matter 

how bad the situation is, I will reframe it to have a better picture of how bad is, to invest in problem 

setting, not just simply solving the problem.  
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I will continue to provide the necessary skills, guidance, and efforts to uphold Bangko Sentral 

Ng Pilipinas and Cooperative Development Authority policies and mandates, while expanding our 

resources to reach the unbanked and unserved.  

 

I will also continue to make exceptional contributions to help the bank promote its name and 

reputation. I will place proactive measures, especially in engaging with our different partners, 

shareholders, and, most especially, the general public. 

  

Always, I will harness the attitude of gratitude. Your support and cooperation helped the 

Bank through the worst and best of times.  

 

And as I end my report, please allow me to thank our Shareholders for your support to the 

bank even if you, too, were hit by typhoon Odette and the pandemic. However, you never neglected 

the bank; instead, you actively participated in our investors’ forum, attended our important meetings, 

and even put up additional Capital.  

 

I am always grateful to the Board of Directors spearheaded by their chairperson, the 

legendary; Atty. Maximiliano A. Cempron, for their guidance and oversight of implementing the Bank's 

strategic objectives, risk strategy, corporate governance, and looking after the welfare of the 

employees and shareholders in general.  

 

Sometimes it’s difficult to find words to express 

my genuine appreciation for my co-employees. Still 

please know that each of you is very important because 

you are the backbone of this institution. Thank you for 

using your remarkable talents and skills to fuel our 

mutual efforts that made the bank surpass all the odds 

and challenges. Your dedication to your work helps lead 

us to success! And for all these, I say, onward to the next 

four decades! 

 

Once again, I am honored and privileged to serve 

as your president.  

 

Thank you and God bless! 

 

Tagbilaran City 

March 25, 2023 
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK ADOPTED 
 

The principles set forth in the Circular No. 855 regarding credit risk management guidelines 
shall be used in determining the adequacy and effectiveness of the CBB’s credit risk management 
process and adequacy of capital relative to exposure. 

 

Role of the Board and Senior Management 

 
1. Board of Directors 

 

a. Responsible for the approval and regular review of credit risk strategy and credit 

policy, as well as the oversight of the implementation of a comprehensive and 

effective credit risk management system appropriate for the size, complexity and 

scope of operations of CBB.  

 

b. Ensure that the system provides for adequate policies, procedures and processes to 

identify, measure, monitor and control all credit risks inherent in CBB’s products and 

activities, both at the individual and portfolio levels on a consistent and continuing 

basis; and that an independent assessment of the system is periodically performed, 

the results of which shall be reported to it or to a board-level committee for 

appropriate action.  

 

2. Senior Management 

 

a. Responsible for ensuring that the credit risk-taking activities of CBB are aligned with 

the credit risk strategy approved by the board of directors.  

 

b. Also responsible for developing and implementing CBB’s credit policies and 

procedures that lay down the conditions and guidelines for an effective credit risk 

management process, as well as proper channels of communication to ensure that 

these policies are clearly communicated and adhered to by all levels of the 

organization.  

 

Outsourcing of financial services exposes a bank to a number of risks which need to be 

evaluated and effectively managed & mitigated.  Key risk areas should be evaluated before entering 

into and while managing outsourcing contracts.  The key risks that may arise due to outsourcing are: 

 Strategic Risk: The service provider may conduct business on its behalf, which is 

inconsistent with the overall strategic goals and objectives of the bank. 

 Reputation Risk: Poor service from the service provider, its client interaction may not be 

consistent with the overall standards of the bank. 

 Legal Risk: It includes, but not limited to, exposure to fines, penalties or punitive damages 

resulting from supervisory and lawful actions, as well as private settlements due to omissions 

and commissions of the service provider. 

 Operational Risk: Arising due to technology failure, fraud, error, inadequate financial 

capacity of the service provider to fulfil obligations and/or provide remedies. 

 Compliance Risk: Privacy, consumer and prudential laws provided by regulatory agencies 

may not be adequately complied with by the service provider. 
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 Concentration Risk: Due to lack of control of the bank over a service provider, more so 

when overall banking industry has considerable exposure to one service provider.  The failure 

of the service provider in providing the desired services covered by the terms of agreement 

or any non-compliance of any legal/regulatory requirements by the service provider can lead 

to reputational or financial loss for the bank which can trigger a systematic risk in the banking 

system as such.  The imperative therefore will be securing effective management by the bank 

for mitigation of this risk. 

In this regard, the management and the oversight/control personnel of the Cooperative Bank 

of Bohol must perform risk assessment of every business activity and evaluate the implications of 

performing the activity in-house or outsourced. 

In line with the BSP’s thrust to foster a balanced and coherent approach to innovation, the 

Monetary Board (MB) recently approved the issuance of Circular 949 dated 15 March 2017 the 
pioneering guidelines on social media risk management that advocate responsible use of social media 
by BSP Supervised Financial Institutions (BSFIs) such as the Cooperative Bank of Bohol.  BSP 

recognizes that social media presents vast potential benefits and opportunities for greater economic 
advancement and financial inclusion.  The guidelines ensure that the necessary safeguards, 
governance structure and standards are in place to effectively manage the associated risks.   

The Cooperative Bank of Bohol’s social media risk management program should, at a 
minimum, be able to address potential reputational risks as well as provide guidance on acceptable 
use of social media by employees, whether for official or personal purposes.  The bank, in formulating 

and implementing their social media policies, should see to it that existing rules and regulations on 
financial consumer protection, cyber-security, outsourcing and anti-money laundering, among others, 

are complied with.  Aside from ensuring that the pertinent legal, reputational, strategic, operational, 
and compliance risks are addressed, the new guidelines highlight added dimensions to these 
traditional risks which the bank need to consider in designing their social media risk management 

program. These include the growing threats on information security and fraud such as account take 
over, malware attacks, and phishing and spoofing schemes, among others. 

Operational risk is defined as the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal 

processes, people and systems or from external events. This definition includes legal risk, but 
excludes strategic and reputational risk. Cooperative Bank of Bohol must ensure that its board of 
directors and senior management are actively involved in the oversight of the operational risk 

management framework, it has an operational risk management system that is conceptually sound 
and is implemented with integrity, and it has sufficient resources in the use of the approach in the 
major business lines as well as the control and audit areas. 

 
Management should evaluate its rights and obligations in contractual relationships, conform 

with legal and regulatory requirements agreements/contracts entered into and that no party is unduly 

disadvantaged, assess the trends of customer complaints, manage outstanding legal cases involving 

bank or any of its directors, officers, with respect to suits filed in line with the performance of their 

duties, assess and report regularly the potential outcome including probable liability or receivable, 

identify and understand the distinct operational risk arising from the products and services being 

offered or innovative delivery channels used, and ensure sustained delivery of financial services to the 

unserved and underserved sector. 

To address the liquidity risks or the risk of running out of funds, the bank shall adopt a sound 

contingency funding plan.  The said Contingency Funding Plan of the Bank was first approved by the 

Board of Directors on June 28, 2017 per Board Resolution No. 2017-243.  However, the Board of 

Directors feel the need to review and test the effectiveness of said Contingency Funding Plan, hence, 

the Board of Directors decided to amend the said plan and this has been consequently approved per 
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Board Resolution No. 2020-222    dated May 25, 2020. The amended CFP design, plans and 

procedures should be closely integrated with the bank’s ongoing analysis of liquidity risk and with the 

results of the scenarios and assumptions used in stress tests. Senior management of the Cooperative 

Bank of Bohol should monitor for potential liquidity stress events by using early warning indicators 

and event triggers.  Early indicators should identify any adverse movement; create an initial 

assessment; and potential management action in order to mitigate the bank’s exposure to liquidity 

risk.   The Cash Department Head as chief financial officer shall be responsible in establishing and 

maintaining liquidity risk measures and monitory system.  However, when banking distress becomes 

systemic and reaches a crisis proportion which is likely to impact on the entire financial services 

industry, the routine processes and procedures of the supervisory authority to deal with the situation 

may be inadequate. 

RISK APPETITE AND STRATEGY 

Our reputation is based on trust and confidence from our clients, employees, stakeholders, 
regulators and the public in general. We will avoid actions and situations that can compromise trust 

and result in negative impact to Cooperative Bank of Bohol’s reputation, and, if and when, an 
unwanted and inevitable incident/situation arises, we shall manage it head-on to preserve our 
reputation. 

 
Cooperative Bank of Bohol has established a history of client trust, financial strength and 

innovation in pursuit to achieving its vision, mission and goals. The bank’s risk management 

framework seeks to ensure that there is an effective process in place to monitor and manage risks.  
 

Our mission is to provide the financial welfare of both the cooperatives and individuals and 

upholding trust and confidence of the depositors.  The bank is willing to take on the risk of borrowing 
funds from other banks or sources at 85% of its approved credit line in order to maintain its liquidity 
ratio at 30%.  If in any case there might be a rapid increase in deposits or an abrupt withdrawal of 

deposits involving large amounts of cash resulting to a decline of said ratio below its minimum limit, 
we shall limit our granting of loan releases up to 25% above the desired target, intensify collection 
scheme specifically those that are nearing bad debts, and evaluate and assess loans to borrowers 

with good credit standing which could be possibly granted short-term credits that will easily be 
converted to cash to pay-off currently maturing obligations owed to valued clients. 

 
Cooperative Bank of Bohol has a very low appetite for prolonged outage of a core banking 

system which supports its critical business functions including those which relate to banking 

operations. The Bank is also committed to ensuring that its information is relevant, accurate, timely 
and properly conserved and managed in accordance with legislative and business requirements. The 
Bank has no appetite for any fraud or corruption perpetrated by its personnel. It takes all assertions 

of suspected fraud or corruption earnestly and responds fully and impartially as set out in the Bank’s 
Manual of Operation.  
 

The Bank is dedicated to a high level of compliance with relevant legislation, regulation, 
industry standards as well as internal policies and sound corporate governance principles. Identified 
breaches of compliance will be remedied as soon as practicable. It has no appetite for deliberate or 

purposeful violations of legislative or regulatory requirements. 
 

The Bank utilizes credit practices which provide assurance that loans will be repaid and risk of 

not collecting these accounts is minimized. The Bank reviews borrower’s repayment ability by 
analyzing the borrower’s cash flows against his impending loan obligation. It will not accept real 

estate mortgage secured loans where the loan to appraisal value is greater than 60%. For unsecured 
loans, the Bank applies conservative methods of determining the maximum loanable amount. The 
Bank’s objective is to provide a secured environment for its people by ensuring its security measures 

meet high standards. It has a very low appetite for work health and safety risk and aims to create a 
safe working environment for its entire staff, where people are protected from physical or 
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psychological harm. It does not condone practices or behaviors that lead to staff being harmed while 
at work. 

 
Cooperative Bank of Bohol’s overall risk tolerance is low to moderate.  
 

Below are the risks affecting the Bank and its associated risk tolerance: 

Type of Risk Risk Category 

Enterprise 

Risk 

Capital and 
Earnings 

Capital Adequacy Ratio  

    Low Risk                  Moderate Risk               High Risk 
    below 12% to 11.5% Below 11.5% to 11%     below 11% to 10.5%  
                                                                                                    

A net income after tax of 3% to 4% below the budget is considered 
low risk, 5% to 9% below is moderate risk and the bank cannot bear 
risk for income which falls down to 10% or more from the budget.  

The bank believes to meet the total income net of tax to at least 
within the target or increase to not less than 10% from the target.                                                                                                                                                                                        

While, total expenses should not exceed the budget so net income 
will not be compromised.  
 

A decrease of total expenses from the target is acceptable and 
encouraged but an increase of total expenses by 5% or more than 
the target is not tolerable.  

 
More so, loan releases must be achieved per the computed target at 
the end of each year without weakening the established bank credit 

policies.  The bank cannot take the risk for loan releases that is 20% 
or more below the set target. 
 

Collection target goals should be clear and achievable broken down 
to specific, smaller manageable chunks. Each Collector’s monthly 
target should be identified who are the specific customer 

composition, from monthly to per day target to prompt them to act 
immediately and hit target collection at the end of day. Continuous 

training should be given to credit and collection personnel for them to 
know what they must do, how and when exactly they must do which 
will bring them clarity of their function and find it motivating and 

rewarding as they achieve their goals. The bank has conservative risk 
tolerance when it comes to collection. A miss in collection has an 
impact to its target revenue and the bank cannot take the risk of 

missing collection by 10% or more below the set target. 

Reputational 

Risk 
Low 

Non-
Financial 

Risk 

Operational 

Risk 
Low to Moderate  

Compliance 

Risk and 
Legal Risk 

Low to Moderate  

Financial 
Risk 

Credit Risk Low 

Liquidity 

Risk 
Low 

Market Risk Low 
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b. The Bank also look into the Operational risks which may bring probability of loss resulting 

from employee errors, inadequate or failed procedures, system failures or failed 

procedures, policies or systems. 

Management Information - Cooperative Bank of Bohol has a very low appetite for 

prolonged outage of its core banking system which supports its critical business functions 

including those which relate to banking operations. The Bank is also committed to ensuring 

that its information is relevant, accurate, timely and properly conserved and managed in 

accordance with legislative and business requirements. 

Internal Fraud and Corruption - The Bank has no appetite for any fraud or corruption 

perpetrated by its personnel. It takes all assertions of suspected fraud or corruption earnestly 

and responds fully and impartially as set out in the Bank’s Manual of Operation.  

Credit and Collection Risk –The Bank utilizes credit practices which provide assurance that 

loans will be repaid and risk of not collecting these accounts is minimized. The Bank reviews 

borrower’s repayment ability by analyzing the borrower’s cash flows against his impending 

loan obligation. It will not accept real estate mortgage secured loans where the loan to 

appraisal value is greater than 60%. For unsecured loans, the Bank applies conservative 

methods of determining the maximum loanable amount.  

People and Culture Risk - The Bank’s objective is to provide a secured environment for its 

people by ensuring its security measures meet high standards. It has a very low appetite for 

work health and safety risk and aims to create a safe working environment for its entire staff, 

where people are protected from physical or psychological harm. It does not condone 

practices or behaviors that lead to staff being harmed while at work. 

c. Compliance and Legal Risk - The Bank is dedicated to a high level of compliance with 

relevant legislation, regulation, industry standards as well as internal policies and sound 

corporate governance principles. Identified breaches of compliance will be remedied as soon 

as practicable. It has no appetite for deliberate or purposeful violations of legislative or 

regulatory requirements. 

The following are the strategies of the Bank to manage legal and compliance risk: 

 ensure adequate transaction documentation 

 accept customers that have the required authority or not legally restricted to transact 

 evaluate that the transaction is permissible under applicable laws and regulations 
 Avoid penalty by submission of reports before the deadline 

 timely dissemination of regulatory information, regulations and policies affecting our 
bank 

 compliance to all laws, policies, regulations, issuances, Circulars, Accounting and 
Auditing Standards 

 Immediate action of compliance issues and identified deficiencies 
 Increase SAFr from current rating 

 
RISK MANGEMENT AND ASSET QUALITY REPORTING 

Asset Quality Review will begin in full following the completion of the Enhanced Policies on 

loan restructuring and Enhanced Processes and Policies on Credit Risk. 
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Methodology levels and implementation: 

 Processes, policies and accounting review 

The Accountant will make a quarterly consolidated report for the Board of Directors of the 

classified loans for provisioning of valuation and allowance booking. 

 Loan tape creation and data integrity validation 

 Sampling   

A credit folder will be carried out for review, involving the review of specifics such as loan 

classification and provisioning. 

 Credit File Review  

The bank team composed of Compliance Officer; Internal Auditor and Credit Risk Officer will 

verify the existence of the collateral and to check credit exposure that has been classified in 

the bank’s system by conducting credit file review. The result will be finalized by the Internal 

Auditor for submission to the Board of Directors. 

 Collateral and Real Estate Valuation 

This is to determine if the appropriate carrying amount and valuation of collateral are 

accurate.  

 Collective Provision Analysis 

Provisioning models should align with the letter and spirit of accounting rules of International 

Accounting Standards and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. 

 Define Mediation Activities 

 Creation of a credit valuation adjustment if any; 

 Corrections to specific provisions for individually impaired credit facilities that were 

sampled in the file review; 

 Bank’s implementation of corrective internal models and policies. 

The primary function of credit and asset quality reporting and monitoring is to assist the 
management and Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities by reviewing the financial 
information that will be provided to the shareholders and others; the systems of internal controls 

established by management and the Board; and the risk management, accounting and financial 
reporting processes.  

 

Authority: 

• To provide open avenues of communication among the risk management committee, 

manager internal auditor, compliance officer, loan officer, accountant and the Board 
of Directors.  

 

• To report Committee actions to the full Board of Directors and make recommendations.  
 

• To meet quarterly, more frequently if circumstances make that preferable. The Risk 

Management Committee chairman has the power to call a Committee meeting 
whenever necessary.  

 

Documentation Review  

 
1.  The Board of Directors shall review the risk management reports provided to management 

and management’s response.  
 

2. Review internal audit reports and address and resolve any concerns associated with the 

conduct of accompanying internal audits to ensure independence with the Risk 
Management Committee is maintained throughout the audit schedule.  
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3. Review with management and External Audit team the interim and annual financial 
information prior to its filing.  

 
4. Review with top management, Audit Committee and Risk Management Committee the 

quarterly financial statements, key performance ratios and operating results.  

 
Cooperative Bank of Bohol realized that banking institutions have faced difficulties over the 

years for a multitude of reasons, the major cause of serious banking problems continues to be 

directly related to lax credit standards for borrowers, poor portfolio risk management, or a lack of 

attention to changes in economic or other circumstances that can lead to a deterioration in the credit 

standing of a bank's borrowers. 

To reduce the bank's credit risk, the bank may perform a credit check on the prospective 

borrower as well as review the credit standing of the existing borrowers. In general, the higher the 

risk, the higher will be the possibility of non-payment. 

For most banks, loans are the largest and most obvious source of credit risk; however, other 

sources of credit risk exist throughout the activities of a bank, including in the banking book and in 

the trading book, and both on and off the balance sheet.  

Cooperative Bank of Bohol implemented this enhanced credit risk in order to promote sound 
practices for managing credit risk. Principles contained in this program are not new to the bank but 
only to sharpen the existing credit policies of the bank, that are most clearly applicable to the 

business of lending, they should be applied to all activities where credit risk is present. 
 

The Management now implements more comprehensive loan review and improves the 

existing processes, policies, assessment of bank loans, provisioning and collateral evaluation, among 
others. 

This is to ensure proper matching of loan terms with timing cash flows and Settlement risk. 

The risk that the completion or settlement of a financial transaction will fail to take place as expected, 

thus includes elements of liquidity, market, operational and reputational risk as well as credit risk.  

AML Governance and Culture 
 

The Cooperative Bank of Bohol’s Money Laundering Prevention Program is aligned to comply 

and support the policies set by the Anti-Money Laundering Council and the Bangko Sentral ng 

Pilipinas. It is the vital responsibility of the bank’s Board of Directors, having the ultimate 

responsibility for compliance with AMLA and its IRR,  that the bank is compliant with the AML 

regulations and the internal policies are adequate to risks associate d with the ML/TF activities.  The 

Senior Management oversees the day-to-day management of the bank and ensures effective 

implementation of the said policies along with the independent supervision of the Compliance Officer 

and Internal Auditor.   

It is the fundamental role of the bank to identify, understand and assess the ML/TF risks 

arising from the delivery of services to the customers, thus, creating the risk assessment tool 

appropriate with the nature of operations and complexity of the bank.  Minimum Know-Your-Client 

policy is required before starting any business relationship with the customers.  Customer due 

diligence is properly applied in a manner that will not discriminate certain customer types such as 

politically exposed persons, certain religions, race or ethnic origin or other attributes. 

If there is a suspicion of money laundering or terrorist financing, and if there is doubt about 

the veracity or adequacy of previously obtained customer information data then enhanced due 

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Credit_check
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diligence shall be undertaken by the bank.  All customer identification records shall be maintained and 

safely stored for five (5) years from the date of transaction which are jointly safeguarded by the 

bank’s two (2) designated personnel.  Reporting of covered and suspicious transactions to the AMLC 

shall be done as prescribed within five (5) working days from the occurrence thereof.   

The AML Compliance Officer shall ensure the accuracy and completeness of the CT and ST 

report. The AML Compliance Officer also guarantees that the bank is compliant with AMLA by 

conducting periodic compliance checking, providing the bank’s personnel on resolutions, circulars and 

other issuances of the BSP and AMLC, and reviewing the noted deficiencies during onsite examination 

by the Internal Auditor, Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas and other regulating bodies, the deficiencies are 

immediately corrected and acted upon.  

The bank ensures all personnel, including the newly hired, frontliners and directors are 

provided with adequate AML/TF training for all to have full understanding of the concepts of money 

maundering and terrorist financing as well latest AML/TF rules and regulations, recognize our 

obligations under the AMLA, as amended and create a proactive attitude in preventing money 

laundering and terrorist financing. 

Regular updating of the Money Laundering Terrorist Financing Prevention Program (MTPP) every 
other year to include the latest ML/TF issuances and requirements including the Targeted Financial 

Sanctions (TFS), guidance on listing/de-listing, freezing and unfreezing procedures, AML/CTF 
guidelines for Designated Non-Financial Business and Professions (DNFBPs), ML/TF typologies, 
national and sectoral risk assessments, enforcement guidelines among others for an efficient AML risk 

management system.  

The Internal Auditor conducts periodic and independent evaluation of the risk management, 

customer identification process and completeness of the information and documents establishing the 

true and full identity, the risk classification and standard of due diligence applied to customer, and the 

effectiveness of other existing internal controls associated with the bank’s money laundering 

prevention program.  The results of the audit are timely communicated to the Board of Directors and 

are also communicated to the Compliance Office for appropriate monitoring of corrective actions 

taken by the different units concerned. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

 Cooperative Bank of Bohol is committed to conform to the highest standards of ethics and 

corporate governance as embodied in its the Bank’s Amended Articles of Incorporation, Amended By-

Laws, Code of Conduct, Code of Good Governance and Ethical Standards, this Corporate Governance 

Manual and to comply with all governing laws, rules and regulations and with established corporate 

policies and procedures, thereby maintaining excellence in all aspects of its operations. 

The Bank agree with the principles of integrity; accountable and transparent working system; 

rational check and balances as well as a structured approach to its business operations; protection 

and promotion of the interest of the shareholders, clients, investors; creating social responsibility; 

professionalism among its Board of Directors, executives and employees in managing the Bank; and 

developing efficient organizational culture. 

 
The business of the bank shall be conducted under the supervision and control by the  Board of 

Directors of nine ( 9 ) members who shall be elected from among the representatives of the cooperatives 

and federations of cooperatives by secret balloting by the members at the annual general assembly and 
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hold office for a term of two (2) years unless earlier removed for cause, or have resigned or become 

incapacitated due to illness or death, and until their successors shall have been elected and qualified. 

 The Board of Directors are representatives of member cooperative shareholders of the bank. Each 

Board of Directors has no indirect shares held. 

 The bank’s Senior Management is composed of the President and CEO, Vice President for 

Operations, Vice President for External Affairs and Vice President for Internal Affairs. The bank has 

conducted a fit and proper test for the position the officers are being appointed to considering 

integrity/probity, education/training, and possession of competencies relevant to the function such as 

knowledge and experience, skills and diligence.  The President/CEO shall be the overall-in-charge for 

the management of the business and affairs of the bank governed by the strategic direction and risk 

appetite approved by the board of directors and primarily accountable to the board of directors in 

championing the desired conduct and behavior, implementing strategies, and in promoting the long-

term interest of the bank. Meanwhile, the Vice Presidents shall assist the President in areas of 

operations, internal affairs and external affairs. 

The Board of Directors, as a body, but not by any of the directors acting in their individual 

capacity, shall have general supervision and control of the affairs of the bank. It shall prescribe policies 

consistent with the by-laws and the resolutions of the general assembly for the management of its 

business and the guidance of its members, officers and employees.  

 

The board of directors shall be responsible for approving and overseeing of the bank’s corporate 

governance framework. They shall ensure corporate governance policies are followed and periodically 

reviewed for ongoing improvement. They shall constitute at a minimum, the Audit, Risk Oversight, 

Corporate Governance and Related Party Transaction committees. 

 

 The members of the Board of Directors, in the discharge of their duties, shall be jointly and 

severally responsible for transactions, acts, omissions made in violation of the law, regulations, by-laws, or 

the resolutions of the general assembly, except those who entered a protest at the time when such 

transaction, act or omission was acted upon. 

 

 The executive directors of the bank have management responsibilities. The non-executive 

directors are members of the board without daily management responsibilities of the bank which shall 

include the independent directors to promote independent oversight of management by the board of 

directors. The chairman of the board provides leadership in the board of directors. He ensures effective 

functioning of the board of directors, including maintaining a relationship of trust with members of the 

board of directors.  

 

 
BOARD COMPOSITION 

 

Name Cooperative Type of 

No. of 

Years No. of Shares 

%age of 

shares held 

  Represented Directorship 
as 

Director held as of 
to total 

outstanding 

        12/31/22 
shares of 
the bank 

Cempron, Maximiliano A. Loboc Community CC Executive 41 1,570 4.70% 

Evardone, Francisco M. Manga MPC Executive 30 600 1.80% 

Balite, Dionisio D. Valencia Cansibao CC Executive 12* 2,600 7.79% 

Calamba, Ernesto B. Cansumbol MPC Executive 12 383 1.15% 
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Daniel, Melchor Sr. R. Bohol Community MPC Non-executive 4 1,325 3.97% 

Belderol, Samuel S. 
Bol-anon MPC 
(TACCECO) Non-executive 2 306 .92% 

Daganato, Teodorico E. 
Bohol Center 
Cooperative  

Independent 
Director 3 140 .42% 

Quiwag, Teodora M. Dauis-Panglao Island MPC Executive 16 556 1.67% 

Suarez, Ranulfo L. Bagtic Masagana MPC Non-executive 8 2,231 6.68% 

*Dir. Balite served as Chairman of the Board of Directors from 1985 to 1994. He resumed serving as 

member of the Board of Directors in 2020. 

QUALIFICATIONS AND DISQUALIFICATIONS OF COOP BANK DIRECTORS 

(Excerpt from the Rules and Regulations on the Conduct of the Annual Regular Election of the Members of the Board of 

Directors and members of the Election Committee) 

QUALIFICATIONS 

1. Shall be at least twenty-five (25) years of age at the time of his/her election or 

appointment;  
2. Shall be at least a college graduate or have at least five (5) years experience in business; 

3. Must be fit and proper for the position of a director of the cooperative bank. In 
determining whether a person is fit and proper for the position of a director, the following 
matters must be considered: integrity/probity, competence, education, diligence and 

experience/training; 
4. Has paid the minimum capital requirement; 
5. Has no delinquent account with the cooperative bank; 

6. Has continuously patronized the cooperative bank services; 
7. A member in good standing for the last two (2) years; 
8. Must have attended a special seminar for board of directors conducted or accredited by 

the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas within a period of six (6) months from the date of his/her 
election; and 

9. completed or willingness to complete within the prescribed period the required education 

and training whichever is applicable. 
10. Newly elected Board of Directors must attend the mandatory CDA trainings within one 

year after election. 

 
DISQUALIFICATIONS 

1. Holding any elective position in the government, except that of a party list representative 

being an officer of a cooperative he/she represents; 

2. Members holding any other position directly involved in the day-to-day operation and 

management of the bank; 

3. Having direct or indirect personal interest with the business of the bank; 

4. Having been absent for at least fifty (50%) percent of the total number of meetings in 

the preceding year unless with valid excuse as approved by the board of directors; 

5. Being an official or employee of the cooperative development authority, except in a 

cooperative organized among themselves; 

6. Having been convicted by final judgement in administrative proceedings or civil/criminal 

suits involving financial and/or property accountability;  

7. Persons who have been convicted by final judgment of the court for violation of banking 

laws; 
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8. Persons who have been judicially declared insolvent, spendthrift or incapacitated to 

contract; and 

9. Directors, officers or employees of closed banks/qbs/trust entities who were responsible 
for such institution’s closure as determined by the monetary board; 

10. Gift giving in any form  

11. Campaigning inside the venue during the Election Day. 
12. Failure to attend the mandatory CDA trainings within one year after election. 
13. Other disqualifications as provided for in the manual of regulations for banks (MORB). 

 
MANNER OF VOTING 

Per Article VI. Sec. 8 of the By-laws as amended on May 29, 2010, manner of voting is 

Corporate straight voting.  

BOARD LEVEL COMMITTEES 
 

 The Board level committees are the Audit Committee and Executive Committee. Different 

committees created by the Board of Directors are Ethics Committee, Election, Credit, and Mediation 

and Conciliation Committee.  

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

MEMBERSHIP 

 

The committee shall be composed of three (3) members of the board of directors who shall 

all be non-executive directors, majority of whom shall be independent directors, including the 

chairperson, elected by the general assembly. The audit committee shall be with accounting, auditing 

or related financial management expertise or experience commensurate with the size, complexity of 

operations and risk profile of the bank.  

FUNCTIONS 

 

1) Provides oversight over the institution’s financial reporting policies, practices and control 
and internal and external audit functions. It shall be responsible for the setting up of the 

internal audit department and for the appointment of the internal auditor as well as 
external auditor who shall both report directly to the audit committee.  In cases of 
appointment or dismissal of external auditors, it is encouraged that the decision be made 

only by the independent and non-executive audit committee members.  It shall monitor 
and evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system; 

2) Reviews and approves the audit scope and frequency. It shall receive key audit reports 

and ensure that senior management is taking necessary corrective actions in a timely 
manner to address the weaknesses, non-compliance with policies, laws and regulations 
and other issues identified by auditors; 

3) It shall have explicit authority to investigate any matter within its terms of reference, full 
access to and cooperation by management and full discretion to invite any director or 

executive officer to attend its meetings, and adequate resources to enable it to effectively 
discharge its functions. The committee shall ensure that a review of the effectiveness of 
the institution’s internal controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls, 

and risk management is conducted at least annually; 
4) It establishes and maintains mechanisms by which officers and staff shall, in confidence, 

raise concerns about possible improprieties or malpractices in matters of financial 

reporting, internal control, auditing or other issues to persons or entities that haspower to 
take corrective action; 
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5) Reviews loans to capture and identify existing or potential problem loans by assessing the 
adequacy of the credit evaluation and appropriate reserves  

6) Identifies and evaluates exposures.  The committee shall assess the probability of each 
cash risk becoming a reality and shall estimate its possible effect and cost. Priority areas 
of concern are those risks that are the most likely to occur and are costly when they 

happen; 
7) Develop risk management strategies. The committee shall develop a written plan defining 

the strategies for managing and controlling the major risks.  It shall identify practical 

strategies to reduce the chance of harm and failure or minimize losses if the risk becomes 
real; 

8) Oversees the implementation of the risk management plan.  The committee shall conduct 
regular discussions on the institution’s current risk exposure based on regular 
management reports and assess how the concerned units or offices reduced these risks; 

9) Reviews and revises the plan as needed.  The committee shall evaluate the risk 
management plan to ensure its continued relevance, comprehensiveness, and 
effectiveness.  It shall revisit strategies, look for emerging or changing exposures, and 

stay abreast of development that affect the likelihood of harm or loss. The committee 
shall report regularly to the board of directors the entity’s overall risk exposure, action 
taken to reduce this risks, and recommend further action or plan as necessary. 

 
CREDIT COMMITTEE 

 

MEMBERSHIP 

 The Committee shall be composed of two (2) members appointed by the Board from the 

General Assembly and shall serve for a term of one (1) year and the President of the bank as the 3rd 

member.  They will elect among themselves their Committee Chairperson, Secretary and member. 

The President is a permanent member of the committee. Loan Officer II shall be the Assisting 

Secretary of the Committee. 

 The Committee members must be impartial and independent when approving of loan 

application and shall not be subjective but prudent during deliberations to avoid risks. 

FUNCTIONS 

 

1) Reviews and ensures completeness and accuracy of the loan documents submitted by the 
Loans Officer; 

a. Ascertains the truth of the purpose of the loan; 
b. Ensures/ascertains whether collaterals offered are clean and appropriate 
c. Reviews appraisal of collaterals made by the Appraiser; 

d. Checks coverage, expiry and renewal dates of the loan applied for; 
e. Checks existence of a right of way; 
f. Determines comprehensiveness of insurance coverage, dates of renewal and 

expiry; 
g. Decides to grant the loan after at least 80% degree of certainty on the viability of 

the loan has been attained; 

2) The committee shall check the credit background of the client: 
a. Identifies other creditors of the client; 
b. Conducts a background check to determine whether the prospective borrower is 

a good payor; 
c. Ascertains whether the prospective borrower is not heavily indebted to other 

banks or lending institutions; and 
d. Offers to prospective borrowers’ affordable plan of loan payment. 

3) Approves loan applications with loanable amount above P1,000,000.00 to  

P1,500,000.00; 
4) Recommends to the Board loan applications above P1,500,000.00; 
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5) Campaigns for more deposits and loan clients; 
6) Monitors the accomplishment of the collectors and propose measures/activities to 

improve/increase collections by the Collectors. 
7) Confirms loan approved by the Managers and President 
8) Other functions delegated by the Board of Directors. 

 

ELECTION COMMITTEE 

MEMBRESHIP  

The election committee shall be composed of three (3) members elected during a general assembly 

meeting.  They shall hold office for a term of one (1) year or until their successors shall have been 

elected and qualified.  Within ten (10) days after their election, they shall elect from among 

themselves a chairperson, vice-chairperson and a secretary.  No member of the committee shall hold 

any other position within the cooperative during his/her term of office.   

FUNCTIONS: 

1) Formulate election rules and guidelines and recommend to the general assembly for 

approval;  
2) Implement election rules and guidelines duly approved by the general assembly;  
3) Recommend necessary amendments to the election rules and guidelines for the general 

assembly’s approval;  
4) Supervise the conduct, manner and procedure of election and other election related 

activities and act on the changes thereto;  
5) Canvass and certify the results of the election;  
6) Proclaim the winning candidates; 

7) Decide election related cases except those involving the committee or its members; and  
8) Perform such other functions as prescribed in the by-laws or authorized by the general 

assembly. 

 
MEDIATION AND CONCILIATION COMMITTEE  

Membership 

 The committee shall be composed of three (3) members appointed by the chairperson of the 

board from the general assembly. They shall elect from among themselves a chairperson, vice-

chairperson and a secretary.   

FUNCTIONS:  

1) Formulates and develops the conciliation-mediation program and ensures that it is 

properly implemented; 
2) Settles disputes among shareholders, clients, members of the board of directors, and 

employees of the bank; 

3) Monitors conciliation-mediation programs and processes; 
4) Submits semi-annual reports of cooperative cases to the authority within fifteen (15) days 

after the end of every semester; 
5) Accepts and files evaluation reports; 
6) Submits recommendations for improvements to the board of directors; 

7) Recommends to the board of directors any member of the cooperative for conciliation-
mediation training as cooperative conciliator-mediator;  

8) Issues the certificate of non-settlement (CNS) ;  and 

9) Performs such other functions as may be prescribed in the by-laws or authorized by the 
general assembly. 
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ETHICS COMMITTEE 

MEMBERSHIP 

The committee shall be composed of three (3) members appointed by the chairperson of the board 

from the general assembly. They shall elect from among themselves a chairperson, vice-chairperson 

and a secretary. 

FUNCTIONS: 

1) Develops code of conduct and ethical standards to be observed by officers, employees, 

and members of the cooperative subject to the approval of the board of directors and 
ratification of the general assembly;  

2) Disseminates, promotes and implements the approved code of governance and ethical 

standards;  
3) Monitors compliance with the code of conduct and ethical standards and recommends to 

the board of directors’ measures to address the gap, if any; 
4) Conducts initial investigation or inquiry upon receipt of a written complaint arising from 

the code of conduct and ethical standards and submits a report to the board of directors 

together with the appropriate sanctions; 
5) Recommends ethical rules and policy to the board of directors; and 
6) Performs such other functions as may be prescribed in the by-laws or authorized by the 

board. 
 

 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 

MEMBERSHIP 

 

 The committee shall be composed of the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, President and three 

regular members of the Board of Directors. Each member is handling different sub-committees which 

include Corporate Governance, Education/Human Resources, Related Party Transactions, and Gender 

and Development. 

 

FUNCTIONS 

 

1. Acts on urgent matters when the Board is not in session; 

2. Prepares agenda for board meetings; and 
3. Performs other functions as authorized by the Board of Directors.  
 

EDUCATION & HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

MEMBERSHIP 

 

 This is handled by the Vice Chairperson of the board. 

 

FUNCTIONS 

 
1) Prepares a comprehensive education and training plan to be attended/participated in by the 

following: 

 
a. stockholders of the bank 
b. board of directors 
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c. officers/employees 
 

2) Conducts a province-wide information campaign of the services rendered by the bank.    
 

3) Strengthens employer-employee relations and consolidate efforts for the continued viable 

operations of the bank; 
4) Enhances personal and professional growth and development of the staff through continuing 

human resource development initiatives; 
 

5) Is responsible for the recruitment and hiring of employees, their promotion, transfer, and 

performance appraisal for recommendation to the Board. 

 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS SUB-COMMITTEE  

 
MEMBERSHIP  
 

This is handled by the one director member of the Executive Committee. In case he/she has 
conflict of interest in a particular RPT, he/she should refrain from evaluating that particular 

transaction. The compliance officer or internal auditor may sit as resource person.  
 
PURPOSE  

 
The Related Party Transactions Committee shall be responsible for the continuing 

identification and review of existing relations between and among businesses and counterparties, and 

for ensuring that RPTs are processed in the regular course of business, and are priced fairly.  
 
FUNCTIONS  

 
1) Evaluate on an ongoing basis existing relations between and among businesses and 

counterparties to ensure that all related parties are continuously identified, RPTs are 

monitored, and subsequent changes in relationships with counterparties (from non-related to 
related and vice versa) are captured. Related parties, RPTs, and changes in relationships shall 
be reflected in the relevant reports to the board of directors and regulators/supervisors.  

 
2) Evaluate all material RPTs to ensure that these are not undertaken on more favorable 

economic terms (e.g., price, commissions, interest rates, fees, tenor, collateral requirement) 
to such related parties than similar transactions with non-related parties under similar 
circumstances and that no corporate or business resources of the bank are misappropriated 

or misapplied, and to determine any potential reputational risk issues that may arise as a 
result of or in connection with the transactions. In evaluating RPTs, the Committee shall take 
into account, among others, the following:  

 
(a) The related party’s relationship to the bank and interest in the transaction;  
(b) The material facts of the proposed RPT, including the proposed aggregate value of 

such transaction;  
(c) The benefits to the BSFI of the proposed RPT;  
(d) The availability of other sources of comparable products or services; and  

(e) An assessment of whether the proposed RPT is on terms and conditions that are 
comparable to the terms generally available to an unrelated party under similar 
circumstances. The bank shall have in place an effective price discovery system and 

have exercised due diligence in determining a fair price for RPTs. All RPTs that are 
considered material based on bank’s internal policies shall be endorsed by the RPT 
committee to the board of directors for approval.  
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3) Ensure that appropriate disclosure is made, and/or information is provided to regulating and 
supervising authorities relating to the bank’s RPT exposures, and policies on conflicts of 

interest or potential conflicts of interest. The disclosure shall include information on the 
approach to managing material conflicts of interest that are inconsistent with such policies; 
and conflicts that could arise as a result of the bank’s affiliation or transactions with other 

related parties.  
 

4) Report to the board of directors on a regular basis, the status and aggregate exposures to 

each related party as well as the total amount of exposures to all related parties.  
 

5) Ensure that transactions with related parties, including write-off of exposures, are subject to 
periodic independent review or audit process.  

 

6) Oversee the implementation of the system for identifying, monitoring, measuring, controlling, 
and reporting RPTs, including the periodic review of RPT policies and procedures.  
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

MEMBERSHIP 

 

 This is handled by a director who is a member of the Executive Committee. 

 

PURPOSE 

 

 The Corporate Governance Committee shall assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its 

corporate governance responsibilities.  

 

FUNCTIONS 

 

1) Reviews and evaluates the qualifications of all persons nominated to the Board as well as  
those nominated to other positions requiring appointment by the Board of Directors; 

 

2) Ensures the Board’s effectiveness and due observance of corporate governance principles and 
guidelines; 

 

a. Oversees the periodic performance evaluation of the Board and its committees and 

executive management and conduct an annual self-evaluation of its performance. 

 

b. Coordinates with external facilitators in carrying out board assessment, within the 

frequency approved by the entire Board.  

 

c. Decides whether or not a director is able to and has been adequately carrying out 

his/her duties as director based on its own assessment or the assessment of external 

facilitators, bearing in mind the director’s contribution and performance (competence, 

candor, attendance, preparedness and participation). 

 
3) Makes recommendations to the Board regarding the continuing education of directors,  

assignment to board committees, succession plan for the board members and senior  officers, 
and their remuneration commensurate with corporate and individual  performance; 

 

4)  Decides the manner by which the Board’s performance shall be evaluated and propose an 
objective performance criteria duly approved by the Board; 
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5) Recommends a system of awards for exceptional and/or highly commendable performance of 

employees. 
 
GENDER AND DEVELOPMENT SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

MEMBERSHIP 

 

 This is handled by a director who is a member of the Executive Committee. 

 

FUNCTIONS 

 

1) Conducts gender analysis; 
2) Develops and recommends Gender and Development and Gender Equality policies 

and programs/activities/projects to the Board. 

3) Monitors and assesses progress in the implementation of GAD 
programs/activities/projects towards achieving GE; 

4) Submits report to the Board; and 

5) Provides directional guidance 
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Directors Attendance at Board and Committee Meetings 

 
For the Year 2022 

 
 

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 

Name Position Qualification Age Nationality 

Cempron, Maximiliano Chairman LLB 90 Filipino 

Evardone, Francisco Vice Chairman LLB 78 Filipino 
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Bungabong, Georgia Secretary BS Agriculture 63 Filipino 

Durango, Emmanuel  Treasurer BSC-Banking and 

Finance 

52 Filipino 

Calacat, Juvie President BS Accountancy 41 Filipino 

 

The executive officers of the bank shall be the Chairman of the Board, Vice-Chairman, Secretary, 

President and the Treasurer. 

 

1. Chairman  

 
The Chairman shall see to it that all orders and resolutions of the board of directors, of the 

Monetary Board of the Bangko Sentral Ng Pilipinas, and all rules and regulations and circulars of the 

Cooperative Development Authority governing cooperatives pertaining to and applicable to 

cooperative banks are carried out into effect, and shall exercise such other powers and perform such 

other duties as are prescribed for the office of the Chairman of the Board. 

 

2. Vice-Chairman 

 

The Vice-Chairman shall exercise the powers, authority and duties of the Chairman of the board 

during the absence or inability of the latter to act. 

 

3. Secretary 

 

He/she shall keep the records of the bank and shall have custody of the corporate seal. He/she 

shall, in addition, exercise such powers and perform such other duties as are prescribed for the office 

of the Secretary or usually pertaining to that office, and other duties prescribed from time to time by 

the Board of Directors. 

 

4. Treasurer 
 

He/she shall have the custody of all funds, securities, and other assets of the bank, shall keep full 

and complete record of all its assets and liabilities and shall make reports with respect thereto as may 

be required by the Board of Directors. He/she shall, in addition, exercise such other powers and 

perform such other duties as are prescribed for the office of the Treasurer and all other duties usually 

pertaining to that office and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors. 

5.  President 

     The president shall be the chief executive officer of the cooperative bank. He/she shall be the 

overall-in-charge for the management of the business and affairs of the cooperative bank governed 

by the strategic direction and risk appetite approved by the board of directors. He/she shall be 

primarily accountable to the board of directors in championing the desired conduct and behavior, 

implementing strategies and in promoting the long-term interest of the cooperative bank. He/she has 

the power to recommend/appoint and remove subordinate employees of the cooperative bank to the 

board of directors.       

PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT PROGRAM 

 

       Board and Senior Management Assessment is a strategic opportunity in managing multiple 
priorities and stakeholders and making plans for positive change and enhanced performance. 



41 | P a g e  

 

Regulators and other policy making institutions are also considering assessments to determine 
whether the boards, its committees and senior management are functioning effectively. This 

assessment should not simply serve as a compliance exercise. Ongoing review and assessment of 
board and senior management performance can contribute to organizational, board, individual 
director and senior officers’ improvements. 

 
The objectives of this assessment are: 

1. to recognize and correct corporate governance problems 

2. to recognize the Board and Senior Management as strategic assets 
3. to contribute significantly to performance improvement 

4. to increase clarity of roles and responsibilities 
5. to improve teamwork 
6. to increase accountability 

7. to improve decision-making 
8. to enhance communication 
9. to increase efficiency in operations 

 

       The assessments shall be conducted by the Corporate Governance Committee, the HR Officer 
who represents the Management, to be assisted by the CO, IA and the bank’s legal counsel. 

 
      The scope of this assessment includes the Board, individual directors, and committees, the CO, IA 
and Senior Management who have frequent interaction with the Board. 

 
       The assessment is conducted through combination of written questionnaire, checklist and open 
answers. The legal counsel shall tabulate the result and will convene with the rest of the assessment 

group to discuss the result and formulate recommendations for improvement which shall be reported 
to the Board for further discussion and implementation of action plans. 

 
       The assessment shall be conducted annually, within the month of January, for the immediately 
preceding year. 

 
       The assessment report and documentation shall be in the custody of the Corporate Secretary 
and shall observe the record retention policy of the bank. 

 
       This policy shall take effect after the approval of the Board of Directors and shall be subjected 
for review every 2 years by the assessment team referred to in Section III of the Assessment policy. 
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Form I 
     BOARD SELF-ASSESSMENT FOR THE YEAR 
     

 
Please check your answer 

  

5               
Very 
Good   

4                  
Good                   

3        
Average        

2                       
Fair 

1                       
Poor 

1. The Board knows and understands the bank's  belief's, values,   
 

  
 

  

    philosophy, vision, mission, strategic plan and business plan and   
 

  
 

  

    reflects this understanding on key issues throughout the year.           

2. The Board has and follows procedures for effective meetings.   
 

  
 

  

            

3. Board meetings are conducted in a manner that ensures open   
 

  
 

  

    communication, meaningful participation, and timely resolution   
 

  
 

  

    of issues.   
 

  
 

  

            

4. Board members receive timely and accurate minutes, advance   
 

  
 

  

    written agenda and meeting notices, and clear and concise   
 

  
 

  

    background material to prepare in advance of meetings.   
 

  
 

  

            

5. Board members evaluate Board's performance on a periodic basis.   
 

  
 

  

            

6. The Board reviews, adopts annual capital and operating budgets   
 

  
 

  

    and monitors regularly throughout the year.   
 

  
 

  

            

7. The Board monitors cash flow, profitability, net revenue and   
 

  
 

  

    expenses, productivity, and indicators to ensure that the bank   
 

  
 

  

    performs as projected.   
 

  
 

  

            

8. The Board monitors bank's performance with the industry   
 

  
 

  

    comparative data.   
 

  
 

  

            

9. Board members stay abreast of issues and trends affecting the   
 

  
 

  

    bank, and use this information to assess and guide the bank's   
 

  
 

  

    performance not just year to year, but in the long term.   
 

  
 

  

            

10. Board members comprehend and respect the difference   
 

  
 

  

    between the Board's policy-making role and the President's   
 

  
 

  

    management role.   
 

  
 

  

            

11. The Board acts to help the President by setting a clear   
 

  
 

  

      and well understood policy.   
 

  
 

  

            

12. Board's goals, expectations, and concerns are honestly   
 

  
 

  

     communicated to the President.   
 

  
 

  

            

13. The Board is actively engaged in succession planning for the   
 

  
 

  

     Executive officers of the bank.           

      Ranking of answers shall be from 1 - Not Performing to 5 - Outstanding 

Performance.         

Comments: 

     

      Accomplished by: _________________________________________ Date: _______________________ 
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Form II 

DIRECTOR'S  SELF-ASSESSMENT FOR THE YEAR 
     

 
Please check your answer 

  

5               
Very 
Good   

4                  
Good                   

3        
Average        

2                       
Fair 

1                       
Poor 

 
  

 
  

 
  

1. I am fully prepared for Board meetings.           
            

2. I devote an appropriate amount of time to the issues and the needs   

 

  

 

  

    of the Bank to be able to make informed decisions.   

 

  

 

  

            

3. I often speak my mind during meetings, even if the views are   

 

  

 

  

    different from other Directors.   

 

  

 

  

            

4. I encourage contributions from other Board or Committee   
 

  
 

  

     members.   
 

  
 

  
            

5. I take tough, constructive stands at Board or Committee   
 

  
 

  

     meetings when necessary.   
 

  
 

  

            

6. I ensure that the Board or Committee makes decisions.   

 

  

 

  

            

7. I make effective contributions at Board or Committee meetings.   
 

  
 

  

            

8. I derive satisfaction and a feeling of accomplishment through   

 

  

 

  

     serving in the Board of Directors.   

 

  

 

  

            

9. I understand the Bank's industry and markets.   
 

  
 

  

            

10. I challenge the strategy and direction when necessary.   

 

  

 

  

            

11. I am able to remain objective, even in the face of the most difficult    
 

  
 

  

    decisions.   
 

  
 

  
            

12. When appropriate, I take the initiative to obtain relevant   
 

  
 

  

    corporate information.   
 

  
 

  
            

13. I maintain discretion and confidentiality with communications   
 

  
 

  

     received.   
 

  
 

  

 
          

14. I have sufficient expertise to evaluate strategies, policies, market    

 

  

 

  

     development and industry-specific idiosyncrasies from a higher    

 

  

 

  

     long-term oriented level.   

 

  

 

  

            

15. I am a valuable resource in fulfilling the accountabilities of the   
 

  
 

  

     Board.   
 

  
 

  
            

16. I confront conflict and help manage it constructively and   
 

  
 

  

     productively.   
 

  
 

  

 
          

17. When I am absent from Board meetings, I gather enough    

 

  

 

  

    information about the meeting to stay sufficiently informed.   

 

  

 

  

            

18. I initiate contact with the Chairman when appropriate.   

 

  

 

  

 

          

19. I have personal contact with senior management.   
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20. I make my individual expertise availbale when called upon by   

 

  

 

  

     management.   

 

  

 

  

            

As a committee member of:   
 

  
 

  

            

Audit Committee:   

 

  

 

  

    

 

  

 

  

1. Participate in the review and approval of the audit scope and    

 

  

 

  

   frequency.            

2. Review the effectiveness of the institution's internal controls,    
 

  
 

  

   including financial, operational and compliance controls, risk   
 

  
 

  

   management.           

3. Review loans to capture and identify existing or potential   

 

  

 

  

   problem loans by assessing the adequacy of the credit   

 

  

 

  

   evaluation and appropriate reserves.           

4. Attend committee meetings and participate in the discussion.   
 

  
 

  

5. Oversee the implementation of the risk management plan.           

6. Identify and evaluate exposures and assess the probability of    

 

  

 

  

    each risk.   

 

  

 

  

   

 

  

 

  

Corporate Governance Sub-Committee   

 

  

 

  

1. Review and evaluate the qualifications of all persons nominated   

 

  

 

  

   to the Board as well as those nominated to other positions   

 

  

 

  

   requiring appointment by the Board of Directors.           

2. Make recommendations to the Board regarding the continuing   
 

  
 

  

   education of directors, assignment to board committees,   
 

  
 

  

   succession plan for the board members and senior officers, and   
 

  
 

  

   their remuneration commensurate with corporate and individual   
 

  
 

  

  Performance           

3. Attend committee meetings and participate in the discussion.   

 

  

 

  

            

Related Party Transactions (RPT) Sub-Committee      

1. Refrained from evaluating a particular transaction where I have a 
conflict of interest in a particular Related Party Transaction      

2. Helped ensure that all related party transactions are continuously 
identified, RPTs are monitored on a on-going basis, and 
subsequent changes in relationships with counterparties ( from 
related to non-related and vice versa) are captured      

      

Gender and Development Sub-Committee      

1) Conducts gender analysis;      

2) Develops and recommends Gender and Development and Gender 

Equality policies and programs/activities/projects to the Board. 

     

3) Monitors and assesses progress in the implementation of GAD 
programs/activities/projects towards achieving GE;      

4) Submits report to the Board; and      

5)   Provides directional guidance      

Education/HR Sub-Committee  
1)  Prepares a comprehensive education and training plan to be 

attended/participated in by      

2)  Conducts a province-wide information campaign of the services 
rendered by the bank.      

3)  Strengthens employer-employee relations and consolidate efforts 
for the continued viable operations of the bank      
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4)  Enhances personal and professional growth and development of 
the staff through continuing human resource development 
initiatives      

5)  Helps in the recruitment and hiring of employees, their 
promotion, transfer, and performance appraisal for 
recommendation to the Board      

      

Executive Committee      

1) Acts on urgent matters when the Board is not in session;      

2) Prepares agenda for board meetings; and      

3) Performs other functions as authorized by the Board of Directors.      

      

Rating: 
     SA- Strongly Agree D - Disagree 

  A – Agree SD - Strongly Disagree 
  N - Neither Agree nor Disagree 

     

      Name of Director: __________________________________________ 
     Signature: ________________________________________________ Date:  _______________________ 

Committee: _______________________________________________ 
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Assessment of the Related Party Transaction (RPT) Sub-Committee 

Name of Director Evaluated  

Assessment Accomplished by  

Date Accomplished  

 
5               

Very 
Good   

4                  
Good                   

3        
Average        

2                       
Fair 

1                       
Poor 

3. Refrained from evaluating a particular transaction where I have 
a conflict of interest in a particular Related Party Transaction 

     

4. Helped ensure that all related party transactions are 
continuously identified, RPTs are monitored on a on-going 
basis, and subsequent changes in relationships with 
counterparties ( from related to non-related and vice versa) are 
captured 

     

5. Ensure that related parties, RPTs and changes in relationships 
shall be reflected in the relevant reports to the BOD and 
regulators/supervisors 

     

6. Evaluated all material RPTs to ensure that these are not 
undertaken on more favorable economic terms to such related 
parties than similar transactions with non-related parties under 
similar circumstances 

     

7. Helped ensure that no corporate or business resources of the 
bank are misappropriated or misapplied in connections with RPT 

     

8. Helped determine any particular reputational risk issues that 
may arise as a result in connection with the RPT 

     

9. Helped ensure all RPTs that are considered material based on 
the bank’s internal policies are endorsed by the RPT committee 
to the BOD for approval 

     

10. Helped ensure that appropriate disclosure is made, and or 
information is provided to regulating and supervising 
authorities relating to the bank’s RPT exposures 

     

11. Helped ensure that a report to the BOD is made on a regular 
basis, the status and aggregate exposures to each related 
party as well as the total amount of exposures to all related 
parties 

     

12. Helped ensure that all transactions with related parties, 
including write-off of exposures, are subject to periodic 
independent review or audit process 

     

13. Participated in the periodic review of RPT policies and 
procedures 

     

14. Helped in overseeing the implementation of the system for 
identifying, monitoring, measuring, controlling and reporting 
RPTs 

     

15. Helped ensure that at all times the RPT committee shall be 
entirely composed of independent directors and non-executive 
directors, with majority of the members comprised by 
independent directors 
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Assessment of the Risk Oversight Sub-Committee 

Name of Director Evaluated  

Assessment Accomplished by  

Date Accomplished  

 
5               

Very 

Good   

4                  

Good                   

3        

Average        

2                      

Fair 

1                        

Poor 

1. Helped ensure that the Committee shall be composed of at least 

three members of the BOD, majority of whom shall be independent 

directors including the Chairperson 
     

2. Helped assess that the Committee chairperson shall not be the 

Chairman of the Board, or any other Board level Committee      

3.  Advised the Board of Directors on the bank’s overall current and 

future risk appetite, oversee the senior management’s adherence 
to the risk appetite statement, and report on the state of the risk 
culture of the bank. 

     

4. Overseeing the enterprise risk management framework      

5. Ensure that there is quarterly review of the effectiveness of the risk 

management systems and recovery plans      

6. Ensure corrective actions are promptly implemented to address risk 

concerns 
     

7. Helped ensure that the current and emerging risk exposures are 

consistent with the Bank’s strategic direction and over-all risk 

appetite 
     

8. Has assessed the overall adherence to the risk appetite based on 

the quality of compliance with the limit structure, policies and 

procedures relating to risk management and control, and 

performance management, among others 

     

9. Helped in the appointment/selection, remuneration and dismissal of 

the Risk Officer.      

10. Helped ensure that the risk management function has adequate 

resources      

11. Helped oversee the risk taking activities of the bank 
     

12. Have physically attended in all committee meeting. 
     

13. Have actively participated in the approval, review, and update of 

the Charter at least annually or whenever there are significant 

changes therein? 
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Assessment of the Corporate Governance Sub-Committee 

Name of Director Evaluated  

Assessment Accomplished by  

Date Accomplished  

 
5               

Very Good   
4                  

Good                   
3        

Average        
2                     

Fair 
1                       

Poor 

1. Have physically attended in all committee meeting.  
     

2. Have participated in the approval and overseeing the 

implementation of the risk governance framework of the 

bank. 
     

3. Have participated in defining appropriate governance 
structure and practices for its own work and ensure that 

such practices are followed and periodically reviewed. 
     

4. Have actively participated in the approval, review, and 
update of the Charter at least annually or whenever there 

are significant changes therein? 
     

5. Helped ensure that the committee maintained appropriate 

records that documents fulfillment of its responsibilities and 

facilitate the assessment of effective performance of our 

function? 

     

6. Participated in the discussion of risk management and 
corporate governance matters in board meetings. 

     

7. Participated in overseeing the nomination process for 

members of the board of directors and for positions 

appointed by the board of directors. 
     

8. Helped in the establishment and ensure implementation of 

policy for on - boarding orientation program for first time 

directors and annual continuing education for all directors. 
     

9. Participated in overseeing the periodic evaluation of 
contribution and performance of the board of directors, 

board level committee and senior management. 
     

10. Helped ensured that the remuneration  and other 

incentives policy is aligned with operating and risk culture as 

well as strategic and financial interests of the Bank, 

promotes good performance and conveys acceptable risk 

taking behaviour defined under its Code of Ethics 

     

11. Helped promote good performance and conveys acceptable 

risk taking behaviour defined under its Code of Ethics      

12. Helped ensured compliance with legal and regulatory 

requirements.      
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AUDIT COMMITTEE ASSESSMENT FORM 

Name of Audit Committee 

Member : 

 Accomplished by:  

Date Accomplished:  

Signature:  

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
5 

Very 

Good 

4 
Good 

 

3 

Average 

2 
Fair 

 

1 
Poor 

 

1. Ensures that the reporting  framework enables 

the generation and preparation of accurate and 
comprehensive information and reports; 

     

2. Ensures that periodic assessment of the internal 

control system is conducted to identify the 
weaknesses and evaluates its robustness 
considering the bank's risk profile and strategic 

direction; 
         > High risk               – Monthly 
         > Moderate Risk    – Quarterly/Semi 

                                               Annually 
         > Low Risk               -   Annually 

  

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

3. Responsible for the appointment/ selection, 

remuneration, and dismissal of internal auditor; 

     

4. Holds a sufficient number of meetings and such 

meetings are duly minuted and adequately 
documented 

     

5. Plans meetings of adequate length to allow the 

committee to accomplish its agenda, with time to 
discuss issues fully 

     

6. Ensures that the scope of the internal audit covers 
the review of the effectiveness of the bank’s 

internal controls, including financial, operational 
and compliance controls, and risk management 
system; 

     

7. Ensures that senior management is taking 
necessary corrective actions in a timely manner to 

address the weaknesses, noncompliance with 
policies, laws, and regulations and other issues 
identified by auditors and other control functions; 

     

8. Investigates any matter within its terms of 

reference, has full access to and cooperation by 
management, and has full discretion to invite any 
director or executive officer to attend its meetings 

     

9. Establishes and maintains mechanisms by which 
officers and staff shall, in confidence, raise 

concerns about possible improprieties or 
malpractices in matters of financial reporting & 
internal control, auditing or other issues to 

persons or entities that have the power to take 
corrective action; 

     



50 | P a g e  

 

10. Has at least one member who possesses the 

requisite level of financial reporting knowledge or 
acquires such knowledge soon after joining the 
committee 

     

11. Has a sufficient independent voice, bringing 
requisite knowledge, abilities and skills to the 

table 

     

12. Maintains a productive relationship with the 

executive board, maintaining open lines of 
communication and an ongoing dialogue 

     

13. Builds constructive professional relationship with 
both internal and external auditors, putting them 

at their ease when bringing up sensitive issues 

     

14. Discusses the performance of external auditors, 

encouraging candid discussions with them based 
on set criteria, including further improvements, in 
order to be in a position to recommend the 

external auditors for contract renewal 

     

15. Reviews and approves the engagement contract 

with the external auditor and ensures that the 
scope of audit cover areas specifically prescribed 

by the Bangko Sentral and other regulators; 

     

16. Discusses with the executive board and the 

external auditor any significant accounting and 
reporting issues during the period  

     

17. Challenges areas involving management 

judgement, significant accounting accruals, 
provisions or other estimates that have a material 

impact on the financial statements 

     

18. Discusses the audit results with the external 

auditor, assesses how the executive board 
handles the weaknesses identified and the 
recommendations to be made by the external 

auditor 

     

19. Annually evaluates the performance of the 

committee as a whole and its individual members, 
and takes decisive corrective action, if necessary 

     

20. Considers whether there are emerging issues that 

will demand its attention going forward and is 
proactive in positioning itself to deal with them 
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Cooperative Bank of Bohol 
Assessment of the Executive Committee 

For the year  

Name of Director Evaluated  

Assessment Accomplished by  

Date Accomplished  

 
5               

Very Good   
4                  

Good                   
3        

Average        
2                     

Fair 
1                       

Poor 

1. Acts on urgent matters when the Board is not in session.       

2. Prepares agenda for board meetings.      

3. Actively performs other functions as authorized by the 
Board of Directors. 

     

4. Helps provide organizational direction and acting on 
behalf of the Board. 

     

5. Helps establish and maintain good governance oversight.      

6. Enhances communication between the Board, 
Committees and Management. 

     

7. Helps in the recruitment and hiring of employees, their 
promotion, transfer, and performance appraisal for 
recommendation to the Board. 

     

8. Helps in providing members with current updates in 
cooperative development and opportunities. 

     

9. Provide activities/experiences that build positive 
relationship and develop both good learning skills and 
social skills.  

     

10. Refrained from evaluating a particular transaction where 
I have a conflict of interest in a particular Related Party 
Transaction 

     

11. Helped ensure that all related party transactions are 
continuously identified, RPTs are monitored on a on-
going basis, and subsequent changes in relationships 
with counterparties ( from related to non-related and 
vice versa) are captured 

     

12. Evaluated all material RPTs to ensure that these are not 
undertaken on more favorable economic terms to such 
related parties than similar transactions with non-related 
parties under similar circumstances 

     

13. Helped ensure that no corporate or business resources 
of the bank are misappropriated or misapplied in 
connections with RPT 

     

14. Helped ensure that appropriate disclosure is made, and 
or information is provided to regulating and supervising 
authorities relating to the bank’s RPT exposures 

     

15. Helped ensure that a report to the BOD is made on a 
regular basis, the status and aggregate exposures to 
each related party as well as the total amount of 
exposures to all related parties 

     

16. Helped ensure that all transactions with related parties, 
including write-off of exposures, are subject to periodic 
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independent review or audit process 

17. Participated in the periodic review of RPT policies and 
procedures 

     

18. Conducts gender analysis      

19. Develops and recommends Gender and Development 
and Gender Equality policies and 
programs/activities/projects to the Board. 

     

20. Monitors and assesses progress in the implementation 
of GAD programs/activities/projects towards achieving 
GE 
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Cooperative Bank of Bohol 
Assessment of the Election Committee 

For the year  

Assessment Accomplished by  

Date Accomplished  

 
5               

Very Good   
4                  

Good                   
3        

Average        
2                     

Fair 
1                       

Poor 

1) Annually propose an overall timetable for elections 
to the Board, to be approved by the Board. 

     

2) Establish procedures for electing/appointing 
Directors, to be approved by the Board. 

     

3) Post ballots to the member constituencies 
authorized to elect Directors. 

     

4) Monitor the counting of ballots and certify the 
results of the Member voting. 

     

5) Monitor any challenge period and manage any 
election challenge according to procedures 
established by the Board. 

     

6) Publicly announce the results of the Member 
election and appointment by the Board. 

     

7) Report the results of the election to the Board at the 
Annual General Assembly Meeting. 

     

8) The reporting of the committee to the Board is 
sufficient. 

     

9) Makes periodical reporting to the Board along with 
its suggestions and recommendations. 

     

10) Gives effective suggestions and recommendations.      

11) Regularly reviews its mandate and performance.      

12) Meetings are conducted in a manner that ensures 
open communication and meaningful participation. 
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Cooperative Bank of Bohol 
Assessment of the Credit Committee 

For the year  

Name of Director Evaluated  

Assessment Accomplished by  

Date Accomplished  

 
5               

Very Good   
4                  

Good                   
3        

Average        
2                     

Fair 
1                       

Poor 

1. Reviews and ensures completeness and accuracy of the 
loan documents submitted by the Loans Officer.  

     

2. Ascertains the truth of the purpose of the loan.      

3. Ensures/ascertains whether collaterals offered are clean 
and appropriate. 

     

4. Reviews appraisal of collaterals made by the Appraiser.      

5. Checks coverage, expiry and renewal dates of the loan 
applied for. 

     

6. Checks existence of a right of way.      

7. Determines comprehensiveness of insurance coverage, 
dates of renewal and expiry. 

     

8. Decides to grant the loan after at least 80% degree of 
certainty on the viability of the loan has been attained. 

     

9. Keeps a complete file of the minutes of its meeting.      

10. Identifies other creditors of the client.      

11. Helped promote good performance and conveys 
acceptable risk taking behavior defined under its Code of 
Ethics 

     

12. Helped ensured compliance with legal and regulatory 
requirements. 

     

13. Ensures the conduct of background check to determine 
whether the prospective borrower is a good payor. 

     

14. Ascertains whether the prospective borrower is not 
heavily indebted to other banks or lending institutions. 

     

15. Offers to prospective borrowers’ affordable plan of loan 
payment. 

     

16. Approves loan applications with loanable amount above 
P850,000.00. 

     

17. Recommends to the Board loan applications above 
P1,000,000.00. 

     

18. Campaigns for more deposits and loan clients.      

19. Approves and submits renewal of loans to the Board for 
confirmation. 

     

20. Monitors the accomplishment of the collectors and 
propose measures/activities to improve/increase collections 
by the Collectors.  
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Cooperative Bank of Bohol 
Assessment of the Ethics Committee 

For the year  

Assessment Accomplished by  

Date Accomplished  

 
5               

Very Good   
4                  

Good                   
3        

Average        
2                     

Fair 
1                       

Poor 

1) Annually propose an overall timetable for elections 
to the Board, to be approved by the Board. 

     

2) Establish procedures for electing/appointing 
Directors, to be approved by the Board. 

     

3) Post ballots to the member constituencies 
authorized to elect Directors. 

     

4) Monitor the counting of ballots and certify the 
results of the Member voting. 

     

5) Monitor any challenge period and manage any 
election challenge according to procedures 
established by the Board. 

     

6) Publicly announce the results of the Member 
election and appointment by the Board. 

     

7) Report the results of the election to the Board at the 
Annual General Assembly Meeting. 

     

8) The reporting of the committee to the Board is 
sufficient. 

     

9) Makes periodical reporting to the Board along with 
its suggestions and recommendations. 

     

10) Gives effective suggestions and recommendations.      

11) Regularly reviews its mandate and performance.      

12) Meetings are conducted in a manner that ensures 
open communication and meaningful participation. 
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Cooperative Bank of Bohol 
Assessment of the Mediation and Conciliation Committee 

For the year  

Assessment Accomplished by  

Date Accomplished  

 
5               

Very Good   
4                  

Good                   
3        

Average        
2                     

Fair 
1                       

Poor 

1) Annually propose an overall timetable for elections 
to the Board, to be approved by the Board. 

     

2) Establish procedures for electing/appointing 
Directors, to be approved by the Board. 

     

3) Post ballots to the member constituencies 
authorized to elect Directors. 

     

4) Monitor the counting of ballots and certify the 
results of the Member voting. 

     

5) Monitor any challenge period and manage any 
election challenge according to procedures 
established by the Board. 

     

6) Publicly announce the results of the Member 
election and appointment by the Board. 

     

7) Report the results of the election to the Board at the 
Annual General Assembly Meeting. 

     

8) The reporting of the committee to the Board is 
sufficient. 

     

9) Makes periodical reporting to the Board along with 
its suggestions and recommendations. 

     

10) Gives effective suggestions and recommendations.      

11) Regularly reviews its mandate and performance.      

12) Meetings are conducted in a manner that ensures 
open communication and meaningful participation. 
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Cooperative Bank of Bohol 
Assessment of the President 

For the year  
 

Name of President Evaluated  

Assessment Accomplished by  

Date Accomplished  

 
5               

Very Good   
4                  

Good                   
3        

Average        
2                       

Fair 
1                       

Poor 

1. Promotes the desired conduct and behavior, implementing 
strategies and in promoting the long-term interest of the bank. 

     

2. Sets the tone of governance from the top. Promotes the good 
governance practices within the bank by ensuring that policies 
on governance as approved by the board of directors are 
consistently adopted across the bank. 

     

3. Ensures that bank’s activities and operations are consistent with 
the bank’s strategic objectives, risk strategy, corporate values 
and policies as approved by the board of directors. 

     

4. Effectively delegated duties to the staff and oversees the 
performance of these delegated duties and responsibilities. 

     

5. Established a management structure that promotes 
accountability and transparency. 

     

6. Has established measurable standards, initiatives and specific 
responsibilities and accountabilities for each bank personnel. 

     

7. Promotes and strengthens checks and balances systems in the 
bank. 

     

8. Promotes sound internal controls.      

10.  Avoids activities that shall compromise the effective dispense 
of his/her functions.      

11.  Has given due recognition to the importance of the internal 
audit, compliance and external audit functions. 

     

12.  Communicating effectively, on behalf of the company, with 
shareholders, government entities, and the public. 

     

13. Leads the development of the bank's short- and long-term 
strategies. 

     

14. Ensures staff and Board have sufficient and up-to-date 
information. 

     

15. Manages well the bank’s financial and physical resources.      

16. Recommends yearly budget for Board approval and prudently 
manages bank's resources within those budget guidelines 
according to current laws and regulations. 
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Employee’s Performance Appraisal 

 

This Employee’s Performance Appraisal is a process of evaluating employee’s performance. The 

rating of an employee will serve as a basis for promotion and giving of rewards.  

 

For rank and file employees, performance appraisal shall be conducted every six (6) months. 

There shall be three (3) raters: employee, immediate supervisor (work related)/Administrative Officer 

(bank activities related and punctuality) and Branch Manager. The average rating of the three raters will be 

the employee’s rating for the semester. 

 

For supervisory position, the performance appraisal shall be conducted annually. There shall be 

two (2) raters: employee and the Branch Manager. The average rating of the two raters shall be the 

employee’s rating for the year. 

 

For officers, branch managers and department heads, the performance appraisal shall be 

conducted annually. There shall be two (2) raters: employee and the President. The average rating of the 

two raters shall be the employee’s rating for the year. 

 

Employees who are rated NI shall be called by the Administrative Officer for an one on one 

dialogue.  
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COMPETENCY- BASED PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT 

Name of Employee: _____________________________  Branch /Dept.:_________________ 

Position: ________________________________  Period Covered: ________________ 

Date of Regularization: __________________________  Frequency:            - Semi Annual 

Date of Current Position Assumption: ___________________                           - Annually 

 

Guidelines: 

1. The Performance Appraisal Form has been designed to allow the Evaluator to accurately assess the 

performance of his/her covered personnel.  It is important that the Evaluator shall avoid subjectivity in 

the rating process. Your rating shall reflect your objective evaluation of the employee’s performance 

during the covered period. 

2. Ascertain the critical factor or factors in the performance appraisal relevant to the position being rated. 

As an employee’s immediate head, you possess an in-depth knowledge of the job and therefore, would 

be in a better position to pinpoint such critical factors with utmost objectivity. 

3. A Performance Guide Matrix as follows: 

 Weighted Average Rating  - Equivalent 

  96% - 100%  - Outstanding 

  91% - 95%  - Very Satisfactory 

  86% - 90%  - Satisfactory  

  75% -85%  - Needs Improvement 

  74% and below  - Poor 

Rating Summary: 

Competencies Weight 
(%) 

Sup. BM Dept. 
Head 

Independent 
Officer  

Total 
(Average) 

President & 
CEO 

Weighted 
Average 
Rating 

I. Attitude and Behavior 25%        

II. Personality, 
Attendance and 
Punctuality 

15%        

III. Effectiveness in the 
Exercise/Delivery of 
Duties and 
Responsibilities 

45%        

IV. Audit and 
Compliance 

15%        

TOTAL 100%        
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II.  
 

PERSONALITY, ATTENDANCE & PUNCTUALITY (15%) DESIRED 
RATING 

SELF 
RATING 

SUPER

VISOR 

BM 

 

DEP

T 

Head 

A The proper use of uniform during specific days. 2     
B Good grooming at all times. 2     
C Begins working on time 2     
D Proper notification of superiors in case of absence and 

accomplish the leave of absence form 
2     

E Ensures work responsibilities are covered when absent 2     
F Willingness to extend after office hours due to work demand 2     
G Without any Disciplinary Action (due to tardiness /AWOL) 

for the period/ With Disciplinary Action {due TO tardiness / 

AWOL) for the period 

3     

 TOTAL   15.00     

 

 

 
 

     
 
 
 

I. 

ATTITUDE/BEHAVIOR (25%) 
 

DESIRED 
RATING 

SELF 

RATING 
SUPER 

VISOR 

BM  DEPT. 

Head 

 

A 
Learning-Always open to learn and expand one's knowledge. 
Constant want to improve and get better at performing tasks so as 
to not get complacent and left behind. 

 

2.5 

    

B Excellence- Strives for quality output/results and does not settle for 
mediocrity.  
 
 
 

2.5     

 
C 

Accountability. Takes ownership of all responsibilities and honors 
commitments. Takes responsibility of one's actions or lack of action 
and that of his/her staff. 

2.5     

 

D 
Dynamism· energetic, full of energy and full of new ideas 
marked by usually continuous and productive activity or 
change. 

 

2.5 

    

 

E 
Efficiency ·Ensures optimal performance by using the best approach 
I method in completing tasks. Ensures best utilization of one's time 
and energy. 

 

2.5 

    

F Values and Ethics-.  Fostering and supporting the principles and 
values of the management.   Interacts with customers by treating 
them with utmost importance. Has no record of customer 
complaints. 

 

2.5 
    

 
G 

Respect - Respect for the members of the Board of Directors, 
officers, peers and clients.  Shows consideration for one another, 
recognizes each other's differences and understands customer's 
needs and expectations 

 

2.5 
    

 
H 

Integrity & Honesty· Adheres to the moral standards and acts with 
the company's mission, vision, core values, policies and procedures 
even during adverse situations to promote what is good and right. Is 
genuine and real with one's words and actions. Deals well with 
ethical and confidential issues; 

 

2.5 
    

 

I 
Professionalism· Maintains a positive outlook and shows courtesy 
and consideration to others. Can easily adjust to any circumstance 
without losing one's composure. Maintains professional 
appearance, personal care and hygiene. 

 

2.5 
    

J Initiative· Does more than is required/expected in a job, identifies 
and acts upon new opportunities to enhance results, minimizes 
problems without needing to be asked. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
2.5 

    

  
TOTAL 

      
      25.00 
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III.  

 
EFFECTIVENESS IN THE EXERCISE/DELIVERY OF 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES (45%) 

DESIRED 
RATING 

SELF 

RATIN

G 

SUPER 

VISOR 

BM 
 

DEPT. 

Head 

A Diligence in the exercise/delivery of duties and responsibilities  

 
5     

B Adapts to changes in the work environment 

 
5     

C Strong desire for self-improvements & self-development 

 
5     

D Self-reliance in performing one’s duties 

 
5     

E Keeps abreast of current developments 

 
5     

F Openness to counsel from superiors and peers 

 
5     

G Effectively managing one’s time and resources to ensure that 

work is completed efficiently. 

 

5     

H Maintaining stable performance under pressure or opposition 

(such as time pressure or job ambiguity); handling stress in a 

manner that is acceptable to others and to the organization. 

 

5     

I Has accomplished the required number of bank referrals, using 

appropriate interpersonal styles and communication methods to 

gain acceptance of a product, service, or idea from prospects 

and clients. 

5     

 TOTAL 45.00     
 

1. Identify the Employee’s Strengths : (Use separate sheet if necessary) 
Supervisor -  

 
BM – 

 

Dept. Head - 

 

2. Identify the Employee’s Key Areas for Improvement. (Use a separate sheet if necessary) 
Supervisor - 

 
BM – 

 
Dept. Head - 

 

 
Supervisor _____________      Branch Manager _________________ Dept. Head________________
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Rater’s Comment  

 

1. Identify the Employee’s Strengths: (Use separate sheet if necessary) 
IA – 

 

CO - 

 

2. Identify the Employee’s Key Areas For Improvement. (Use a separate sheet if necessary) 
IA – 

 

CO - 

 

 

 

Compliance Officer  __________________  Internal Auditor __________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IV AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE 
RATING – 15% 

Desired 

Rating 

Self 

Rating 

RATING 

IA 

RATING  

CO 

Weighted  

Score 

 

A. 
 

REPORT ACCURACY 

 

3.75 
   

 

 

 
 

B. 

 

REPORT TIMELINESS 
 

3.75 

   

 
 

 
C. 

 
BEHAVIORAL COMPETENCE 

 
3.75 

    

 
D. 

 
COMPLIANCE /AUDIT RATING 

 
 
 

 
3.75 

    

 

 

 

 

TOTAL 

        

      15.00 
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PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

                                                                                             (For Human Resource Dept) 

Please use this section to cite areas for improvement and action plans/support needed from immediate 

head with corresponding timetable in order to sustain or further improve the performance of the employee. 
 

Areas for Improvement 
 

Action Plan 
Support Needed from 

Immediate Head/ Mgt. 

 

Timetable 

Knowledge    
    

Attitude    
    

Skills    

    

Others    

 

                     ______________________ 

 Human Resource Officer 

 

 

 

 

PRESIDENT’S REMARKS: 

 Approval / Dis-approval/ Other Actions to be taken 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

         JUVIE D. CALACAT 

                   President & CEO 
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TRAINING METHOD 

 

1. Internal Training 

 

a) In-House  

b) Informed Training (Orientation) 

c) On the Job Training –planned interaction with immersion in the actual work scenario 

d) Job Rotation/Cross Training- assignment of employees to other unit within the 

organization to gain knowledge on other work processes. 

 

2. External Training 

 

a) Outsourcing –training from accredited training provider or regulatory agencies. 

 

Based on the training needs of an employee, the HR will recommend to the Education/HR 

Committee that the employee shall undergo training and to be approved by the Board. 

 

An employee who will be sent for training shall serve the bank within the prescribed 

period based on the amount of training expenses incurred. This schedule below is on per 

training basis. In case of a number of trainings attended, the amount spent for an 

employee sent for training will be summed up. Record shall be kept for this purpose. 

 

P10,000.00 – P20,000.00 – after 6 months 

P20,001.00 – P50,000.00 – after 1 year 

P50,001.00-P75,000.00 – after 2 years 

P75,001.00 – P100,000.00 – after 2 ½ years 

Over P100,000.00 – after 3 years  

 

3. Educational Tour – another way to develop the members of the Board and employees’ 

personality and enrich their knowledge relative to their work and the visited places, 

institutions and organizations.  

 

A budget shall be appropriated for this educational tour every year to be approved by the 

Board. 

 

4. Team Building – an activity designed to enhance social relations, increase motivation and 

promote cooperation among the employees and Board of Directors. This will be done every 

year and to be appropriated in the annual budget. 

 

TRAINING PROGRAM CYCLE FOR IN-HOUSE TRAINING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Defining and 

Assessing Target 

Employee’s 

Needs 

 

Designing the 

Training 

Program 

 

Implementing 

the Training 

Program 

 

Evaluating the 

Training 

Program 
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Designing the Training Program for In-House Training 

 

1. Titling the Program; 

2. Selecting the Training Modality; 

3. Formulating the Training Objectives; 

4. Determining the programs Specific content; 

5. Arranging the lessons and exercises in order they will be facilitated; 

6. Selecting and preparing the instructional methods, materials and assigning resource 

speakers; 

7. Planning the lessons; 

8. Preparing the budget; and 

9. Physical preparation. 

 

Training Needs Assessment 

 

 A training need is a gap between present and desired performance of an employee which can 

be narrowed through training. It is a measure of the knowledge, attitudes, and skills that have to be 

developed to bring about the desired performance. Training needs are manifested by the following: 

 

1. Work standards are not met; 

2. Accident; 

3. Excessive wastes; 

4. High costs of repair; 

5. High turnover rates; 

6. Low performances; 

7. Work methods are not standardized; 

8. Production bottlenecks and delays; and 

9. Excessive fatigue and worker stresses. 

 

Identifying training needs will minimize training expenses and evaluation will be easier. 

Trainees will be motivated and the return on investments will be maximized.  

 

Techniques in Training Needs Assessment: 

 

1. Interviews; 

2. Study of employee’s performance records; and 

3. Observations. 

 

RETIREMENT AND SUCCESSION PLANNING 

 

The Bank has an approved Retirement Plan of the employees. The mandatory retirement age 

is 60 years of age. Retirement fund is appropriated annually to answer the retirement pay of the 

employees.   

For assurance of full and quality continuity of operations and services in case of the absence 

of any of the Bank’s key officers, the following succession plan shall automatically be operational and 

implemented until the return to duty of the employee on leave of absence. In case of a permanent 

vacancy, the Education and Human Resources Committee conducts the screening of applicants after 
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which, it recommends for approval to the Board of Directors, the appointment of the best qualified 

applicant. 

 

Succession Plan for Temporary Vacancy 

 

For assurance of full and quality continuity of operations and services in case of the 

absence of any of the Bank’s key officers, the following succession plan shall automatically be 

operational and implemented until the return to duty of the employee on leave of absence. In 

case of a permanent vacancy, the Education and Human Resources Committee conducts the 

screening of applicants after which, it recommends for approval to the Board of Directors, the 

appointment of the best qualified applicant. 

 

Position     Alternate 

 

Corporate Office  

    

President     Vice Chairman, Board of Directors 

    

Compliance Officer    Internal Auditor 

Internal Auditor     Accountant 

Corporate Secretary    Administrative Officer 

Accountant     Bookkeeper II  

 

Operation 

 

President     Branch Manager II 

 

Tagbilaran Branch 

 

Branch Manager II    Cashier 

Cashier      Branch Manager II 

Loan Officer II     Loan Officer I 

Bookkeeper II     Accounting Clerk 

Teller II      Cashier   

 

Other Branches 

 

Branch Manager I    Teller I 

Teller I      Branch Manager I 

Bookkeeper I     Branch Manager I 

Loan Officer I     Bookkeeper I 

 

Officer – at –Large will assume the work in any of the position 

in the branches in excess of three (3) days. 

Board of Directors 

 

Chairman     Vice Chairman 
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SUCCESSION PLAN for BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CHAIRMAN 

 

 

 

VICE CHAIRMAN 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DIRECTOR  

 

DIRECTOR  

 

DIRECTOR  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DIRECTOR  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DIRECTOR  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DIRECTOR  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DIRECTOR  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chairman & Vice-Chairman 

Trainings Needed: 

1. Advance Corporate Governance 

2. AML 

3. Financial Analysis 

4. Risk Management 

5. Update of BSP Circulars 

6. Mandatory Trainings of CDA 

Skills: 

1. Visionary leadership 

2. Business Knowledge 

3. Honesty & Integrity 

4. Probity 

5. Linkaging & networking 

6. Risk Management  

Director: Qualifications 

1) At least 25 years of age; 
2) Filipino citizen; 
3) A college graduate, or with at least 5 

years of business experience; 
4) A stockholder; 
5) The cooperative-stockholder has 

attended the past two consecutive 
General Assembly meetings; 

6) Chairman, Vice-Chairman or Manager 
of the cooperative-stockholder;  

7) If representative of a cooperative-
stockholder, should submit a board 
resolution authorizing him to file a 
candidacy; 

8) The cooperative-stockholder has a 
Certificate of Compliance with CDA of 
the preceding year; 

9) The cooperative-stockholder is not 
delinquent in the payment of their 
obligations/loans with the bank; 
 
 

 

10) The cooperative-stockholder has 
at least 200 shares of stock; 

11) Attended the Fundamentals of  
Cooperative   

 
Trainings Needed: 

1) Corporate Governance (w/in 6 

months from the date he/she is 

elected; 

2) Advance Corporate Governance  

3) AML 

4) Financial Analysis 

5) Risk Management 
6) Update of BSP Circulars 
7) Mandatory Trainings of CDA 

 

Skills: 

1) Action-oriented 

2) Business Knowledge 

3) Honesty & Integrity 

4) Probity 

5) Linkaging & networking 

6) Risk Management 

 

DIRECTOR  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DIRECTOR  
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SUCCESSION PLAN OF OPERATION 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

President 

 

Candidate 1 -  A1 

Candidate 2 – A2 

 

Internal Auditor 

Dept. Heads 

(Accounting, Admin., 

AMLD, Cash, Collection) 

 

Compliance Officer 

 

 

Candidate 1 – B1 

Candidate 2 – B2 

 

Candidate 1 – B1 

Candidate 2 – B2 

 

 

Candidate 1 – B1 

Candidate 2 – B2 

Trainings Needed for President 

1. Corporate Governance 

2. Management  

3. Risk Management 

4. AML 

5. Updates of BSP 

Circulars 

6. CDA Mandatory 

trainings 

Skills 

A. Developed 

(Promotable now) 

B. Intermediate (for 

training) 

C. Basic (for 

orientation) 

Performance 

1. Outstanding 

2. Very Satisfactory 

3. Satisfactory 

 

Branch Manager II 

 

Candidate 1 – B1 

Candidate 2- B2  

 

Branch Manager 1 

 

Branch Manager 1 

Candidate 1 – B1 

Candidate 2 - B2 

Candidate 3 – C1 

Candidate 4 – C2 

Candidate 1 – B1 

Candidate 2 – B2 

Candidate 3 – C1 

Candidate 4 – C2 

Trainings Needed for CO, IA 

1. Compliance Program & 

Planning 

2. Risk Management 

3. AML 

4. Updates of BSP 

Circulars 

5. CDA Mandatory 

Trainings 

Trainings Needed for Dept. Heads 

1. Updates of BSP 

Circulars & other 

Related Trainings to 

their specific position 

Trainings Needed for Managers 

1. Management 

2. Financial Analysis 

3. AML 

4. Credit Analysis & Loan 

Packaging 

5. Updates of BSP 

Circulars 
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Remuneration Policy 

Honorarium and other benefits of the Board of Directors shall be included in the annual 

budget of the bank to be approved by the General Assembly. There shall be special approval on this 

account.  

For senior management, their remuneration is also included in the budget to be approved by 

the Board of Directors.  

Performance bonus, merit increase and other benefits shall be extended to bank’s directors, 

officers and employees, to boost their morale and to recognize good performances.  

The 1–21 Salary Grades Schedule is hereby created to be made as basis for entrance salary 

or hiring rate of newly appointed employees. In this schedule the employee with lowest rank shall be 

assigned a salary grade of 1 and the highest officer a grade of 21.  

 

SALARY GRADE STANDARD 
 

 
                    

A. SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT       

 
  

 
      

  President 21               

B. INDEPENDENT 

OFFICE                   

  Compliance Officer 19               

  Internal Auditor 18               

C. DEPARTMENT 
HEADS                   

  AMRLD Head 19                

  

Corporate Services 

Officer 17                

  Accountant  16               

  Cashier  17               

  Collection Dept. Head  17               

 HR Officer 14        

 D. BRANCH 
MANAGER Branch Manager II 13               

  Branch Manager I 12               

E. SUPERVISOR                   

  

Loan Officer II, 
Bookkeeper II 
IT Supervisor 11               

E. MANAGEMENT 

SUPPORT TEAM   
 

  
 

  
 

      

  Loan Officer I 9               

  Remedial In-Charge 8               

  IT In-charge 8               

  Teller II 8               

  Business Development  7               



70 | P a g e  

 

  Teller I 6               

  Bookkeeper I 6               

  Clerk III, Collector III 6               

  Collector II, Clerk II 5               

  Appraiser 4               

  Collector I, Clerk I 3               

F. 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

AIDE   
 

  
 

  
 

      

  Driver/Messenger/UW 2               

  
Branch 
UW/Messenger 1               

 There shall be 5 step increments of the Personnel Salary Grade. 
    There shall be an increase in the amount of P500.00 in every step increment. 

  An employee can be adjusted to a next step of his present position after two years of 

service and with very satisfactory performance. 
 Clerk 1 shall be promoted to Clerk II after 2 years if he/she has a very satisfactory 

performance. 
 Clerk II shall be promoted to Clerk III after 2 years if he/she has a very satisfactory 

performance. 
 Good performance shall be determined by the Education/HR Committee based on the 

Annual Performance Report. 
 

A. BENEFITS 

 

Performance bonus, merit increase and other benefits shall be extended to bank’s directors, 

officers and employees, to boost their morale and to recognize good performances. Recognition 

shall be in non-monetary and monetary forms. Non-monetary shall be in the forms of Plaque of 

Appreciation, Letters of Commendation and others. 

 

1.    Monetary and Non-Monetary Benefits: 

  
A. Granted to Directors  

 

     1) Medical Allowance – annually 

     2) Rice Allowance – every month 

     3) Uniform Allowance - annually 

 

 B. Granted to Employees 

  

1) 13th Month Pay 

2) 14th Month Pay 
3) Christmas Cash Gift 
4) Anniversary Incentive 

5) Grocery Incentive - Christmas, New Year  
6) Cost of Living allowance (COLA) - monthly 
7) Medical Allowance – annually 

8) Travelling Allowance – monthly  
9) Rice Allowance – every month 
10) Uniform Allowance - annually 

11) Leave Privileges 
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Vacation Leave – 15 days for every year of service (An employee should enjoy his/her 5 

days mandatory vacation leave while the remaining vacation leave will be monetized at 

the end of the year) 

   

Sick Leave – 15 days for every year of service.  Cumulative and shall be monetized 

upon retirement from service. If an employee has more than 80 days accumulated sick 

leave, the excess number of days shall be monetized at the end of the year but to a 

maximum of 10 days only.  

 

Special Leave – not more than 3 days in a year to be availed of or enjoyed under the 

following occasions; (Wedding Anniversary, Birthday, Enrollment/Graduation Day, 

Death Anniversary of immediate member of the family) 

Maternity Leave – 105 days (regular delivery and for Caesarean delivery 

Paternity Leave – 7 days leave to be enjoyed by married male employee during the first 

4 deliveries of his legitimate spouse. 

 

Special Leave for Pregnant Women – Within 9 months pregnancy period, a pregnant 

employee is entitled of ½ day special leave every month intended for pre-natal 

purposes. 

 

Parental Leave – for solo parent 7 days annually 

 

Other leave credits required by law. 

 

12) Retirement Plan  - Compulsory Retirement Age – 60 years old 
13) Collection incentives for bank collectors who meet their collection targets 

14) Employees Financing Program ( EFP ) 
 

 Real Estate 

    Vehicle Loan 

    Appliance Loan 

    Personal Loan 

 
The monthly amortization of the loan secured under the Employees Financing Program 

(EFP) shall not exceed 50 % of the employees’ monthly salary and other allowances 

 
C.  Granted to President, Independent Officers, Department Heads and Managers 

 
Representation Allowance 

  President    -     monthly                                                                             

                Department Heads and Managers –   monthly 

 
D. Granted to Managers  

  
   Mobilization Pay  

   President           – monthly 

   Branch Manager – monthly 
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 E. Granted to Cashier and Teller 

 

  Shortage Allowance 

   Cashier and Teller – annually 

   Cashier/Teller       – annually 

 

 F. Granted to Collectors 

Repair and Maintenance Allowance – monthly  

Hazard Pay - monthly  

 

REWARDS MANAGEMENT 

 

Rewards are monetary and non-monetary forms that the bank offers to its employees 

in exchange for their work contribution, accomplishments and as recognition of his/her/their 

extraordinary achievements.  

 

 Objectives of Rewards and Recognition 

 

1. To attract the right people (competent workforce) and encourage them to be a part of 

the organization. 

 

2. To retain potential performers by satisfying their work related needs and rewarding their 

efforts and contributions. 

 

3. To develop workforce capabilities by rewarding employees for knowledge/skill and ability 

enhancement. 

 

4. To motivate employees to contribute to the best of their abilities thereby encouraging 

productivity in order to meet strategic goals and objectives. 

 

Types of Rewards  

 

1. Monetary- these are awards in the form of “cash” or money. 

 

2. Non-Monetary – are perceived as separate and independent from compensation or 

salary/benefits. Has long term effects and brings greater recognition and increases 

engagement. 

 

Incentive Pay 

 

 Incentive Pay Programs are designed to relate pay directly to performance to 

encourage specific actions or behaviour by employees or branch during a specific 

performance period. This will motivate and encourage employee’s productivity. 

 

Types of Incentive Schemes/Programs 
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1. Employee Recognition – generates increased morale and positive workplace attitudes. 

Offers feedback and encouragement to employees. Includes verbal praise, award 

ceremonies, public announcements. 

 

2. Knowledge Contingent Pay – rewards employees who seek self-development and career 

development. 

 

3. Individual Performance Programs – Employees are given specific types of awards for 

meeting or exceeding planned targets. Annually the bank shall award an “Employee of 

the Year”. 

 

4. Group Based Performance Incentive – rewards are paid based on group achievement or 

exceeding of targets and encourage teamwork.    

 

This Group Based Performance Incentive in a form of cash will be given to a branch at 

the close of the year if they exceeded the year’s target on loan releases. Aside from loan 

releases, other indicators to be considered are favourable loan collection (at least the 

target past due ratio will be attained), expenses not to exceed the year’s target and the 

target net income will be attained. It shall be 1/10 of 1% of the total loan releases for the 

year. 

 

Schedule to follow, in case of the following: 

No Net income  

Loan Releases – exceeded the target 

Collection – has not met the required PDR 

Expenses – exceeded the target 

No GBPI 

 

With Net income but below the target 

Loan Releases – exceeded the target 

Collection – has not met the required PDR 

Expenses – exceeded the target 

No GBPI 

 

Net income exceeding at least 25% of the target 

Loan Releases – exceeded the target 

Collection – has not met the required PDR 

Expenses – exceeded the target 

GBPI – 60 % of the 1/10 of 1% of the total loan releases 

 

Net income exceeding at least 25% of the target 

Loan Releases – exceeded the target 

Collection – has not met the required PDR 

Expenses – has not exceeded the target 

GBPI – 80 % of the 1/10 of 1% of the total loan releases 

 

Net income exceeding at least 25% of the target 

Loan Releases – exceeded the target 

Collection – has met the required PDR 
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Expenses – has not exceeded the target 

GBPI – 100 % of the 1/10 of 1% of the total loan releases 

 

5. Profit Related Incentive – given to employees based on overall revenue/profit earned by 

a branch for a given period.  

 

Profit Related or Productivity Incentive amount shall be determined if the bank will 

exceed its target income. The amount of PRI shall be 1/10 of 1% of the excess amount 

of the target amount. 

 

The Corporate Office is responsible for implementing the strategic direction and policies 

set by the Board; providing necessary support to the operating branches; maintaining a 

strong system of internal control; and ensuring the bank’s compliance with legal and 

regulatory requirements. Hence, the President and personnel in the corporate office shall 

have a share in the Group Based Performance Incentive and Profit Related Incentive. 

Percentage shall be as follows:  

 
Group Based Performance Incentive (GBPI) 

 
President    - 20% of the amount of GBPI 

Independent Officers and Dept. Heads - 30% of the amount of GBPI 

Branch     - 50% of the amount GBPI 

 Branch Manager   - 25% of the branch amount of GBPI 

 Rank & File   - 75% of the branch amount of GBPI 

 

  Independent Officers and Department Heads (7) 

(CO, IA, Accountant, Admin. Officer, AMLD Head, Cashier, Collection Head)  

 

Branch Rank & File (4) & the SO, IT in-charge, Business Development., IA Clerk, 

AMLD Clerk, & Driver (6) 

 
Policies and Procedures on related party transactions 

The Board of Directors, as an oversight body, of the Cooperative Bank of Bohol has the 

overall responsibility in ensuring that transactions with related parties are handled in a sound and 

prudent manner, with integrity and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

The board approved an overarching policy on the handling of RPTs that should cover the 

scope of its RPT policy, guidelines in ensuring arm’s length terms, management of conflicts of 

interest, materiality thresholds and limits, whistle blowing mechanisms, and restitution of losses and 

other remedies for irregular RPTs. This policy is intended to a) ensure that every related party 

transaction is conducted in a manner that will protect the bank from conflict of interest which may 

arise; b) ensure the impartiality and transparency of related party transactions between and among 

the organization and its major stockholders, officers and directors, including their spouses, children, 

and dependent siblings and parents and of interlocking director relationships by members of the 

Board; and c) ensure that specific policies, procedures, disclosures and responsibilities are to be 

followed in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements as related party transaction occurs. 
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Related Parties shall cover the following: 

 

• Bank’s subsidiaries as well as affiliates and any party that the bank exerts direct/ indirect 

control over or the bank;  

• The bank’s directors, officers, stockholders, and their related interests (DOSRI); 

• And their close family members;  

• Corresponding persons in affiliated companies; 

• Person/ juridical entity whose interests may pose potential conflict with the interest of the 

financial institution (FI); 

• Direct or indirect linkages to a bank identified as follows: 

 

Ownership, control or power to vote, of ten percent (10%) to less than twenty percent 

(20%) of the outstanding stock of the borrowing entity, or vice versa 

Interlocking directorship or officership, except in cases involving independent directors as 

defined under existing regulations or directors holding nominal share in the borrowing 

corporation; 

 

Common stockholders owning at least ten (10%) percent of the outstanding voting stock 

of the bank and ten (10%) percent to less than twenty (20%) percent of the outstanding 

voting stock of the borrowing entity; or  

Permanent proxy or voting trusts in favor of the bank constituting ten (10%) percent to 

less than twenty (20%) of the outstanding voting stock of the borrowing entity, or vice 

versa 

 

Close Family Members shall refer to persons related to the bank’s directors, officers and 

stockholders (DOS) within the second degree of consanguinity or affinity, legitimate or 

common-law.  These shall include the following: 

• Spouse 

• Parent 

• Child 

• Brother  

• Sister  

• Grandparent 

• Grandchild 

• Parent-in-law 

• Son/daughter-in-law 

• Brother/sister-in-law 

• Grandparent-in-law 

• Grandchild-in-law 

 

Related Party Transactions (RPTs) shall refer to transactions or dealings with related parties of the 

bank regardless of whether or not a price is charged.  The following criteria shall constitute the 

definition of RPTs which shall include, but not limited to the following: 

 

MATERIALITY THRESHHOLDS 

Covered RPTs shall be subjected to the corresponding materiality thresholds, as determined based on 

existing credit authority structure for credit exposures, and approval matrix specified in Part VI. 
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Furthermore, the following conditions shall hold: 

1. Thresholds are applicable to new transactions. 

2. Material RPTs that are non-standard or with deviations shall require prior approval of the 
Board. 

3. Where there is doubt or lack of clarity in determining whether a covered RPT is with deviation 

or not, the responsible person shall elevate the transaction to the RPT In-charge Member of 
the Board with the Executive Committee. 

 
Thresholds shall not apply to transactions that were entered into with a formerly unrelated party 

which subsequently became a related party granted that no alteration to the Terms & Conditions and 

increase in exposure level was made after the said company became a Related Party.  

Prospective treatment, however, should be without prejudice to supervisory actions that may be 

enforced for those noted to be not conducted on arm’s length terms. 

The following general guidelines shall apply: 

1. Renewal or material changes in the terms and conditions of the transaction shall require 

approval of the original body that authorized the transaction. 

2. In case a member of the reviewing committee has conflict of interest in a particular RPT, 

he/she shall refrain from evaluating the fairness thereof. 

3. All violations including those done inadvertently or without bad faith shall be subject to 
appropriate action by the RPT In-charge Member of the Board with the Executive Committee. 

 
Any financial transaction, arrangement or relationship where a related party has or will have direct or 

indirect material interest shall be guided by the following internal materiality thresholds: 

Transactions Materiality Thresholds    

per Transactions 

Credit Accommodations  

 Agri-Agra Loans P50,000.00 

Commercial Loans P300,000.00 

Other Loans-REM P200,000.00 

Overseas Assistance/  
Back to Back Loan 

P500,000.00 

Auto Loan P500,000.00 

Salary Loan P50,000.00 

Deposit Accommodations  

Placements P50,000.00 

ROPA Accommodations  

Sale –REM P300,000.00 

Sale – Auto P400,000.00 

Other Accommodations  

Insurance Services P50,000.00 

Outsourcing Agreements P50,000.00 

Supplier of Materials and Supplies P50,000.00 

Lease Contracts P50,000.00 

Other Transactions P50,000.00 
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COVERED AND NON-COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

This section provides the list of Covered and Not Covered Transactions. Those falling under the latter 

category need not be presented to the Committees but shall remain subject to internal monitoring. 

COVERED 

 On and off balance sheet credit exposures and claims and write-offs 

 Investments and/or subscriptions for debt/equity issuances 

 Consulting, professional, agency and other service arrangements/ contracts 

 Purchases and sales of assets, including transfer of technology and intangible items 

 Construction arrangements/ contracts 

 Lease arrangements / contracts 

 Borrowings, commitments, fund transfers and guarantees 

 Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials, and 

 

NOT COVERED 

 Immaterial transactions. These shall not require review and approval of the Board of Directors 

but shall be subject to vetting.  

 Transactions concerning deposit operations (CASA /Time Deposits) and other bank services 

where standard fees or published market rates apply.  

 A transaction where the rates or charges involved in the transaction are determined by 

competitive bids or fixed by the bank or law or regulated by a government authority. 

 Executive Officer/Director compensation arrangements and Employee Benefits 

 Other transactions of similar nature 

 
TRANSACTIONS NOT COVERED BUT SUBJECT TO VETTING PROCESS 

 DOSRI loans, regardless of the amount, as these are already reported to the BSP within 15 

banking days from end of reference quarter 

 Single deposit accommodation of at least P50,000.00 at any time or aggregate amount of at 

least P100,000.00 in any year 

 Single non-loan accommodation of at least P50,000.00 at any time or aggregate amount of at 

least P100,000.00 in any year 

 Non-Collateral Loan - Single loan accommodation of at least P50,000.00 at any time or 

aggregate amount of <P15M to P100,000.00 in any year 

 Collateral Loan - Single loan accommodation of at least P100,000.00 at any time or aggregate 

amount of <P15M to P200,000.00 in any year 

 

NATURE 

 

 On and off balance sheet credit exposures and claims and write-offs 

 Investments and/or subscriptions for debt/equity issuances 

 Consulting, professional, agency and other service arrangements/ contracts 

 Purchases and sales of assets, including transfer of technology and intangible items 

 Construction arrangements/ contracts 

 Lease arrangements / contracts 

 Trading and derivative transactions 

 Borrowings, commitments, fund transfers and guarantees 

 Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials, and 

 Establishment of joint venture entities 
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Arm’s Length is a term referring to transactions in an open and unrestricted market and 

between willing parties who are knowledgeable, informed, and who act independently of and without 

regard to any relationship with each other. 

THE VETTING PROCESS 

The RPT Committee, shall take into account, among other factors deemed appropriate, whether the 

terms of the RPT are no less favorable than terms generally available to an unrelated/unaffiliated 

third party under the same or similar circumstances, for example the RPT is at an arm’s length basis. 

It shall consider all relevant facts and surrounding circumstances available, and shall take into 

account the following: 

a) The date the transaction is being subjected to the vetting process. 

b) The nature of transactions and identity of the parties involved in the transactions or 

relationship for purposes of ascertaining if such is indeed an RPT or not. 

c) The Related Party’s relationship to the Bank, the extent of its interest in the transaction and 

the nature of the Bank’s participation. 

d) The basic terms of the transaction (price, commissions, interest rates, fees, terms, collateral 

requirements), material facts of the proposed RPT, including total placement/exposure of 

such RPT. 

e) The purpose or business reasons for the bank to enter into the proposed RPT. 

f) The availability of other unrelated party accounts with comparable terms and conditions, if 

available. Any compelling business reasons for the bank to enter into the RPT should be 

determined. 

g) An assessment of whether the proposed RPT is on terms and conditions that are comparable 

to the terms generally available to an unrelated party under similar circumstances and would 

apply on the basis if the RPT did not involve a related party. 

h) Remarks on the impact to Director’s independence or whether the RPT would present a 

conflict of interest, actual or apparent, taking into account the size of the transaction, their 

overall financial transaction, and any other factor the RPT approving authority deemed 

relevant. 

i)  Other material terms and conditions, including policy deviations, if any, as a result of 

entering into the transaction, as well as any potential risk issue that may arise as a result of 

or in connection with the transaction. 

j) Any other relevant or material information regarding the transaction. 

Additional factors to consider but not limited in determining whether a transaction has been 

conducted on an arm’s length basis: 

1) Validate the terms of the transaction to those two (2) comparable transactions on an arm’s 

length basis. 

2) Validate the terms of the proposed transaction, if it’s fair to the bank and on the same basis 

that would apply to the transaction on non-related party. 
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3) Verify the business reasons for the bank to enter into the proposed transaction. 

4) Ensure that the proposed transaction does not prejudice the independence of the relevant 

director. 

5) Ensure that the transaction has no implications to the bank’s financial position and 

performance. 

6) Validate the nature and content of the bargaining process; look for any unique or unusual 

terms/content.  

In evaluating RPTs, the committee shall take into account, among others, the following: 

  

 The related party’s relationship to the bank and interest in the transaction;  

 The material facts of the proposed RPT, including the proposed aggregate value of 

such transaction; 

 The benefits to the bank of the proposed RPT;  

 The availability of other sources of comparable products or services; and 

 An assessment of whether the proposed RPT is on terms and conditions that are 

comparable to the terms generally available to an unrelated party under similar 

circumstances.  The bank shall have in place an effective price discovery system and 

have exercised due diligence in determining a fair price for RPTs.  All RPTs that are 

considered material based on the bank’s internal policies shall be endorsed by the 

RPT committee to the Board of Directors for approval. 

 Ensure that appropriate disclosure is made, and/or information is provided to 

regulating and supervising authorities relating to the bank’s RPT exposures, and 

policies on conflicts of interest or potential conflicts of interest.  The disclosure shall 

include information on the approach to managing material conflicts of interest that 

are consistent with such policies; and conflicts that could arise as a result of the 

bank’s affiliation or transactions with other related parties. 

 Report to the Board of Directors on a regular basis, the status and aggregate 

exposures to each related party as well as the total amount of exposures to all 

related parties. 

 Ensure that transactions with related parties, including write-off of exposures, are 

subject to periodic independent review or audit process. 

 Oversee the implementation of the system for identifying, monitoring, measuring, 

controlling, and reporting RPTs, including the periodic review of RPT policies and 

procedures. 

 

Senior management shall implement appropriate controls to effectively manage and monitor 

RPTs on a per transaction and aggregate basis.  Exposures to related parties shall also be monitored 

on an ongoing basis to ensure compliance with the bank’s policy and BSP regulations. 

 

The Internal Audit function shall conduct a periodic formal review of the effectiveness of the 

bank’s system and internal controls governing RPTs to assess consistency with the board-approved 

policies and procedures.  The resulting audit reports, including exceptions or breaches limits, shall be 

communicated directly to the Audit committee. 

 

The compliance function shall ensure that the bank complies with relevant rules and 

regulations and is formed of regulatory developments in areas affecting related parties.  It shall aid in 
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the review of the bank’s transactions and identify any potential RPT that would require review by the 

Board or RPT committee.  It shall ensure that the RPT policy is kept updated and is properly 

implemented throughout the bank. 

 

Each Director, Stockholder or Senior Officer is responsible to declare a transaction to be 

called a Related Party Transaction and the material interest that they or an immediate family member 

may have on such transaction. 

 

A Disclaimer Statement is required from all approving officer/s signing contracts, agreements, 

work orders and purchase orders that they are not related to the counterparties of the proposed 

transaction. 

 

All credit and non-credit Related Party Transactions go through the normal approval 

processes of the Company given the delegated discretion after due consideration to existing DOSRI 

regulations and Single Borrowers limits. 

 

Upon approval, all financial transaction, arrangement or relationship in which the aggregate 

amount involved will or may exceed P15, 000,000.00 in any year or any single financial transaction 

amounting to P1, 000,000.00 at any time related Party Transactions including transactions falling 

under the Ordinary Course of Business but with policy deviations are referred to the Related Party 

Transactions Committee/Audit Committee. The Committee shall review and approve these Related 

Party Transactions and endorses to the Board for approval. 

 

The Board of Directors shall approve and confirm all Related Party Transactions endorsed by 

the Related Party Transactions Committee. Any member of the Board or Related Party Transactions 

Committee who has interest in the transaction must abstain from participation in the review and 

approval of any Related Party Transaction. 

STRUCTURE OF INTERNAL AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE FUNCTIONS 

The Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas in Section 161 of the latest MORB and BSP Circular 972 as the 

guides to the Enhanced Compliance Framework has instituted revision to the compliance framework 

which all banks are required to maintain and operate. The new compliance program defines 

compliance as the overall handling by the bank’s business risks that could negatively affect the 

franchise value of the bank. In this circular business risks is defined as the conditions which may be 

detrimental to the bank’s model and its ability to generate returns from operations. Business risks 

shall include, but not limited to the following: 

a. Risks to reputation that arise from internal decision that may damage a banks market 
standing; 

b. Risks to reputation that arise from internal decision and practices that ultimately impinge 
on the public trust of the bank; 

c. Risks from activities of the bank that are contrary to existing regulations and identified 

practices and reflect weaknesses in the implementation of codes of conduct and 
standards of good practices; 

d. Legal risks to the extent that changes in the interpretation or provisions of regulations 

directly affect a bank’s business model. 
 

The Cooperative Bank of Bohol carry and engage in the business of extending credit and 

accepting deposits to all types of cooperatives their member, small farmers and tenants and to 

deserving rural industries. In the conduct of the bank’s normal business operations various risks 
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can be encountered and it is therefore the responsibility of the Board of Directors to identify, 

establish and create measures to mitigate the same. 

Among the risks a bank faces in its normal operations are: 

1. Risks of poor collections or non-collection of loans 

Measures to be taken: 

a. ensure that the borrower has the capacity to pay as  shown by the  
 financial statement 

 income tax return 

 statement of assets and liabilities 

 credit investigation 
 

b. approved and released loans should be complete in needed information and free 

from any or all of the following deficiencies 
 incomplete signatures on loan documents 

 loan amount beyond the lending authority of loan officer/credit 
committee 

 loan amount in excess of the borrowers credit limit or at the loan value 
of the submitted collateral 

 incomplete documentation of collaterals 

 
c. borrowers, co-makers, endorsers, sureties and guarantors in case of unsecured 

loans shall possess good credit standing and are financially capable of fulfilling 
commitments in the event the borrower is unable to settle his obligation to the 
bank. 

 
d. borrower’s repayment schedule shall be aligned with his cash flows 

 

e. reduction of 20% percent of the principal obligation and submission of   updated 

income tax return or financial statements shall be one of the requirements for 

renewal of loans 

2. Risk of unwarranted concentration of credits 
Measure to be taken: 

 granting of loan other than agricultural, ie. Salary loan, appliance loan, 
car loan should be within the established benchmark 

 
3. Risk to over exposure to DOSRI 

Measures to be taken: 

 granting of loan shall be within the aggregate and individual ceiling 
prescribe by the BSP 

 
4. Risk arising from adverse business decision or improper implementation of decision. 

Measures to be taken: 

 The banks board resolution, policies, procedures and other issuances 
shall conformed with the sound banking practices, laws, rules and 

regulation and it must be religiously implemented and followed. 
 

5. Risk arising from negative public opinion which will affect the bank’s ability to establish 

new relationship or services or continue servicing existing relationship. 
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Measures to be taken:  

 The bank must be transparent in all dealings and transaction to the 

clients in general. 

 
6. Risk to earnings or capital arising from violation of, or non-conformance with laws, rules, 

regulations and prescribed practices issued by the supervisory and or regulatory. This 
risks exposes the bank and officers to fines, monetary penalties and administrative 

sanctions. The non-monetary penalty of warning, reprimand or preventive suspension can 
be imposed to a Director or officer determined to be involved in the commission of a 
violation. It can also lead to diminished reputation, limited business opportunities, 

lessened expansion potential and lack of contract enforceability. 

 
7.   Losses which are commonly exposed due to violations and/or non-compliance    of laws, 

rules and regulatory issuance are as follows: 

a. Monetary penalties on a bank and/or its officers due to failure to submit periodic 
report in the prescribed form on time, legal reserve deficiencies, failure to 

observe single borrower’s limit and credit accommodations to director, officers, 
stockholders and related interest (DOSRI) 

 
b. Administrative sanctions against a bank such as the suspension of lending 

operations, disqualification from branching and borrowing from the lending 
window of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) as a result of legal reserve 
deficiencies, deficiencies in prescribed minimum capital may result to a very 

substantial losses. 

 
c. Tax assessment deficiency due to failure to pay correct tax 

 
The ultimate penalty for gross violation of laws, rules and regulation as well 

as the Monetary Board and the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) directions or 

instructions having material effect on bank’s solvency, liquidity and profitability is 

the closure of a bank. 

The bank has adopted this program to see to it that its directors, officers and 

staff are regularly informed of laws and regulations relevant to banking and that 

these are observed to avoid monetary and administrative sanctions. 

COMPLIANCE OFFICER AND FUNCTIONS 

 The compliance officer shall be appointed/designated by the Board of Directors whose 

principal function is to oversee the administration of the compliance program and promote its 

effective implementation and address breaches that may arise. He/She is also responsible for 

ensuring the integrity and accuracy of all documentary submission to Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 

(BSP). The appointment of the Compliance Officer shall require prior approval of the Financial 

Supervision Sector (FSS) Committee of the BSP subject to existing fit and proper rules of the 

Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) and other regulatory agencies. 

COMPLIANCE FUNCTIONS: 

  The compliance function is an independent activity operating within the bank with no line 

function under the direction and reporting to the Board, to assist management and the Board of 
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Directors in discharging their duties and responsibilities. In line to the function he/she is 

authorized to the following: 

1. To communicate with any staff members and obtain access to any records or files 
necessary to enable it to carry out its responsibilities. 

2. To carry out its responsibilities on its own initiative in all department of the bank in which 
compliance risks exists. 

3. To conduct investigation of possible breaches of the compliance policy and to request 

assistance from the legal or internal audit to perform this task if appropriate. 
4. To report to Senior Management on any irregularities or possible breaches disclosed by 

its investigation without fear of retaliation from management or other staff members. 

Although the reporting line should be to senior management, the compliance function has 
the right to direct access to the Board of Directors or to a board level-committee by 
passing normal reporting lines when appears to be necessary. 

 
The specific responsibilities of the compliance function are the following: 

5. To furnish copy to Board of Directors and senior management of the latest Bangko 

Sentral ng Pilipinas circular, memorandum, circular letter and keeping them informed on 
the respective development. 

6. To assist senior management: 

a. Educating the staff on compliance issues and act as contact persons with in the 
bank on compliance queries from the staff. 

b. Establishing guidance to staff in the appropriate implementation of compliance 
laws, rules and regulations through policies and procedures. 

7. To coordinate with the directors, senior management and employees in the 

implementation of the BSP programs and requirements. 
8. To consult the BSP and other regulatory agencies for additional clarification on specific 

provisions of laws and or discuss compliance findings with the regulatory authorities. A 

dialogue may also be initiated with respect to borderline issues. 
9. To adopt ways to measure compliance risks and use such measurement to enhance 

compliance risks assessment. 

10. To monitor and test compliance by performing sufficient compliance testing. 
11. To monitor the submission of periodic reports to various government agencies. 

 
COMPLIANCE SYSTEM 

To ensure compliance with laws, rules and regulations in the daily operations of the bank the 

following policy and procedures shall be observed: 

1. Copy of all laws, rules, regulations and Board resolutions relevant to the duties and 
functions of the individual officers and staff of the bank shall be properly disseminated. 
List of all relevant laws, rules and regulations are shown in the Annexes. 

 
2. A complete list of all required reports for submission to the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 

(BSP) and other regulatory agencies shall be properly furnished to the concerned 
department/staff with corresponding information as to the frequency and date for 
submission. The department/branch concern shall be responsible for the preparation 

and submission of their assigned reports. Log book containing information as to what 
report being made and submitted to the regulatory body. Evidence of receipt of said 
report shall be kept on file at all times. List of all reports required to be submitted to 

the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas and other regulatory agencies is shown in the Annexes. 
 

3. The compliance rating on each department/branch shall be based on the frequency and 

nature of violations found during the audit/inspections, the amount involved and the 
persistence in committing same violation. 
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The levels of risks are as follows: 

a) Low – possibility of loss is minimal 
b) Medium – risks of loss is manageable 
c) High – exposure to loss is imminent 

 
            4.      The compliance audit/investigation shall be carried out quarterly. After the conduct of the 

audit/investigation of different department/branches is rated “LOW” the 

audit/investigation may be reduced to once a year, those rated “MEDIUM” the 

audit/investigation shall be continued semi-annually, while those rated  as “HIGH” 

audit/investigation shall be conducted quarterly.  In cases where the rating of a 

department/branches continue to be “HIGH” for three consecutive audit/investigation, 

the President shall conduct conference with the principal officers of the 

department/branch concern  to determine the reasons thereof and to require said 

officers to submit specific measure to be taken to avoid further violation. 

     The compliance rating of the department/branch is important in determining the 

frequency and scope of succeeding compliance review to be performed. It is likewise 

considered as basis for promotion, giving of awards and incentives as well as 

disciplinary actions. 

   5.  A copy of the report of the Compliance Officer on the outcome of the compliance testing 

should be provided to the President together with her/his recommendation. 

         6.  The President then, shall inform in writing the head of the department/ branch subject 

of the report, the details of the violations noted during the conduct of the compliance 

testing and requiring to correct their violations and to submit written report on action 

taken. 

          7. The President shall submit periodic report to the Board of Directors as to the violations 

noted by the Compliance Officer together with the action taken to correct the same and 

with his recommendation to prevent repetition thereof. 

REVIEW OF THE COMPLIANCE PROGRAM 

      The compliance program shall be reviewed by the President regularly at least annually; the 

review shall include the assessment of the performance of Compliance Officer and the efficiency 

of the monitoring, testing and reporting system. The program shall be updated at least annually 

to incorporate changing responses to evolving internal and external conditions. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM 

Internal Control 

      Is a plan of organization adopted within a business to safeguard its assets, check the 

accuracy of reliability of its accounting data, promote operational efficiency and encourage 

adherence to prescribed managerial policies. 

Section 3166, Manual of Regulations 

 All rural banks shall review existing internal controls and adopt and implement such 

improvements as are essential in accordance with the minimum internal control standards. 
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A. Proper Accounting Records 

             
1. All business organization should maintain proper and adequate accounting  
      records. 

2. These records should be kept currently posted and should contain  

      sufficient details so that an audit trail is established. 

3. All vouchers/tickets should bear official approval and should be initialed 
      by the person originating and another person checking them. 

B. Independent  Balancing 

 
1. Independent balancing shall mean that records posted by a person or cash  

      held by a teller or cashier shall be balanced or counter by another person. 

2. The minimum independent balancing procedures which should be adopted  
      are the following: 

a. Monthly reconcilement of general ledger balances against their respective 
subsidiary and supporting records and documentations by someone other 

than the bookkeeper or the person handling the records. 

 
b. irregular and unannounced count of teller’s cash and checks and other cash 

items (COCI) at least twice a month and vault cash at least once a month 

by auditor/control officer or by an officer not 
connected with the cash department. 

c. Monthly reconcilement of due from banks/cash in bank and due to/from 
head office account by someone other than the person handling the 
records or posting the general entries 

 
d. Periodic verification of the accuracy of the interest credits to deposit 

liability accounts. 

       
C. Division of Duties and Responsibilities 

 
1. The duties of all the officers and employees should be segregated, clearly defined, 

understood, documented and manualized if possible. No individual shall have 
complete authority and responsibility for handling all phases of any transaction from 
beginning to end without some check or balance from some other part of the 

organization. 

 
2. The physical handling of a transaction should be separated from its recording and 

supervision as follows: 

 
a. A person handling cash should not be permitted to post the ledger records 

nor should posting of the general ledger be performed by an employee 

who posts the depositors’ subsidiary ledgers. 
b. A loaning officer should never be allowed to disburse proceeds of notes, 

accept not payment nor process loan ledgers. 

c. The function of issuing, recording and signing of checks should be 
separated. 
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d. The receipt of statements from depository bank should be assigned to any 
employee other than the one connected with the preparation, recording 

and signing of the institutions’ own check. 
e. Collateral appraisals should be done by an employee/officer other than the 

ones approving the loan. 

f. Credit reports should be obtained by someone other than the lending 
officers. 

g. Mailing of customers’ statements and delinquent notices should be done by 

an employee other than the one who granted the loan or the one handling 
the records. 

 
3. Extensive background checking of person intended to be assigned to handle 

cash/securities should be conducted. Frequent follow-up checking after their 
employment should also be made. 

     
D. Joint Custody 

1. Joint custody shall mean the processing of transactions in the presence of and under 

the direct observation of a second person. Both persons shall be equally accountable 
for the physical protection of the items records involved. 

 
2. Physical protection should be deemed established through the use of two locks or 

combination on a file chest or vault compartment. 

 
3. Two or more persons should be assigned to each half of the control so that  

operating efficiency is not impaired if one person is not immediately   available. 

4. The following should be under joint custody: 

a. Cash in vault/safe 

b. All accountable forms 
c. Collaterals 

d. Documents of title and/or ownership of properties or fixed assets 
e. Dormant or inactive deposit ledgers and corresponding signature 
f. cards 

g. Trust receipts 
h. Duplicate keys, spare locks and keys 
i. Safe combinations 

j. Safekeeping items 

 
E. Signing Authorities 

 
1. Signing authorities for the different levels of officers to sign for and in behalf of the 

institutions should be approved by the board of directors and the extent of each level 
of authority should be clearly defined. This signing authorities should include but not 

be limited to the following:  

                                 
a. Lending operations 
b. Investment 

c. Approval of expenses 
d. Reports 

e. Institution’s check and certificates of time deposits 
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F. Dual Control 

 
1. Dual control shall mean the work of one person is to be verified by  a second person 

to determine that: 

 
a. Proper authority has been given to handle the transaction. 

b. The transaction is properly recorded. 
c. Proper settlement of the transactions is made. 

2. The routine of each transaction should be designed so that at least two or more 

individuals are involved in the completion of every transaction. 

 
3. The following accounts/transactions should be under dual control: 

 
a.  Institution’s own check – The signature of at least two officers              

should be required in the issuance of the checks. The Board of Directors 
may, however, prescribe a certain predetermined amount 

by which one senior officer could sign, subject to appropriate control 

measures. 

b. Certificate of Time Deposits – All certificates of time deposits issued should 

be signed jointly by two authorized officers. 

c.  Borrowings – The signature of at least two authorized officers should be 

required. 
 

d. All transactions giving rise to “due to/from head office” account all 

instruments of remittances evidencing these transactions particularly those 
involving substantial amounts should be approved by two authorize 

officers. 

 
G. Number Control 

 
1. Sequence number controls should be incorporated in the accounting system and 

should be used in registering notes, in issuing official checks and in other similar 
situations. Number control should be policed by a person designated by senior 

management who should be detached from the particular operations involved. 

 
2. The following are the forms, instruments and accounts that should be number-

controlled: 

a. Institution’s own check(Cashiers check) 
b. Promissory notes 
c. Savings deposit accounts/savings passbook 

d. Time deposits 
e. Official and provisional receipts 
f. Certificate of stocks 

g. Loan accounts 
h. Expense vouchers (e.g. petty cash vouchers) 

           
H. Rotation of Duties 

 
1. The duties of personnel handling cash, securities and bookkeeping records should be 

rotated. 

 
2. Rotation of assignment should be irregular, unannounced and long enough to permit 

disclosure of any irregularities or manipulations. 
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3. Teller should be relieved of their duties during actual count of their cash 

accountabilities during audit. 

 
I. Independence of the Internal auditor 

 

1. The position of internal auditor should be provided for in the by-laws                                  

together with the duties and responsibilities, scope and objectives of internal   

auditing. 

2. The internal auditor should report directly to the Board of Directors or to an 
Audit/Supervisory Committee who are not connected with the    management. 

 
3. The internal auditor should not install or develop procedures, prepare records or 

engage in other activities which he/she normally reviews or appraise. 

 
J. Direct Verification 

 
1. Direct verification shall mean the confirmation of accounts or records by direct 

correspondence with the institution’s customers/debtors/creditors. 

 
2. The following accounts among others, should be subject to direct verification by  the 

internal auditing staff at least once a year: 

 
a. Balance of loans and credit accommodations of borrowers. 

b. Deposit account balances particularly new deposit accounts, inactive or 
dormant accounts and closed accounts 

c. Outstanding balances of borrowings and other liabilities. 

d. Outstanding balances of receivables and payables. 
 

K. Other Internal Control Standards 

 
1. Deposit Accounts 

 

a. Entries to dormant account ledgers should be verified and approved by a 
designated officer. His initial should be placed next to the entry on the ledger 
sheet. 

b. Dormant account should be segregated from active account ledgers with a 
separate subsidiary control 

c. Signature cards for dormant accounts should be removed from active files. 

d. Signature cards and deposit ledger sheets should be authenticated by some 
form of validation. Subsequent changes should also be validated. 

e. Signature cards and deposit ledger sheets should be accessible only to 
authorized persons 

f. f   Dates appearing on deposit tickets/slips should be occasionally    

examined at irregular intervals after they have been posted to determine that 
posting was made on the actual date deposits are received to avoid 
“lapping”. 

g. Printing of subsidiary ledger on deposits dormant and current accounts 
quarterly. 

h. h. Printing subsidiary ledger on loans current and past due accounts    

quarterly. 
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APPROPRIATE INTERNAL CONTROL PROCEDURE 

1. Cash 

a. Unannounced cash count. 
b. Initial required to check posting in the subsidiary ledger. Bookkeeper should initial  
c. Late deposit should be handled by another person other than the cashier/teller 

d. Verify long-outstanding/undeposited COCIs 
e. Physical controls (teller’s cage, cash box, locked drawers, day gate, dual locking 

mechanism) 
f. Keys to validating machine/computer under the custody of the internal auditor 
g. Rotation of personnel/mandatory leave 

 
2. Checks and Other Cash Items (COCI) 

                

a. Examine long-outstanding COCIs 
b. Use COCI register to monitor items on hand as against general ledger balance. 
c. COCI should be under the custodianship of someone not handling cash. COCI will be 

given to the accountant then sealed ready for deposit next day 
d. Returned items should be checked and a record should be maintained 
e. Negotiated checks should be stamped “Non-Negotiable” or be validated by a machine 

 
      3. Due from Other Banks 

a. Regular reconciliation of account by the internal auditor. 

b. Arrangement with depository to send bank statement directly to the auditor. 
c. All unissued drafts should be under dual control. 

d.  Withdrawals from “Due from Other Banks” account should be approved by at least two 
authorized officers. 

e. All exceptions/floating items should be investigated and followed-up promptly to a 

satisfactory conclusion. 
f. Use of bank draft register to monitor the cancelled/validated checks from the 

outstanding ones. 

 
         4. Investment 

            Purchase/sale of securities should be approved by the Board of Directors. 

a. Two official signatures should be required on letters confirming the purchase, sale or 
pledge. 

b. Securities held should be under joint custody for proper safekeeping. 

c. Use of security register to record the “in” and “out” of securities. 
d. Use of subsidiary ledgers to record the movement of the securities. 

 
       5. Loans & Other Receivables           

a. Fixing of definite loan authority 
b. Written lending policies 

c. Loans granted, renewals, extension and charge-off should be properly authorized 
d. Definite policies and procedures should be established for the appraisal of collaterals 

and for credit evaluation 

e. A number control should be maintained, a number assigned to every new promissory 
or renewed note 

f. Monthly run-up of loan ledgers and reconciliation with controlling accounts. 

g. “Paid” or Renewed” notes should be stamped as such 
h. Release of loans should be in check, never in cash 
i. Proper safekeeping of loans ledgers, credit files and collaterals 

j. Direct confirmation of accounts by internal auditor 
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k. Released collaterals of paid loans be acknowledge by the borrowers and the receipt 
properly filed 

l. Credit reports should be obtained by someone other than the lending officer 
m. A designated employee to oversee/inspect the collaterals and related documents 
n. Segregation of past due accounts from current files 

o. Recoveries from charged-off  loans should be properly accounted 
p. Charged-off loans be assigned P1 peso each for inventory purposes 

                      q.   Printing of subsidiary ledger of loans current and past due accounts quarterly 
                 r.   Monthly releases proof list 

     6. Fixed Assets/ROPA 

a. Maintenance of a detailed subsidiary ledger for each account 

b. Regular reconciliation of the account 
c. Physical inventory of fixed assets should be taken at least annually 
d. Individual fixed assets should be tagged for inventory purposes 

e. Policy on differentiation between capital and revenue expense 
f. Fixing a P1.00 nominal value for fully depreciated assets for inventory purposes 

g. Policy on disposal of fixed assets/ROPA 
h. Maintenance of adequate insurance coverage for fixed assets and buildings and 

improvements for ROPA 

i. Proper setting up of depreciation records 

 
7. Other Assets 

 
a. Maintenance of subsidiary records 
b. No advances should be granted without prior approval from authorized officer 
c. Conversion of  long-outstanding advances to other loans 

d. Proving of subsidiary ledgers against controlling accounts 
e. Use of petty cash vouchers 
f. Designation of  a responsible custodian for other assets and petty cash fund 

 
8. Deposit Liabilities 

 
a. New current accounts should be approved by authorized officer 

b. Articles of Incorporation, Board resolutions, Special Power of Attorney, special 
agreement, list of authorized signatories and other requirements should be required 
for all corporate and partnership accounts. 

c. Number control should be adopted and a number assigned to passbooks and to each 
of the account 

d. Proper maintenance of signature cards 

e. Signature cards of dormant accounts should be segregated 
f. Customers should prepare and sign their own deposit slips/withdrawal slips 
g. Proper validation of withdrawal and deposit slips 

h. Checks received for deposits should be stamped “Non-Negotiable” 
i. Dates on deposit slips should be occasionally examined to detect “lapping” 

j. Segregation/rotation of duties 
k. Control keys to posting machine/computer should be kept by the internal auditor 
l. Regular balancing/run-up of subsidiary ledgers 

m. Segregation of dormant accounts from active accounts 
n. Proper authority required in reactivating dormant accounts 
o. Prohibition on Bookkeeper/Cashier to maintain deposit accounts 

p. Proper accounting of paid Time Certificate of Deposits 
q. Denomination of the amount paid to payee should be indicated in paid 

checks/withdrawal slips 
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9. Borrowings 

 
  a. Authority of the officer to enter into a borrowing agreement 

b. Regular reconciliation of accounts/subsidiary ledgers 

c. Proper maintenance of subsidiary records 

10. Unamortized Discounts/Deferred Credits 

 a. Examine unusual debits 

 b. Test-check transfer from unamortized discounts to interest income 

11 . Cashiers/Managers/Treasurers check        

a. Number control of Cashier’s/Manager’s checks 

b. Checks issued should not be payable to cash or bearer 
c. Dual control-(Signature of 2 officers on the checks) 
d. Outstanding checks should be proved monthly 

e. Maintenance of check register 
f. Require cashier/teller to indicate the denomination of the amount paid to payee 

 
12. Capital Stock 

a. Proper maintenance of subsidiary ledgers and proper filling-up of stubs of  
stock certificates 

b. Use of number control for stock certificates 
c. At least two employees should participate in the issuance of stock certificates 
d. Surrendered stock certificates should be duly accounted and cancelled 

 

CONFIRMATION OF DEPOSITS/LOANS 

 A confirmation of deposit shall be done annually. Confirmation letters shall be sent to bank 
depositors stating their deposit balances while loan confirmation shall be made every semester.  
 

CENTRAL LIABILITY REGISTER 

 A central collateral register should be maintained. This should include complete and accurate 

descriptions of all collateral pledged/deposited with the bank. 

INTERNAL AUDITOR 

 The Internal Auditor shall be responsible for developing and implementing comprehensive 

programs of internal audit in the bank – head office and branches. He shall have full and unrestricted 

access to all records of bank transaction including properties and personnel matters. 

 The Internal Auditor shall be independent from the bank’s management and shall be directly 

under the supervision and control of the Board of Directors. He shall see to it that management 

activities are in accordance with existing laws, Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas rules and regulations, and 

policies promulgated by the Board of Directors. 
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 Specifically, the Internal Auditor shall have the following responsibilities: 

i. See to it that all rules and regulations, policies and guidelines issued by the Board 

of Directors governing the operation is properly and religiously followed/complied 
with; 

ii. Plan out the audit program and schedule its implementation with respect to the 

bank and each of its branches;  
iii. Execute the developed audit program and recommend improvements whenever 

necessary; 
iv. Apprise the branch managers, thru the Chairman, deficiencies in their respective 

work and require corrective measures to rectify them; 

v. Check and verify correctness of loan releases to, and payments thereof by the 
borrowers including collaterals and documentations thereof; 

vi. Conduct special audits as may be requested by management and regularly 

review complaints made by clients of the bank and its branches; 
vii. Regularly visit the branches to determine effectiveness of branches in the 

management of the bank resources and its compliance with established policies 

and procedures; 
viii. Check and verify correctness of the bank’s records and see to it that all 

transactions are correctly entered in the books of accounts and thereby minimum 

independent balancing procedures are to be adopted to wit: 
1. Monthly reconcilement of general ledger balances against their respective 

subsidiary ledger and supporting records/documents; 

2. Irregular and unannounced count of cash and checks and other cash items at 
least twice a month; 

3. Monthly reconcilement of due from banks/cash in bank accounts and due 

from/to head office/branches; 
4. Periodic verification of securities and collaterals/properties of the bank; 

5. Periodic verification of the accuracy of the interest credits to deposit liabilities 
accounts; 

ix. He shall attend to such other duties as the Board of Directors may from time to time 

assign to him. 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 

 
Purpose and Objectives: 

 The Internal Audit Department is an independent activity operating within the bank at the 

direction of, and reporting to, the Chairman to assist management and the Board of directors in 

discharging their duties and responsibilities. 

 The principal areas of concern are the following: 

1. Reviewing and appraising the soundness, adequacy, and application of accounting, financial 
and operating controls, and promoting effective control at reasonable cost; 

2. Ascertaining the extent of compliance with established policies, plans and procedures; 
3. Ascertaining the extent to which bank assets are accounted for and safeguarded from losses 

of all kinds; 

4. Ascertaining the reliability of management data developed within the organization; 
5. Appraising the quality of performance in carrying out assigned responsibilities; and 
6. Recommending operating improvements 

 
The foregoing activities stress the fact that the Internal Auditor’s objective is to assist all 

members of management, from the top man to the lowest level of authority including the rank and 

file.  He is expected to be concerned with any business activity where he can be of service to any 
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member of the organization. In this connection, he is given a free hand in the discharge of his 

responsibilities so long as he keeps in mind his overall objective. 

 In the attainment of this overall objective, the Internal Auditor is tasked to conduct 

appropriate examinations, appraisal and review of business policies, plans and activities to satisfy 

himself that: 

1. The internal control system is sound and strong, 
2. Policies, regulations, plans and procedures are adequate; 

3. Accounting data and operating statistics are reliable; 
4. There is compliance with established policies, plans and procedures; 
5. There is adequate protection for all property of the business; 

6. Individual performance is efficient and effective; 
7. Activities are carried on economically, efficiently and effectively. 

 

Authority and Responsibility 

 The internal Audit Department has the full authority vested with the Chairman to perform 

examinations, audits, and investigations of all financial records, operations, activities, and affairs of 

the bank. It shall have full access to all the bank’s records, properties, and personnel relevant to the 

subject under review. It is free to review and appraise policies, plans, procedures and records. 

 The Internal Audit Department’s responsibilities shall be: 

1. To inform and advise management and to discharge this responsibility in an manner that is 

consistent with the Code of Ethics of the Institute of Internal Auditors. 

 
2. To coordinate internal audit activities with others so as to best achieve the audit objectives of 

the bank. 

 
In performing its functions, the Internal Audit Department has no direct responsibility for, or 

authority over, any of the activities reviewed. Therefore, the internal audit review and appraisal does 

not in any way relieve the persons in the bank of the responsibilities assigned to them. 

 
The Internal Audit Department shall submit its reports to the Chairman in such manner as the 

Board of Directors may prescribe. 

Scope and Functions: 

 The scope of Internal Auditing covers practically all phases of activities in the bank. The 

Internal Audit Department is supposed to attend to all matters where it will be of service to 

management. The scope of internal auditing work encompasses what audit work should be 

performed. It is recognized, however, that management and the Board of Directors provide general 

direction as to the scope of work and the activities to be audited. 

Scope: 

1) financial 
2) accounting 

3) operating activities 

 
Function: 
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1. Examination of control procedure to determine their adequacy and propriety. 
2. Verification of the reliability and integrity of information 

3. Review of compliance with existing policies, regulations, plans and procedures. 
4. Review of means of safeguarding assets. 
5. Appraisal of performance and economical and efficient use of resources. 

6. Review of established objectives and goals of operations or programs. 
7. Special assignments which may include: special studies on any phase of management 

activity, character examination, investigation work, management representation in 

negotiations, participation in bank training programs, and many others. 

 
Review of Compliance Officer and Internal Auditor 

To ensure effectiveness and adequacy of internal control, the Board assess the Compliance 

Officer and the Internal Auditor once a year together with the Board and Committees assessment. 

In addition, they report to the Audit Committee monthly and may also report directly to the 

Board. The Compliance Officer reports to the Board the accomplishment of the Compliance Program 

on a monthly basis. 

Evaluation of Chief Compliance Officer Performance 

This form should be completed for to assess the performance of the Chief Compliance Officer by the Risk 

Oversight Committee, the Corporate Governance, the Related Party Transaction Committee members and 

the Management during the year _____. The form should be completed to the best of your ability, based 

on the respective committee’s interaction with the CCO. The evaluation is designed to obtain feedback on 

the CCO’s performance and will form part of the annual performance review.  

Please return the completed evaluation form to Chief Compliance Officer. 

THANK YOU FOR TAKING TIME TO COMPLETE THE EVALUATION! 

 

Name of Bank 
 

 

Cooperative Bank of Bohol 

 
Name of Related Party Transaction 

Committee Member Completing 
Evaluation 
 

  ___________________ 

           Signature 

 
Date Evaluation Completed 

 

 
Chief Compliance Officer’s Name 

 

 
 

5                 
Very Good   

4                  
Good                   

3        
Average        

2                     
Fair 

1                       
Poor 

1. The Chief Compliance Officer is courteous and 
professional. 

     

2. Any written communication received from the 
Chief Compliance Officer is easily understood, 
organized and well written. 

     

3. The Chief Compliance Officer arrives at the 
committee meetings well prepared. 
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4. The Chief Compliance Officer demonstrates 
effective presentation skills at committee 
meetings. 

     

5. The Chief Compliance Officer responds 
adequately and confidently to committee 
questions. 

     

6. The Chief Compliance Officer is willing to deal 
with difficult or contentious issues. 

     

7. Overall, the Chief Compliance Officer meets 
committee expectations. 

     

8. Advised the board of directors and senior 
management on relevant laws, rules and 
standards, including keeping them informed on 
developments in the area 

     

9. Apprised Bank personnel on compliance issues, 
and acting as a contact point within the bank for 
compliance queries from bank personnel 

     

10. Established written guidance to staff on the 
appropriate implementation of laws, rules and 
standards through policies and procedures and 
other documents such as compliance manuals, 
internal codes of conduct and practice guidelines; 

     

11. Identified, documented and assessed the 
compliance risks associated with the Bank's 
business activities, including new products and 
business units 

     

12. Assessed the appropriateness of the Bank's 
compliance procedures and guidelines, promptly 
following up any identified deficiencies, and 
where necessary, formulating proposals for 
amendments 

     

13. Quarterly monitored and tested compliance by 
performing sufficient and representative 
compliance testing 

     

14. Maintained a constructive working relationship 
with the Bangko Sentral and other regulators. 

     

Based on your experience with this Chief Compliance Officer, please comment on any strengths or 
development areas you have noted: 

 
 
 

Have you received any specific feedback on this Chief Compliance Officer from management? If so, please 
provide details: 
 

 
 

Please provide any additional comments on your experience with this Chief Compliance Officer: 
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Audit Committee – Evaluation of Internal Auditor Performance 

One form should be completed for each Auditor with whom the audit committee has had interaction during 

the year_____. The form should be completed to the best of your ability, based on the audit committee’s 

interaction with the individual. If you are unable to respond to a particular question, please select “N/A”. The 

evaluation is designed to obtain feedback on the auditor’s performance and will form part of the annual 

performance review.  

Please return the completed evaluation form to Internal Auditor.  

THANK YOU FOR TAKING TIME TO COMPLETE THE EVALUATION! 

 

Name of Bank 
 

Cooperative Bank of Bohol 

 

Name of Audit Committee Member Completing 
Evaluation 

______________________ 

             Signature 

 

Date Evaluation Completed 
 

 

 

Auditor Name 
 

 

 
5 

Very Good 
4 

Good 
3 

Average 
4 

Fair 
5 

Poor  

1. The auditor is courteous and professional.            

2. Any written communication received from the auditor 
is easily understood, organized and well written. 

     

3. The auditor arrives at audit committee meetings well 
prepared. 

     

4. The auditor demonstrates effective presentation skills 
at audit committee meetings. 

     

5. The auditor responds adequately and confidently to 
audit committee questions. 

     

6. The auditor is willing to deal with difficult or 
contentious issues. 

     

7. The auditor demonstrates appropriate leadership and 
has the necessary skills to fulfil his responsibilities 

     

8. The auditor submits reports to the committee on the 
status of accomplishments of the internal audit unit 

     

9. Overall, the auditor meets audit committee 
expectations. 

     

10. All approved revisions are included in the Manual      

11. Audit plans are carried out accordingly within the set 
timelines and resources. 
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12. The Audit Manual has been updated with all the 
approved guidelines pertaining to risk assessment 
process. 

     

13. The audit scope for the year included all auditable 
units and processes. 

     

Based on your experience with this auditor, please comment on any strengths or development areas you have 
noted:  

 

Have you received any specific feedback on this auditor from management? If so, please provide details: 

Please provide any additional comments on your experience with this auditor: 
 

 
Dividend Policy 

 Declaration of dividend shall be done after the close of the calendar year. Appropriation of 

the net income shall follow the mandatory reserves per By-laws and the Cooperative Code of the 

Philippines. After the mandatory reserves, amount for dividend and patronage refund will now be 

determined. 

 

Corporate Social Responsibility Initiatives 

 

 Cooperative Bank of Bohol upholds its vision in providing reliability in financial services to 

cooperatives and individuals by promoting economic opportunities for financial stability among 
Boholanos, extending continuing education to member-cooperatives and crafting policies and 
procedures to support its social responsibility to the community. 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY FRAMEWORK 

 
OPERATING IN A SOUND & ACCOUNTABLE MANNER 
  

 The bank will operate in a sound, ethical and accountable manner by ensuring comprehensive 
compliance and financial reporting; implementing a comprehensive risk management framework; 
implementing sustainable procurement practices; ensuring a code of conduct in good governance and 

related party policy is in place; and holding employees accountable for adhering to ethical business 
practices as they carry out their responsibilities. 
 

NURTURING OUR MOST IMPORTANT RESOURCE 
  
 The bank provides for the professional development and care of our human capital. We 

encourage growth by providing capability-building programs and granting every employee access to 
fair and equal opportunities for training and development.  We safeguard occupational health and 
safety through full compliance with relevant standards. 

 
PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT 

 
 Cooperative Bank of Bohol recognizes the need to protect the natural environment. Keeping 
our environment clean and unpolluted is a benefit to all. We advocate in promoting and protecting 

Mother Nature by participating in coastal clean-up, tree or mangrove planting, and allied activities.  
We’ll always follow best practices when segregating and disposing garbage. Stewardship will also play 
an important role. 
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SUSTAINABILITY PRINCIPLES 
 

The board and senior management takes a broader view on risk management by looking 
beyond the traditional sources of financial risks encompassing company culture, risk management 
oversight, accountability, and transparency. One important viewpoint in this risks is enhancing the 

understanding and technical skills of bank personnel to enable them to navigate the complex aspects 
of sustainable finance.  In addition, it also gives importance to gender equality and women 
empowerment in sustainable finance where the bank crafted guidelines that aims to ensure Gender 

Equality and institutionalization of GAD programs and related activities to achieving the gender 
fairness and women empowerment accord with our constitutionally guaranteed human rights. 

Likewise, this guideline promotes the viability and growth of cooperatives as instruments of equality, 
social justice and economic development.  
 

The board and senior management created Sustainable Finance Group (SFG), composed of 
the BOD Chairperson, President, Vice-President for Operations, and Administrative Officer, which will 
take the lead in monitoring the bank's progress in attaining sustainability objectives and ensuring that 

operations and personnel performance are consistent with these set objectives and to take 
appropriate measures in case of breaches or non-compliance.   
 

DONATIONS AND AID 

 The bank may preserve a budget to make monetary donations. These donations will aim to 
advance the arts, health & sanitation, education, sports, religious activity, cultural and community 

events and alleviate those with medical needs. 

SUPPORTING THE MEMBERS AND THE COMMUNITY 
 

 The bank may initiate and support its members and the community through consultation and 
collaboration with member-cooperatives and the local government agency; providing necessary 
trainings and support to our member-cooperatives; supporting charitable giving and involvement in 

community causes; engaging an active participation on community-based activities like promoting 
women empowerment and disaster risk reduction; and encouraging individual personal responsibility 

for charitable giving and community outreach. 
 
SERVING CUSTOMERS WITH EXCELLENCE AND INTEGRITY 

 
 Cooperative Bank of Bohol ensures excellence in customer service through full disclosure of 
the features, terms and conditions of our products and services that complies with all laws and rules 

of government regulatory bodies. We provide timely financial and technical support for our mandated 
clients and make pertinent product and service information easily available to them.  As a financial 
institution, we make sure that compliance testing is an established procedure that ensures the 

management of pertinent risks and compliance with applicable laws, rules, and regulations. We 
enhance customer service and reinforce the culture of quality, excellence and continued improvement 
in our banking processes. 

  

Consumer Protection Practices 

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible in ensuring that consumer protection 

practices are embedded in the bank business operations.  The Cooperative Bank of Bohol must 

adhere to the highest service standards and embrace a culture of fair and responsible dealings in the 

conduct of our business through the adaption of the Financial Consumer Protection Framework that is 

appropriate to the bank corporate structure, operations, and risk profile.   
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The Board and Senior Management are responsible for developing the bank’s consumer 

protection strategy and establishing an effective oversight over the bank consumer protection 

programs.  The Board shall be primarily responsible for approving and overseeing the implementation 

of the consumer protection policies as well as the mechanism to ensure compliance with the policies.  

The Board may also delegate other duties and responsibilities to Senior Management but not the 

overseeing compliance with the BSP-prescribed Consumer Protection Framework and the CBB 

Consumer Protection Framework. 

The management of Cooperative Bank of Bohol ensures that customers have a reasonable 

holistic understanding of the products and services offered, which they may be acquiring or availing.  

Full disclosure and utmost transparency will empower the customer to make informed financial 

decisions.  Provide the customer with ready access information that accurately represents the nature 

and structure of our product and services, the terms and conditions, as well as its fundamental 

benefits and risks. 

Ensure that customers have a reasonable holistic understanding of the products and services 

offered, which they may be acquiring or availing.  Full disclosure and utmost transparency will 

empower the customer to make informed financial decisions.  Provide the customer with ready access 

information that accurately represents the nature and structure of our product and services, the 

terms and conditions, as well as its fundamental benefits and risks. 

The CBB may demonstrate competencies required in the principle of proper disclosure and 

transparency if we complies with the following: 

 

1.  Key Information 

 

a.  To ensures that offering documents of products and services contain all 

information necessary for customers to be able to make an informed 

judgment of our product and service and, in particular, meet the full 

disclosure requirements specified under existing laws and regulations.  All 

key features and risks of our products should be highlighted prominently in a 

succinct manner.  If product is being offered on a continuous basis, its 

offering documents should be updated in accordance with the requirements 

set out in the regulations. 

 

b. Have a ready and consistent written copy of the Terms and Conditions (T&C) 

of our products and services available to the customers.  The T&C must be 

fully disclosed and explained to financial customers before initiating a 

transaction.  Where and when warranted, reference to the T&C should be 

made while transacting with the customer and before consummating the 

transaction, if such reference is material to the understanding of the 

consumer of the nature of the product and services we offer , as well as its 

benefits and risks.  As a written document, the T&C must be complete but 

concise, easily understandable, accurate, and presented in a manner that 

facilitates the consumer’s comprehension.  The latter is taken to mean that 

the text of the document should be according to Section 3 of Circular 702 

dated 15 December 2010. 
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The T&C should include at least of the following: 

 

i. The full price or cost to the customer including all interest, 

fees, charges, and penalties.  The T&C must clearly state 

whether interest, fees and charges, and penalties can 

change over time.  The method for computing said 

interest, fees, charges, and penalties shall be presented in 

accordance with circular 730 dated 20 July 2011; 

ii. General information about the operation of the products or 

services including the customer’s obligations and liabilities; 

iii. Cooling-off period, if applicable; 

iv. Cancellation, return and exchange policies, any related cost; 

v. The actions and remedies which the bank may take in the 

event of a default by the customer; 

vi. Procedures to report unauthorized transactions and other 

contingencies, as well as the liabilities of parties in such 

case; and 

vii. A summary of the bank’s complaints handling procedure. 

 

c. Advises customers to read and understand the applicable T&C, when 

considering a product or service. 

d. To ensures that our staff communicates in such a manner that clients can 

understand the terms of the contract, their rights and obligations.  Out staff 

should communicate with techniques that can address literacy limitations of 

the customer. 

e. To provide the customer adequate time to review the T&C of our products 

and services, giving an opportunity to asks questions and receives additional 

information prior to signing contracts or executing transaction.  Our staff 

should be available and capable to answer questions and clarifications from 

the financial customer. 

f. To ensure that the staff/personnel assigned to deal directly with customer, or 

who prepare advertisement materials or markets our products and services  

must be fully knowledgeable and competent about the products and services, 

including statutory and regulatory requirements, and are able to explain the 

nuances to the customer. 

g. We encourage the use of variety of communication channels to disclose clear 

and accurate information.  Such communication channels should be available 

to the public without need for special access requirements, which may entail 

additional expense.  Communication channels should be sufficiently 

responsive to address the literacy limitations of the financial consumer and it 

may be written or verbal as may be warranted. 

h. Discloses pricing information in public domains. 

i. Updates customers with relevant information, free of charge in a clear and 

understandable, comprehensive, and transparent manner, for the duration of 

the contract.  Such information covers the characteristics and the risks of the 

product sold by the bank and our authorized agents. 

j. Imparts targeted information to the specific groups of clients to whom 

specific products are being marketed, with a particular consideration for 
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vulnerable customers.  Communication channels employed for the targeted 

marketing initiatives should be according calibrated. 

k. Enhanced disclosure for more complex products, highlighting the costs and 

risks involved for the customer.  For structures investment products if there 

is any, a Product Highlighted Sheet (PHS) is required.  It should be clear, 

concise, and easily understandable by individual customers based on their 

literacy limitation.  Disclosure must contain information that empowers the 

customer to appreciate the key features of the product and its risks.  It 

should be prepared in the format that facilitates comparison with other 

products.  The PHS should be available at no cost to the public and made 

available to the customer upon request.  Before signing any contract, the 

bank ensures that the customer has freely signed a statement to the effect 

that the customer has duly received, read and understood the PHS. 

l. Notifies the customer in writing of any change in: 

 

i. Interest rate to be paid or charged on any account of the 

customer as soon as possible; and 

ii. A non-interest charge on any account of the customer within 

the number of days as provided under existing regulations 

prior to the effective date of the change. 

 

If the revised terms are not acceptable to the customer, he or she 

should have the right to exit the contract without penalty, provided such 

right is exercise within the reasonable period.  The customer should be 

informed of this right whenever a notice of change is made. 

m. Provides customers with a proof of the transaction immediately after the 

transaction has been completed.  The customer should be given a hard copy 

of each document signed by the clients with all terms and conditions.  We 

should ensure that documents signed by the customer are completely filled 

and that there are no blank terms. 

n. Regularly provides customers with clear and accurate information regarding 

their accounts (e.g. statement of accounts that includes, among others, 

covering period, opening balance/value of transactions, all kinds of interest, 

fees and charges, closing balance, inquiries for outstanding balances, proof 

of payments for loans like OR). 

o. Informs customer of their rights and responsibilities including their right to 

complain and the manner of its submission. 

 

2. Advertising and Promotional Materials 

 

i. Ensures that advertising and marketing materials do not make false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements that may materially 

and/or adversely affect the decision of the customer to avail 

of a service or acquire a product. 

ii. Ensure that advertising and promotional materials are easily readable 

and understandable by the general public.  It should disclose 

clear, accurate, updated, and relevant information about the 

product or service.  It should be balanced and proportional 

(reflecting both advantages and risks of the product or 
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service); visible/audible; key information is prominent and 

not obscured; print is of sufficient size and clearly legible. 

iii. Ensures that promotional materials are targeted according to the 

specific groups of consumers to whom products are 

marketed and the communication channels employed for 

marketing financial services. 

iv. Ensures that all advertising and promotional materials disclose the 

fact that it is a regulated entity and that the name and 

contact details of the regulator are indicated. 

 

3. Conflict of Interest 

 

i. Discloses properly to the consumer prior to the execution of the transaction 

that the bank or any of its staff has an interest in a direct or cross transaction 

with a consumer. 

ii. Discloses the limited availability of products to consumers when the bank 

only recommends products which issued by their related companies, 

particularly when commissions or rebates are the primary basis for 

recommending the particular product to consumers. 

iii. Discloses the basis on which the bank is remunerated at the pre-contractual 

stage. 

iv. Ensures that adequate system and controls are in place to promptly identify 

issues and matters that may be detrimental to a customer’s interest (e.g., 

cases in which advice may have been given merely to meet sales targets, or 

may be driven by financial or other incentives). 

 

Financial consumers have the right to expect that their financial transactions, 

as well as relevant personal information disclosed in the course of a transaction, are 

kept confidential.  Toward this end the bank ensures that we have well-articulated 

information security guidelines, well-defined protocols, a secure database, and 

periodically re-validated procedures in handling the personal information of our 

financial customers.  This should be an end-to-end process that can cover among 

others, the array of information that will be pre-identified and collected, the purpose 

of gathering information, how these will be sourced from the client, the IT-security 

infrastructure of the bank and the protocols for disclosure, both within the bank and 

third parties, if there is any. 

 

Fair treatment ensures that the financial consumers are treated fairly, 

honestly, professionally and are not sold inappropriate and harmful financial products 

and services.  CBB ensures that we have the necessary resources and procedures in 

place, internal monitoring, and control mechanisms, for safeguarding the best 

interest of our customers.  These include general rules, such as those addressing 

ethical staff behavior, acceptable selling practices as well as regulating products and 

practices where customers are more likely to be offered services that are 

inappropriate for their circumstances. 

 

The Consumer Protection Risk Management System (CPRMS) is a means by 

which the bank identifies measure, monitor and control CP risks inherent in its 

operations. The risks belong to the financial consumer or the bank. The CPRMS is 
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proportionate to the size, structure and complexity of the bank’s operations. It 

provides the foundation for ensuring the bank’s adherence to CP standards of 

conduct and compliance with CP laws, rules and regulations in order to prevent risk 

to the bank and any harm or financial loss to the consumer. 

 

The Consumer Assistance Management System (CAMS) is composed of the 

Consumer Assistance Group (CAG) and the Consumer Assistance Officer who plays a 

vital role in the implementation of the CPRMS, as follows: 

 

Roles of Consumer Assistance Officer 

1) Receive and acknowledge consumer concerns; 

2) Records concerns in a Register or Database; 

3) Make an initial review and investigation of concerns; 

4) Process concerns; 

5) Provide official reply to the customer; 

6) Request client feedback; 

7) Prepare and submit report to Head Consumer Assistance Officer or 

Consumer Assistance Group 

 

Roles of Consumer Assistance Group (CAG)/Head Consumer Assistance Officer 

(HCAO) 

1)     Monitor consumer assistance process; 

2) Keep track, identify and analyze nature of complaints and 

recommend solutions to avoid recurrence; 

3) Report to Senior Management the complaints received on a monthly 

basis including reasons for such complaints, the recommended 

solutions to avoid recurrence and the suggestions for process or 

personnel competency needing improvement; 

4) Ensure immediate escalation of any significant complaint to 

concerned unit of the Bank. 

 
Manual of Policies and Procedures in Handling Consumer Assistance 

I. Introduction 

The BSP acknowledges the indispensable role of financial consumers in bringing about a 
strong and stable financial system, their right to be protected in all stages of their 

transactions with the Bank, and be given an avenue to air out their grievances in the products 
and services of the Bank. 

 

II. Applicability and Scope 
 

These minimum guidelines on receiving, recording, evaluating, resolving, monitoring, 
reporting, and giving feedback to consumers shall apply to CBB and its branches and other 
offices. These guidelines shall, as far as practicable, also apply to inquiries and requests 

received from clients and potential clients. 
 

III. Definition of Terms 

 
1. Complaint – is an expression of dissatisfaction relative to a financial product or 

service in which a response or resolution is expected. 
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2. Simple complaint/request – complaint/request where frontline staff solution or 

immediate explanation or action can be rendered. A resolution is immediate if it can 
be resolved without the need of third-party intervention, such as outsource service 
providers, external auditors, or other Banks. Resolution thereof must be achieved 

within a 7-day period. 
 

3. Complex complaint/request - complaint/request which needs assessment, verification, 

or investigation with third-party intervention. Resolution thereof may ideally be 
achieved within a 45-day period. 

 
4. Consumer – refers to natural or juridical person who has complaint, inquiry or 

request relative to the Bank’s products and services. 

 
IV. Role of the Board and Senior Management 

 

The Board of Directors shall be responsible for the delivery of effective recourse to its 
consumers. Pursuant thereto, the Board shall: 
 

a. Approve the Consumer Assistance policies and procedures; 
b. Approve Risk Assessment Strategies relating to Effective Recourse by the Consumer; 
c. Ensure compliance with Consumer Assistance policies and procedures; 

d. Provide adequate resources devoted to Consumer Assistance; and 
e. Review the Consumer Assistance policies at least annually. 

 

The Bank’s Senior Management shall be responsible for the implementation of the Consumer 
Assistance policies and procedures. 

 

E. Consumer Assistance Channel 
 

1. Consumers may lodge their concerns through any reasonable means, such as, a 
centralized web-portal, walk-in or personal visit, letter, e-mail, telephone, and 
facsimile. 

 
2. The Bank must maintain a Consumer Assistance Helpdesk or hotline dedicated for 

customer concerns and service and manned by a Consumer Assistance Group. 

 
Tagbilaran Branch Branch Manager Contact No. 501-9904; 411-3483 

Candijay Branch Branch Manager 510-6237 

Inabanga Branch Branch Manager 512-9712 
Corporate Office President (Head CAO) 501-9904; 427-2116 
 

3. The Bank shall ensure that customers know how and where to lodge their concerns. 
 

4. The Bank provides alternative modes of resolution, thru the conciliation, mediation 

and arbitration committee, in order to achieve settlement of the issues at the Bank 
level. 

 
F. Consumer Assistance Process and Timeliness 
 

1. Complaint/Request 
 

 SIMPLE* COMPLEX* 

Acknowledgment Within 2 days Within 2 days 

Processing and Resolution (assess, investigate, and 

resolve 

Within 7 days Within 45 days 
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Communication and Resolution Within 9 days Within 47 days 

  *all periods are reckoned from receipt of complaint. 
 

a. Receiving and acknowledging complaints/requests 
 

i. A Bank shall obtain and record the following data from the consumer (Annex 
A):  
(1) full name and contact details;  

(2) nature of complaint or request and its details;  
(3) resolution requested;  

(4) signature of the complainant/requester; and  
(5) name of Bank personnel directly handling/in-charge of the complaint. 

 

ii. The Consumer Assistance Officer must be able to explain the Consumer 
Assistance process and timeliness. 

 

iii. The acknowledgment shall provide an assurance that the Bank is dealing with 
the complaint, request additional documents, if necessary, and that the 
complainant shall be kept informed of the progress of the measures being 

taken for the complaint’s resolution. 
 

b. Investigating and Resolving Complaints 

 
i. The Bank must establish an institutional approach in assessing and 

investigating complaints/requests and options in resolving them, considering 

the peculiarities of the complaints/requests and the desired remedies of the 
parties. 

ii. If assessment and investigation on complex complaints/requests cannot be 

completed within the time frame stated above, complainants shall be informed 
of the: i) reason thereof; ii) need for extended timeframe; and iii) date on 

which the complainant may expect the outcome of the BANKs assessment 
and/or investigation; Provided, however, that the additional period shall not 
exceed forty-five (45) days. This will afford the complainants opportunity to 

seek other means to resolve their complaints. 
iii. Result of assessment, investigation, and the Bank’s final response shall be 

communicated to the complainant in writing in simple and clear language. The 

Bank shall likewise inform the complainant of the possible remedies available 
to the party, including resort to BSP Consumer Assistance Mechanism and the 
courts. 

 
Inquiries 
The Bank must respond to the inquiries received, at the latest, by the next business day. 

 
G. Confidentiality 
 

The Bank shall not disclose to a third party the information acquired from the consumer in all 
stages of the complaint, except as may be required by the conduct of the Bank’s 

investigation. 
 
H.  Conflict of Interest 

 
A Bank shall ensure that complaints are investigated by a Consumer Assistance Officer who is 
neither directly nor indirectly involved in the matter which is the subject of the complaint. 

 
I. Consumer Feedback 
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1. Subject to the willingness of the customer, the Bank shall ask for feedback on the 
following matters (Annex B): 

a. Overall satisfaction (whether satisfied, somewhat satisfied, or dissatisfied); 
b. Processes needing improvement; 
c. Personnel needing improvement; 

d. Any suggestions for improvement. 
 
2. Consumer feedback may be obtained through a feedback form/customer satisfaction 

survey available for walk-in complaints, in the website, or through a voice logger system. 
 

3. Customer feedbacks shall be recorded and analyzed to improve the system and to 
enhance personnel capabilities in handling complaints. 

 

J. Complaints Recording/Data Management 
 

1. The Bank and its branches/other offices shall maintain copies of the complaints/requests 

received, including supporting and other relevant documents thereto, within a period of 2 
years from the date of resolution. 
 

Microfilms/digital copies of original documents may be maintained by the Bank in 
accordance with its Management Information Systems for record keeping. 
 

2. The Bank and its branches/other offices shall maintain complaints/requests register which 
contains the following information (Annex C): 
 

a. Name of the complainant; 
b. Subject and nature of the complaint; 

 

The subject and nature of complain may be indicated by classification, such as 
those related to credit cards, deposits, administrative, foreign exchange, 

remittances, investments, others; 
 

c. Name of the personnel directly handling/in-charge of the complaint and officer 

supervising the resolution of the complaint. 
d. Date of receipt of complaint by the Bank; 
e. Actions taken on the complaint or request; 

f. Resolution provided; 
g. Date of resolution; and 

(The complaint register must reveal the reason in case the date of resolution falls 

outside the regulatory deadline.) 
h. Other information such as, log and details of phone calls made or received. 

 

3. The Consumer Assistance Group/Head Consumer Association Officer shall maintain 
(Annex D): 

a. A master register of all complaints received by the Bank and its branches/other 

offices; and 
b. A complaint database to identify the trend of complaints received potential 

problems, and risks. 
 
K. Risk Assessment Strategies 

 
Pursuant to the Bank’s Consumer Protection Risk Management System, the Bank shall put in 
place appropriate management controls and take reasonable steps to ensure that in handling 

complaints/requests, it: i) identifies and remedies any recurring or systematic problems; and 
ii) identifies weaknesses in the Bank’s  internal control procedure and processes. This may be 
done by: 



107 | P a g e  

 

 
1. Analyzing complaints/requests data; 

2. Analyzing causes for complaints/requests; 
3. Considering whether such identified weaknesses may also affect other processes or products, 

including those not directly complained of/requested; and 

4. Correcting, whether reasonable to do so, such causes taking into consideration the 
concomitant costs and other resources. 

 

L. Complaint Reporting 
 

1. Internal Reporting (Annex E) 
 
a. The Consumer Assistance Officers in the branches, extensions office and other offices 

of the Bank shall submit a complaints report to the Consumer Assistance Group/Head 
Consumer Assistance Officer on a monthly basis. 
 

b. Complaints report shall be submitted on a monthly basis by the Consumer Assistance 
Officer to the Board and Senior Management. 

 

c. The report shall include, as minimum: 
i. General category of complaints received; 
ii. Statistics/frequency of said complaints; 

iii. Aging of complaints/requests; 
iv. Explanations on deviations, if any, from required resolution period; and 
v. General description of resolutions and actions taken to resolve 

complaints/requests. 
 

d. The report shall include recommendation on how to avoid recurring complaints and 

suggestions for process/personnel competency improvement, as needed. 
 

e. The report of the Bank’s Compliance and Internal Audit Departments concerning the 
independent review conducted on the complaints report, policy recommendations, 
and consumer protection compliance, shall be elevated to Board every quarter. 

 
f. The Bank shall include complaints/requests statistics in its Annual Report. 

 

2. Reporting to the BSP 
 
The Bank shall submit a consolidated Complaints Report to the Supervisory Data Center 

(SDC) of the Supervision and Examination Sector on a quarterly basis. Such report shall 
be submitted in the format required by BSP. Submission of the report to the SDC shall 
not be later than one (1) month after the end of every quarter. A complaints report is 

category B Report for purposes of applying the appropriate monetary penalty. 
 

M. Interface with BSP 

 
1. Pursuant to BSP’s Consumer Protection Framework, the Bank shall exhaust all internal 

remedies available to address the issues raised by the consumers in their 
complaints/requests. 
 

2. Consumers dissatisfied with the Bank’s response or action may seek assistance with BSP-
FCAG in accordance with BSP Consumer Assistance Mechanism. 

 

3. Allegations of consumers that the Bank has not properly and efficiently handled, 
processed, and responded to their concerns shall be validated, and where appropriate, 
considered in FCAG’s assessment of the Bank’s compliance with BSP Consumer Protection 
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regulations. This is without prejudice to the imposition of appropriate enforcement 
actions. It is presumed that the higher number of complaints received by the BSP reflects 

the non-effectiveness of the Bank’s CAMS. 
 
N. Outsourcing of Handling Consumer Concerns 

 
 In outsourcing of handling consumer concerns, the Bank shall: 

1. Conduct due diligence in the selection of the outsourced entity/person; 

2. Be responsible for the performance thereof in the same manner and to the same extent 
as if performed by itself; 

3. Comply with all laws and regulations governing the consumer assistance 
activities/services performed by the outsource entity/person in its behalf; and 

4. Manage, monitor, and review on an ongoing basis the performance by the outsource 

entity/person of the outsourced consumer assistance activities/services. 
 
O. Accountability and Rewards 

 
In order to ensure fair treatment and responsible business conduct of personnel engaged in 
consumer relations, a performance appraisal system which considers the performance of the 

personnel assigned to manage/handle complaints shall be put in place. The performance 
appraisal of the personnel shall be linked to their efficiency in handling consumer complaints. 
This could be done through rewards/remuneration for excellent behavior. 

 
P. Consumer Assistance to Persons with Disabilities (PWDs) and Non-English 

Speakers 

 
As far as practicable, the Bank shall take into account the needs of PWDs, such as, but not 
limited to those with learning difficulties, people who are deaf of hard of hearing, the visually 

impaired, and the non-English speakers, in ensuring that they understand the CAMS. 
 

Q. Repealing Clause 
 

These guidelines supersede/amend/modify other existing regulations on timelines for the 

Bank’s complaints handling, except for those provided under Section X320.13 of the MORB on 
complaints concerning credit card billing errors and discrepancy. 
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LIST OF MAJOR STOCKHOLDER (No major stockholder) 

 

 
 

BANK’S SERVICES 

 
The primary services rendered by the Cooperative Bank of Bohol are to accept deposits and 

to grant loans. 

 

DEPOSIT 

 

1) Savings (Regular)  
 

Savings (Regular) is a kind of savings deposit describes as follows: 
 
a) The depositor will be issued a passbook after complying all the required documents in 

opening an account.   
b) Interest shall be computed quarterly based on average daily balance (ADB). 
c) Maintaining balance per month to earn interest shall be P2, 000.00. 

d)  Interest rate is 1.5% per annum. 
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e) The interest earned shall be charged with a withholding tax of 20%. 
f) The maximum deposit insurance with PDIC is  P500,000.00 per depositor 

g) Charges: 
 
Below maintaining balance  – P200.00 

Closed account    – P250.00 
Lost passbook    – P300.00 

 

h) Qualified to open an account: 
 

i) Individual 
 At least 7 years old 
 Filipino citizen 

 If, foreigner with passport and one of the following: 
Alien Certificate of Registration (ACR) 
Special Investor’s Resident Visa (SIRV) 

Special Resident Retiree’s Visa (SRRV) 
ii) Corporation/Partnership 
iii) Cooperative 

iv) Association/Organization 
 

2) Savings (Basic) 

 
A basic deposit account refers to interest or non-interest-bearing account designed to 

promote financial inclusion.  This account will enable Filipinos, especially the unserved and 

underserved, to receive and make payments, as well as have a facility for store of value.  It will 
have the basic functionalities that will characterize ease, accessibility, convenience, and 

reasonable cost for both banks and customers. (Sec.1 section X222 of the MORB) 
 
A basic deposit account designed to promote financial inclusion primarily aimed towards the 

unserved low income markets. 
 

Features of basic deposit account are more described as follows: 

 
1. Opening amount of P100.00 only 
2. No minimum maintaining balance 

3. No dormancy charges 
4. Aggregate deposits should not exceed P50, 000.00 or the bank shall convert the 

account to regular savings deposit account should the depositor exceeded the 

maximum balance. 
5. Interest rate is 0.30% per annum based on the ADB and is creditable every quarter 

end. 

6. The depositor will be issued a passbook after complying the necessary requirement/s. 
 

Documentary Requirements 
 

The depositor shall submit any one (1) of the following documents: 

a. Any valid ID 
b. Barangay Certification 
c. Cedula 

d. Voter Certification 
e. Any other documents as proof of identity 
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3) Savings (ATM) 
 

Savings (ATM) is another type of savings deposit wherein a depositor will be issued an ATM 
card after complying all the required documents in opening an account.  This ATM card shall be 
used whenever a depositor will withdraw at any automatic teller machines. A depositor may opt 

to withdraw over the counter for some emergency cases. This account will not earn interest. 
Other features for this Savings (ATM) are as follows: 

 
a) Minimum amount in opening shall be P500.00. 

 

b) Maintaining balance per month to earn interest shall be P1, 000.00. 
 

c) Maximum deposit insurance with PDIC is P500, 000.00 per depositor. 

 
d) Charges: 
  Lost card – P300.00 

  Account verifying in other banks without receipt - P1.00 
                                                                                With receipt - P2.00 
  Withdrawal of account in other banks is chargeable.  

e) Qualified to open an account: 
 
i) Individual 

At least 7 years old 
Filipino citizen 
If, foreigner with passport and one of the following: 

Alien Certificate of Registration (ACR) 
Special Investor’s Resident Visa (SIRV) 

Special Resident Retiree’s Visa (SRRV) 
 

4) Premium Savings (Passbook with higher rates) 

 
Another type of savings deposit with higher interest rates compared to Savings (Regular) 

and Time Deposit is the Premium Savings. The depositor will be issued a passbook after 

complying all the required documents in opening an account.  Interest shall be computed 
quarterly based on average daily balance (ADB). An additional amount shall be allowed only 
upon maturity. Other features to describe this type of account are as follows: 

 
a) Minimum amount in opening shall be P50, 000.00. 

 

b) Maintaining balance per month shall be P50, 000.00. 
 

c)  Interest rate shall be based on market rate  

 
                

90days               180days                360days 
 50,000.00 – 349,999.99   2.25%  2.50%  2.50% 
 350,000.00 – 699,999.99 2.50%  3.00%  3.00% 

 700,000.00 – 999,999.99 3.00%  3.25%  3.25% 
 P1M and above   4.50%  4.50%  4.50% 
  

d) Interest earned shall be charged with a withholding tax of 20%. 
e) Maximum deposit insurance with PDIC is P500, 000.00 per depositor. 

 

f) Charges: 
  Below maintaining balance – P200.00 per month 
  Closed account within 30 days– P250.00 
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  Withdrawal in excess of 3 times a month – P75.00 per transaction 
  Lost passbook – P300.00 

g) Qualified to open an account: 
i) Individual 

At least 18 years old 

Filipino citizen 
If, foreigner with passport and one of the following: 

Alien Certificate of Registration (ACR) 

Special Investor’s Resident Visa (SIRV) 
Special Resident Retiree’s Visa (SRRV) 

ii) Corporation/Partnership 
iii) Cooperative 
iv) Association/Organization 

 
5) Time 

 

Time deposit is a type of deposit describe as follows: 
a) The depositor will be issued a certificate after complying all the required documents in 

opening an account.   

b) Interest shall be computed based on term. 
c) Minimum amount in opening shall be P5, 000.00. 
d) Interest rate shall be based on market rate  

 
   30days      90days 180days             360days 

50,000.00 – 349,999.99  1.75%        1.75% 1.95%  1.95% 

350,000.00 – 699,999.99 1.95%        1.95% 2.20%  2.20% 
700,000.00 – 999,999.99 2.20%        2.20% 2.45%  2.70% 
P1M and above   2.70%        2.95% 3.20%          3.20% or 3.45%** 

 **3.20% interest pa is applicable to those who withdraw their interest monthly 
 **3.45% interest pa is applicable to those who withdraw their interest upon maturity 

 
e) Excess number of days after maturity of the account’s term, interest rate shall be equal to 

the prevailing interest rate on savings regular deposit. 

 
f) For P1M and above amount of time deposit with a term of 360 days, the depositor may 

opt to get his interest monthly.  

 
g) Time deposit that will be pre-terminated on or before half of the required term, the 

interest would only be 25% of the specified rate. If made after half of the required term, 

the interest would be 50%. 
 

h) Maximum deposit insurance with PDIC is P500, 000.00 per depositor. 

 
i) Charges: 

Documentary stamps - P1.50 for every P200.00, effective November 1, 2021 and onwards, 

documentary stamp tax on all time deposit placements P5 million and below shall 
proportionately be shared by the bank and the depositor at 75% and 25%, respectively. 

Meanwhile, documentary stamp tax on all time deposit placements above P5 million and 
those with aggregate time deposit placement above P5 million shall still be shouldered and 
paid by the bank. If pre-terminated, documentary stamps shall be charged to the 

depositor. 
 
Withholding tax – 20% 
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j) Qualified to open an account: 
 

i) Individual 
 

At least 7 years old 

Filipino citizen 
If, foreigner with passport and one of the following: 
Alien Certificate of Registration (ACR) 

Special Investor’s Resident Visa (SIRV) 
Special Resident Retiree’s Visa (SRRV) 

 
ii) Corporation/Partnership 

 

iii) Cooperative 
 

iv) Association/Organization 

 
 
A. TIME AND SAVINGS DEPOSIT (SPECIAL RATE)  

 
Savings: (Board Rate – 1.15%) 
No Premium Rate -  Prospective application. All existing Savings 

Deposit with premium rates shall be treated 
as is.  

Time  

 BM I & II        - up to 0.15%  
President (inclusive of BM’s premium rate)- up to 1.00%  
 Prospective application. All existing CTDs 

with premium rates higher than 1% shall be 
treated as is until its maturity.  

 
 All succeeding Savings Deposit and/or Certificate of Time Deposits with premium rates higher 

than the above approved rates shall be confirmed by the Board. 

 
 
 

 
OTHER SERVICES 

1. POINT OF SALE 

2. PERA PADALA THROUGH CEBUANA LHUILLIER 

 

 

BANK’S WEBSITE 

 

The Bank has launched its official website http://www.cooperativebankofbohol.com in February, 2020 

where the banking public can access and view the many products and services offered, properties for 

sale, notices to shareholders and clients, bank activities, job opportunities and the latest updates 

about the bank. 
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LIST OF BANKING UNITS 

 
Corporate Office CPG East Avenue, Tagbilaran City 
   Telefax Nos. (038) 427-2116, 501-9904 

   Juvie D. Calacat – President and CEO 
 

Tagbilaran Branch CPG East Avenue, Tagbilaran City 
   Telefax Nos. (038) 411-3483, 501-9904 
   Cherry A. Lumacang – Branch Manager 

 
Candijay Branch  Poblacion, Candijay, Bohol 
   Tel. No. (038) 510-6237; 417-5587 

   Angie D. Rule – Branch Manager 
 
Inabanga Branch Poblacion, Inabanga, Bohol 

   Tel. No. (038) 417-5445 
   Arjo L. Aya-ay – Branch Manager  
 

 

II. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (AFS) WITH AUDITOR’S OPINION  

 

III. CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND CAPITAL ADEQUACY 
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4t14123.4:23 AM Yahoo Mail - Tax Retum Roceipt Confirmation

Tax Return Receipt Confirmation

ebirforms-noreply@bir.gov.ph (ebirforms-noreply@bir.9ov.ph)

cooperativeban k_bohol@yahoo.com

Thursday, 13 April 2023 at 1 1:47 pm GMT+8

From

To:

Date:

This confirms receipt of your submission with the following details subject to validation by BIR:

FOR RETURNS W]TH TAX PAYABLE:
Please pay through any of the following ePayment Channels:

Land Bank of the Philippines Link.BizPortal

LBP ATM Cards
Bancnet ATM/Debit Cards
PCHC Paycate or PESONeT (RCBC, Robinsons Bank, UnionBank, PSBank, BPl, Asia United Bank)

DBP PayTax Online

Credit Cards (Mastercard^/isa)
Bancnet ATM/Debit Cards

Unionbank of the Philippines

. Unionbank online (for Unionbank lndividual and Corporate Account Holders)

. UPAY via lnstaPay (For lndividual Non-Unionbank Account Holders)

Taxpayer AgenU Tax Software Provider-TsP

. (Gcash/PayMaya/MyEG)

This is a system{enerated email. Please do not reply.

Bureau of lntomal Revenue

DISCTAIMER

This emall and its attachments may be confldential and are intended solely
for the use of the indivldual or entity to whom it is addressed'

If you are not the intended recipient of this email and its attachmentsr you

,rtt t"k" no action based upon them, non must you disseminate, distribute or
copy this e-maiI. PIease contact the senden immediately if you believe you

have received this email in error.

E-mail transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secune or ernor-free' The

recipient should check this email and any attachments for the presence of
viruses. The Bureau of Internal Revenue does not accept liability for any

errons or omissions i.n the contents of this message which arise as a result
of e-mail transmisslon '

abouLblank
111

File name: 000535427000-1 7O2MXv2O1 8C-1222.xm!
Dale received by BIR: 13 April 2023
Time received by BIR: 11:35 PM
Penalties may be imposed for any violation of the provisions of the NIRC and issuances thereof.



coopElatrvE.am oF roEol.
(l.P.G East Avenu€, 'l agbilarsnCity
'felephone Nos.:,127-21 16 local 107

Enrail Add ress: coopemtivebank_bohol@yrfi oo.cont

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBI LIT}'
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of COOPERATM BANK OF BOHOL is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules

attached therein, for the yean ended Dec€rnbe 3 I , 2022 and 2021 , it accordance with
the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such intemal

control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial

statements that are free from material misstatemen! whether due to fraud or error.

tn preparing the financial statements, rnanagement is responsible for assessing the

Bank's ability to continue as a going mncern, disclosing, as applicable matters related

to going conc€rn and using the going concem basis of accounting utless management

either intends to liquidate the Bank or to ceas€ operations, or has no realistic

altemative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting
process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the

schedules attached therein and submits the same to the memb€rs.

Minerva & Company, Certified Public Accomtants, the independent auditors

appointed by the members, has audited the financial statements of the Bank in
accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the members,

has expressed its opinion on the faimess of presentation upon completion of such

audit
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GOOPEIATTVE EAI{ls OT EOEOL
C.P.G East Avenue. TagbilaranCity
Telephone Nos,: 427-21l6local 107

Entail Address: cooperativebank_bohol@yahoo.com

contested in rh

STATEMENT OF MANAGE,MENTTS RESPONSIBIILITY
FOR ANNI-IAL INCOME TAX RETIiRN

The Management of COOPERATM BANK OF BOHOL is responsible for all
information and representations contained in the Annual Income Tax Retum for the
year ended Iletenber 31, 2U22. Idanagenrent is likewise rcsponsible for all
information and representations contained in the frnarrcial statements accompanying
the Annual Income Tax Return covering the same reporting period. Furthermore, the
Management is responsible for all information and representations contained in all the

other tax retums filed for the reporting period, including, but not limited, to the value

added tax andor percentage tax retums, withholding tax r€tums, docrm nrary stamp

t&x retums, ard any and all other tax retums.

In this regard, the Management affirms that the attached audited financial statements

for the year ended December 31.- 2022 and the accompanying Annual Income Tax
Retum are in accordance with the books and records of COOFERATM BANK OF
BOEOL complete and correct in all marerial respects. Managemenl likewise affirms
that:

(a) the Annual Income Tax Retum has been prepared in accordance with the

provisions of the National Internal Revenue Code, as amended and pertinent

tax reguldions ard other issuances of ttre Departnent of Finance and the

Bureau of Irternal Reventr;

(b) any disparity of figr.rres in the submitted reports arising fmm the preparation of
financial statements pursuant to financial accounting standards and the

prcperation of the income tax r€tum pursuar to tax rcowrting rules has been

reported as reconciling iterns and mainrained in the Bank's books and records

in accor&nce with the requirements of Revenue Regulations No. 8-2007 and

oth€r relevant issuances,

(c) the C(X)Pf,,RATwE BANK OF BOHOL tns filed all applicable tax

returns, reports ard statements requked to be filed under Philippine tax laws

for the reporting period, and all taxes and other impositions shown thereon 1o

be due and payable have been paid for the reporting period, except thosc

_J
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Chairman of the Board

CAI-A

E\IlIA\ D D

Treasurer
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Sisred this 2olhdnU of t'\4r(h , 2023
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CERTIFICATION

ln accordance with the requirements of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) under the Circular Letter No. 1074
series of 2020, we hereby certify that the disclosure requirements of Section 174 of the Manual of Regulations
for Banks (MORB) presented as a supplementary information in the Notes to the Financial Statements of
Cooperative Bank of Bohol (the "Bank") as at and for the years ended December 31 ,2022 and 2021 have been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. Such supplementary
information is the responsibilty of management. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

MINERVA & COMPANY, CPAS

PRC/BoA Reg. cert. No.4870 - Valid unti|01.31.2026
SEC Accred. No. 396-F - Valid until 10.13.2023

BsP Accred. No. 4870-BSP - Valid until 01.21.2025
NEA Accred No. 2022{8-00090 - Valid until 07.21.2025
CDA CEA No. 0058-AF - Valid until 01.04.2024

E P. A

CPA Cert. No.82085
T.r.N. 130-291-145
PTR No. 2308225 dated 01.27.2023

SEC Accred. No. 1816-A - Valid until 10.13.2023

BSP Accred. No. 82085-8SP - Valid until 01.21.2025

8lR Accred. No. 13-011018-002-2020 - Valid until 11.07.2023

March 20, 2023
Cebu City, Philippines

The Executive Floor, PVB Bldg., Osmeia Blvd., Cebu City G-100 Mile Long Building, Amorsolo St., Makati City

Tel/Fax Nos.(+63-32) 238-2566, 412-3838, & 412-3636 Tel./Fax Nos lOzl +te-tOtylt
E-mail Address: epminerva@min€rva-cpa.com

This certification is lssued in compliance with the BSP reportorial r€quirements.
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CERTIFICATION

ln accordance with the requirements of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) under the Circular Letter
No. 1074 series of 2020, we hereby certify that as part of our examination of the financial statements of
cooperative Eank of Bohol (the "Bank") as at and for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, we
requested for a "read-only access" of the Bank's Report on Examination. we have complied with the
confidentiality clause in accordance with the BSP requirement.

This certification is issued in compliance with the BSP reportorial requirements

MINERVA & COMPANY, CPA5

PRC/BoA Reg. Cert. No.4870 - Valid unti|01.31.2026
SEC Accred. No. 396-F - Valid until 10.13.2023

8SP Accred. No. 4870-BSP - Valid until 01.21.2025
NEA Accred No. 2022-08-00090 - Valid until 07.21.2025

CDA CEA No. 0068-AF - Valid until 01.04.2024

E R ERVA

CPA cert. No.82086
T.r.N. 130-291-145
PTR No. 2308225 dated 01.27.2023

SEC Accred. No. 1816-A - Valid until 10.13.2023

BSP Accred. No. 82086-8SP - Valid until 01.21.2025
BIR Accred. No. 13-011018-002-2020 - Valid until 77.07.2023

March 20,2023
cebu City, Philippines

The Executive Floor, PVB Bldg., Osmeia Blvd., Cebu City G-100 Mile Long Building, Amorsolo St., Makati City

TeUFax Nos.(+53-32) 238-2566, 412-3838, &412-3636 Tel./Fax Nos. 1Oz1 oA-m+ql
E-mail Address: epminerva@minerva-cpa.com C"'
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CERTIFICATION

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN

1. No materialfindings involving fraud, dishonesty, (including cases that were resolved during the period of
audit).

2. No findings to the effect that the consolidated assets of the company, on a going concern basis are no

longer adequate to cover the total claims of the creditor.

3. No material internal control weaknesses which may lead to financial reporting problems,

4. No material breach of laws or BSP rules and regulations such as, but not limited to:

a. Capital adequacy ratio; and

b. Loans and other risk assets review and classification

5. No matters of corporate governance that may require ur8ent action by the BSP.

This certification is issued in compliance with the BsP reportorial requirements.

MINERVA & COMPANY, CPAS

PRC/BOA Reg. Cen. No.4870 - Valid unti|01.31.2026
SEC Accred. No. 396-F - Valid until 10.13.2023

85P Accred. No. 4870-BSP - Valid until 01.21.2025

NEA Accred No. 2022-08-00090 - Valid until 07.21.2025

CDA CEA No. 0058-AF - Valid until 01.04.2024

ELM

CPA Bo rt No.82085
T.r.N. 130-291-145
PTR No.2308225 dated 07.27.2023

5EC Accred. No. 1816-A - Valid until 10.13.2023

BsP Accred. No. 82085-BsP - Valid until 01.21.2025

BIR Accred. No. 13-011018-002-2020 - Valid until 11.-07.2023

March 20,2023
Cebu City, Philippines

Ttle Execrtive Roor, ryB Bldg., Osmeia Blvd., Cebu City G-100 Mile Lonq Building, Amorsolo St., Makati City

Tel/Fax Nos.(+63-32) 238-2566, 412-3838, & 412-3636 Tel./Fax Nos. tO4 +le-+O+efit
E-mail Address: epminerva@minerva-cpa.com

lrG I

This is to certify that the Cooperative Bank of Bohol (the "Bank") has:

P.
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CERTIFICATION

ln accordance with the requirements of the Eangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) under the Circular Letter
No. 1074 series of 2020, we hereby certify that as part of our examination of the financial statements of
Cooperative Bank of Bohol (the "Bank") as at and for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, we have
not noted issues that would warrant the submission of Letter of Comments (LOC).

This certification is issued in compliance with the BSP reportorial requirements.

MINERVA & COMPANY, CPAS

PRC/BOA Reg. Cert. No.4870 - Valid unti|01.31.2026
SEC Accred. No. 395-F - Valid until 10.13.2023

8SP Accred. No. 4870-BSP - Valid until 01.21.2025
NEA Accred No. 2022-08-00090 - Valid until 07.21.2025
CDA CEA No. 0068-4F - Valid until 01.04.2024

E P

CPA Board Cert. No. 82086
T.t.N. 130-291-145
PTR No. 2308225 dated 07.21.2023

SEc Accred. No. 1816-A - Valid until 10.13.2023

BSP Accred. No. 82086-8SP - Valid until 01.21.2025
BIR Accred. No. 13-011018-002-2020 - Valid until 11.07.2023

March 20,2023
Cebu City, Philippines

The Executive Floor, Fr'B BEg., Osmeia Blvd., Cebu City G-100 Mile Long Building, Amgrsolo St., Makati City

Tel/Fax Nos.(+63-32) 238-2566, 412-3838, & 412-3636 Tel /Fax Nos. 1oZ1 en-+otA[Z
E-mail Address: epminerva@minerva-cpa.com
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I NDEPENOENT AUDITORS' REPORT

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

COOPERANVE BANK OF BOHOL

Carlos P. Garcia, East Avenue, Tagbilaran City

Opinion
-

we have audited the financial statements of COOPERATIVE BANK OF BOHoL (the "Bank"), ch comprise the

statement offinancial position as at Decembet 37,2022 and 2021, and the statement of comprehensive income,

statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

tn our opinion, the accompanving financial statements presert fairly, in allmaterial respects, the financial position of

the Bank as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then

ended in accordance with the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRss).

Bosis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordancewith the Phllippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our responsibilities under

those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional

AccountanG in the PhilippirEs (Code of Ethics)together with the ethica lrequirementsthat are relevant to our audit

ot financial state me nts in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other eth icalresponsibilities in acc ordance with

these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

E

Emphosis of Motter

without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 10 to the financial statements wherein the Bank

recorded accrued interest receivable as at December 37, 2022 and 2021. As per the respective provisions of

cooperative Development Authority (cDA), cooperatives which are into lending activities should account for its

interest income for loans receivable once it has been collected only. On the other hand, respective provisions of

Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (8sP) accounts the interest income on accrual basis except for interest from past due

loaris and loans under litigation which are accounted for only as interest income once it has been collected The

recorded accrued interest receivdble could resultto an overstatement of the Bank's revenue for the same amount

Further, Note 17 to the financial statements indicates thatthe Bank has recognized liability for the depositfor future

stocks subscription (DFSS) following the disapproval of the Bank's application to BSP for the increase in its

authorizedcommonsharesin2olS'onMarch2,2020,theBankhasre-appliedtoBSPforthesaidincreaseinits
authorized common shares, However, this was subsequently returned for requirement deficiencies

on March 2022, the Bank re-submitted its applicationfor the increase in authorized capital stock with BsP but was

returned due tothe BsP,s proposed amendments to the Bank's By-Laws (BL), particularly Article vlll, sections 3 and

4, on the constitution of the Mediation and conciliation committee and the Ethics committee in re la tion to Art 43

oi Republic Act No.952O (The Cooperative Code of 2OO8). The Bank intends to re-apply by 2023 and is preparinB all

the requirements in accordance with Memorandum on the Proposed Templates of Articles of Cooperation (AOC)

and BL of Cooperative Banks (No. M-2023{01). Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter'

Further, we draw attention to Note 2 to the financial stateme nts which states the basis of accounting that has been

used in the preparation of the financial statements. The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in

accordance withthe PFRss, as modified by the application of the financial reporting reliefs issued by the BsP and

approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) in response to the COVID-19 pandemic'

The Executive Floor, PVB Bldg., osmeia Blvd., Cebu City

Ter/Fax Nos.(+63-32) 238-2566, 412-3838, & 412-3636

E-mail Address: epminerva@minerva-cpa.com

G-100 Mile Long Building, Amorsolo St., Makati City

Tel./Fax Nos. (O2) 478-4048*



Responsibilities ol Mqnogement ond Those Chorged with Govemon ce for the Financiol Stotements

Management is responsiblefor the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance the
PFRSS, and for such internal control as the management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statemenG that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error. ln preparing the
financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosin& as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
managementeitherintendstoliquidatetheBankortoceaseoperation5,orhasnorealisticalternativebuttodoso.

Auditors' Responsibilities lot the Audit ol the Finonciol Stotements

O u r objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whethe r the financial state me nts as a whole are fre e fro m
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high levelof assurance, but is not a guarantee that an auditconducted in accordance with
PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individualV or in the aggregate, they could reasonablybe ex pected to influence the econonic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As partof an audit in accordancewith PSAs, we exercise profesSonaljudgment and maintain professional skepticivn
throughout the audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion. The risk of not detectinB a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of inte rnal controlre levant to the audit in order to desiSn audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Bank's internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policiesused and the reasombleness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by management.

conclude on the appropriateness of management's use ofthe going concern basis of accounting and, based on

the auditevidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may

cast signifiqant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a Soing concern. lf we conclude that a material

uncertainty exists, we are requiredto draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the

financialstatementsor,ifSuChdisclosuresareinadequate,tomodifyoUropinion.OurConclusionsarebased
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions

may cause the gank to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluatetheoverallpresentation,structureandcontentofthefinancialstatements,includingthedisclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

We communicated with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and siSnificant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

The E)€cltive Floor, Fy'B Building.Osmena Blvd. CebuCity, G-100Mile Lo
Tel / Fax Nos. (+63 32) 238-2566, 412-3838, and 412-3636 Tel / Fax No s

E-rnail Add ress: epminerva@minerva<pa.co m

ng Bu ding,AmoEolq Street, Makatr Crty
. (+63 02\ 478-4u8*2

a_-,,-

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Eank's financial reporting process.



Report on the Supplementory lnformotion Required Undet Revenue Regulotions No.75-2010 ond Bongko Sentrul ng
Pilipinos Citculor No. 7074

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
The supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations No. 15-2010 in Note 27 and the Bangko Sentral
ng Pilipinas Circular No. 1074 in Note 28 to the financial statements are presented for purposes of filing with the
Bureau of lnternal Revenue and Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas, respectively, and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such supplementary information is the responsibility of management. The information has been
subjeded to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statement. ln our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

MINERVA & COMPANY, CPAS

PRC/BOA Reg. Cert. No.4870 - Valid until 01.31.2026
SEC Accred. No. 396-F - Valid until 10.13.2023

BSP Accred. No. 4870-BSP - Valid until 01.21.2025
NEA Accred No. 2022-08-00090 - Valid until 07.21.2025
CDA CEA No. 0068-AF - Valid until 01.04.2024

E P A

CPA Board Cert. No.82086
T.t.N. 130-291-145
PTR No. 2308225 dated 07.27.2023

SEC Accred. No. 1816-A - Valid until 10.13.2023

BsP Accred. No. 82086-BSP - Valid until 01.21.2025

BIR Accred. No. 13-011018-002-2020 - Valid until 11.07.2023

March 20,2023
cebu City, Philippines *\ aq

3D*-_v-

-

ci

The Executive Floor, tryB Building. osmena Blvd. cebu city, G-loo Mile Long Building,Irno6olo street. t'4akaf city

Tef / Fax N6. (+63 32) 238-2555, 412-3838, and 412-3535 Tel / Fax Nos (+53 02) 4784048fl-

E-mail Address: epminerva@minerva-cDa.com

ITI|
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STATEMEI{Is O' FINANCIAI" POSITIOI{

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021

(Amounts Expressed in Philippine Pesos) --

2022 2027

ASSETS

AsSETS

Cash and other cash items (Notes 2,4,5)

oue from Bangko Sentralng Pilipinas (Notes 2,4,6)

Due from other banks (Notes 2,4,7)

toans and receivables (Notes 2,4,8)

lnvestment seaurities (Notes 2,4,9)

Prepayments and other current assets (Notes 2,10)

Bank premis€s, furniture, fixtures and equipment, net

Non-current astets held for sale (Notes 2,3,12)

Deferred tax atsets (Notes 2,25)

Other non-current assets (Notes 2,4,13)

15,264,926

14,769,879

130,057,286

301,589,O71

a,s44,l4r
50,881,836

23,335,730

12,307,058

781,041

11,199,8s4

29,085,103

t4.a95,944
182,044,045

293,831,629

5,417,399

43,564,967

21,837,791

13,951,921

781,043

8,187,787

PHP PI.]P

{Notes 2,3,11)

TOTA! ASSETS PHP 579,74'770 PHP 613,797,63s

I.IABIIITIES AND TQUIIY

LIABILITIIS

Deposit liabilities (Notes 2,4,14)

Bills payable (Notes 2,4,15)

Accounts payable and other liabilities (Notes 2,4,16)

Deposits for future stocks subscription (Note 2,17)

Pension liabilitie5 (Notes 2,23)

412,216,564

10,319,254

10,329,230

13,379,OO0

517,889,374

s,355,086

9,021,328

10,702,000

9,910,696

PHP PHP

1t,327 ,5'11

511,59L,771 552,889,484

EqUlTY

Share capital (Notes 2,18)

Common stock

Preferred stock

Additional paid-in capital (Notes 2.18)

Stock dividends distributable {Notes 2,18)

Donaled capital

Remeasurement lors on retirement plan (Notes 2,23)

Surplus reserve (Notes 2,18)

20,m0,mo
12,519,(x)0

7t.ttg
218,356

469,243
(9,2s',076)

20,835,102

t7,ttL,28S

20,000,000

12,488,000

12,270

227,293
469,243

(9,295,075)

20,83s,102

16, 117,318
Surplus free ( Notes 2,18)

62,149,049 50,908,1Sr

PHP 579,740,770 PHP 613,191,615
TOTAL TIABITITIES AND EQUITY

(5€€.c.ompanying Noieito rin.rcial StatEme.ls)

o>>-
-,-t"-'S*"
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$*
STAIEME I'ITS OT COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FortheYears tnded Decembe.31,2022 and 2021

{Arnounts Expressed in Philippine Pesos)

2022

tNTERtST TNCOME l ote3 2,19)

INTEREST EXPE SE TNotes 2,2I,I

64.205,747 ?HP

r2,881,63r)

65,522,040

{12,700,145)

tIET ITITEREST IIICOME

llOtt-IflTEREST INCOMt ff,/oter a20,/

oPERATI G ExP€Ns€s lrvote5 2,22,

55,324,115

5,{30,355

57,733,0031

s2,92\495

6,858,618

(57,281,675)

tNcoMt (1055)EE;ORE TNCOMt TAX

PROVISIOI{ rOR (BEl{EtlT FROMIINCOMITAx fl,/otes 2,25l

Curent income tar erpense (630,624) 803)

1,Ozt,474 2,495,831

NET INCOME PHP 2,:190,85/t PHP 1,700,03,1

EARNINGS PER SHARI 119.54 PHP 85.00

ls.e.c.onp..ving Nol6 io f in.^oal sl.l€mnls)
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COOPERATIVE BANK OF BOHOI.

STATEMENTS OF CXANGES IN EQUITY

FortheYears Ended December 31,2022 and 2021

(Amounts Expressed in Philippine Pesos) #TT

202t2022

SHARE CAPTTAI fltloter 2,18,)

Authorized common'20,000 shares at Php1,000 par value PHP 20,000,000 PHP 20,000,000

Authorired preferred - 2o,o00 shares at Php1,000 parvalue

At beginning of year

Additionalshares issued during the year

Stock dividends distribution
Redemptaon durinS the year

12,484,000

31,000

72,427,O59

340,083

\211.142J
12,519,000 12,488,000

TOTAI. SHAR€ CAPITAT 32,519,000 32,488,000

ADDITIONAI PAID-IN c PlfAL |Note, 2,18)

At beginning of year

Redemption durinS th€ year

72,270
(1,131)

24O.206

(207,936)

11,139 72,270

sTocx DlvlDtl{o olsTRlaUTABtt i/lvot€ 2,181

At beginning of year 22,^,291

12,9311

s58,903
(337,610)Distribution during the year

218,356 221,293

DONAlED CAPITAT 469.243 469,243

REMCASUREMENI 6AIN (I"OSSI ON RETIREMENT PLAN (NOIE5 2,23)

At beginning of Year 19,295,O-751 (s,159,919)

(4,115, 157)rs'adjustments
19,295,076], (9,295,076)

SURPIUS RESERVES f oles 2,la)
At beginning ofyear 20,835,102 20,379,255

455,847iation to statutory funds
20,835,102 20,835,102

SURPIUS ;Rtt alvote5 2,18,

At beginning of Year

Prio. years' adjustments

Appropriation to statutory funds

Net income (loss)for the year

15,117,319

{1,176,889)

22,901,041
(8,027,909)

(4ss,847)

1,700,0342,3 90,854

L7,311,285 16,117,319

TOTAT- STOCXHOI-DtRS', tQUITY PHP 62,149,049 PHP 60,908,151

{5e€ x.oog.nying Nole5 to fi.a.rial statem€nBl

frdiAi;

I



COOPTRATIVE BANX OT EOHOL

@

STATEMEIrS Or CASH f |.OWS

Forthe Years tnded December 31,2022.nd 2021

{Amounts Expressed in Philippine Pesos)

I
/

7072 1071

CASH FTOWS 
'ROM 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income before tax

Adjustments for:

oepreciation ot bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equiplheni fruote 22,,

Depreciation of NCAHS (Note 22,f

Provision for expected credit losses /i/ole 221

Reversalof provision for expected c.edit losses f/vote 20,

6ain on disposalo, NCIHS (Note 20)

lmpairment loss of NCAHs (lvotp -I2,,

Retirement benefits expense lNote 23)

PHP 3,021,478 PHP 2,495,437

3,551,954

1,456,075
(594,7901

(829,5811

152,709

1,304.910

1,391,718
121,298

2,046,493
(400,405)

(2,380,79s)

Prior years' adjustments 11,L7

1,355,305

(8,7S5,198)

operating cash flow5 tefore working capitalchanges

Financial assets at amortiaed casl (Note 8l
Prepayments and other curreht as5et5 /A/ote r0,

lncrease (decrease) in:

Deposit liabilities lt'rote.l4,
other liabilaties (rvot" 15,1

(8,518,7271

117 ,OO7 ,1441

(8,694,612)
(18,057,509)

{45,552,810)
1,307,904

a6,226,486

752,411

5,785,866 12,t11,281)

Cash generated from (used in)operalions

Contributions to retireme llu1d (Note 23)

lncome tax paid

163,084,911)
(2,70O.mO1

(9'r0,3491

58,115,549

0oa,199)

Net ca5h gene rated from lused in) operating activit es (55,72s,250) 51,406,750

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTII{G ACTIVTTIES

Held-to-maturity lnvestments/lNMEs

Aaouisition of investment properties

Acquitision of bank premises, funiture and equipment (,!ore ll,l
Proceeds from sale oI NCAHS

13,126,142)
(2,184,928)

1s,049,887)
4,506,662

(2,5s7,630)

(3,261,591)

(1,9s0,410)

6,320,000

Net cash generated from ( used in) investing activities (5,854,89s) {1,449,531)

CASH FTOWS TROM FINANCING ACTIV]TIES

Payments of bill5 payable (/vote -15,1

avaalment of bills payable f/vote I5,/

lssLrance of additional !heres lNote 78)

Redemption of preferred shares

(2s,29S,456)

30,248,533

31,000

{4,067)
2,671,OO0Additionaldepo sit for stock subscription

(7,128,0s3)

7,705,619

56,941

1207,9361

2,526,000

Net cash generated from (used in) financing activities 1,657,700 2,962,571

I{ET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AI{D CAS}i EQUIVALEI{TS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALEIYTS, beginning ofyear

cAsH AXD CASH €QUIVALENIS, end ofyear PHP 151,102,037 PHP 226,025,092

{54,923,05S)

226,O25,O92

58,919,690

157,105,402

{see..comp.nyi4NolesloFi.ancialSlateFents)

t

\



COOPERATIVE BANX OT BOHOL

STATEMETJTS OF CJSH FLOWS

Forthe Years Ended December 31,2022 and 2021

{Amounts Expressed in Philippine Pesos}

2022 2021

Cash in the balence rheet is composed of:

cash and other cash items

Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas

oue ftom other banks

PHP 16,264,926 PHP

L4,769,A25

130,057,285

29,085,103

14,895,944

182,044,045

PHP 161,102,037 PHP 226,025,092

2027 2027

opera!ional cash flows from interest:

lnterest received

lnierest paid

PHP 52,22t,49 PHP

a3,Lr6,652

49,981,735

12,8(M,251

PHP 65,398,121 PHP 62,1a5,986

lsa a(mpenYins Notes to a'^anciaI Slatehenis)

-APn r q 2023



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the Year Ended December 31, 2022 and 2027

(Amounts Expressed in Philippine Pesos)

1. CorDorate lnformation

Cooperative Bank of Bohol (the "Bank")was incorporated in the Philippine laws and registered with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC under registration number 923974. On October
29,1980, the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) issued a Certificate of Authority to the Bank to
operate as a cooperative bank pursuant to the Republic Act No. 6938, cooperative Code of the
Philippines, and Monetary Board Resolution No. 1081, subiect to the applicable provisions of law

and BSP rules and regulations. The Bank is registered with the cooperative Development Authority

under UN No. O23O7OOO3 and was granted a certified of Good Standing by the Department of

Finance (DOF) under Reg. No. 9520-070O8800.

The primary purpose of the Bank is to carry and engage in the business of extending rural credit to

smallfarmers and tenants and to deserving rural industries and enterprises and to have and exercise

all authority and powers and to so and perform all acts and transacts all business which may legally

exist or be amended and to have all other things thereto and necessary and proper in connection

with said purposes within such authority as may be determined by the Monetary Board of BSP'

The Bank,s principal business is located at carlos P. Garcia, East Avenue, Tagbilaran city. The Bank

has three branches located in Tagbilaran (head office), Candilay and lnabanga in the province of

Bohol.

The financial statements of the Bank as at and for the year ended December 31, 2022 were

authorized for issue by the Board of Directors (BoD) on March 20, 2023. The BOD is empowered to

make revisions even after the date of issue.

nization T x Exem

The Bank, being registered with the cooperative Development Authority (cDA) and transacting with

members and non-members is entitled to the followinS tax exemptions and incentives provided for

under Article 50 of R.A. No. 9520, as implemented by section 8 of the Joint Rules and Regulations

lmplementing Article 60,61, and 144 of R.A.9520:

1. Exemption from lncome tax on income from CDA-registered operations;

2. Exemption from Value-added tax on CDA-registered sales or transactions;

3. Exemption from other Percentage tax;

4. Exemption from Donor,s tax on donations to duly accredited charitable, research and

educational institutions, and reinvestment to socio-economic projects within the area of

operation of the Cooperative;

5. Exemption from Excise tax for which it is directly liable;

5. Exemption from Documentary stamp tax: Provided, however, thal the other party to the

taxable document/transactions who is not exempt shall be the one directly liable for the tax;

7. Exemption from payment ofAnnual Registration fee of Five hundred pesos (Php500); and

c@pEn nvt B l{l of Sorot
N6r.r ro Fin.h.ri sr.r.@nt3 6 rt .nd lor lh. v..B a^d.d Li...hb.r 11. 1022 .nd 2021

COOPERATIVE BANK OF BOHOL



ln 2020, the Bank renewed its Certificate of Tax Exemption (CTE) with the Bureau of lnternal
Revenue (BlR). The CTE shall be valid for five (5) years until August 4 2025.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out

below.

The Bank's financial stateme nts have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial

assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and financial assets at fair value

through other compre hensive income (FVOCI). Amounts in the financial stateme nts are presented

in Philippine Peso (Php), which is the Bank's functional currency, and are rounded to the nearest

peso, except when otherwise indicated.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which

contemplates the realization of assets and settlement of liabilities in the normalcourse of business.

2.2 State ment of Compliance

The financial statements of the Ban k have been prepared in accordance with the Philippine Financial

Reporting standards (PFRSs).

2.3 Presentation of F inancial State me nts

The Bank presents the statements of financial position in order of liquidity. The Bank generally

presents financial assets and liabilities at their gross amounts in the statementsof financial position,

unless the offsetting criteria unde r PFRS are met. The Bank does not also offset items of income and

expenses, unlessoffsetting is required or permitted by PFRs, or is specifically disclosed in the Banl(s

accou nting policies.

2.4 Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for

the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS and Philippine lnte rpretation s wh ich became

effective on or afte t January 2,2022. The Bank has not early adopted any standards, interpretatbns

or amend ments that have been issued but are not yet effective. U nless otherwise indicated, these

new and revised accounting standards have no impact to the Bank'

Reference to the Conceptual Framework - Amendments to PFRS 3

The amendments are intended to replace a reference to the Framework for the Preparation

and Presentation of Financial statements, issued in 1989, with a reference to the conceptual

Framework for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its

requirements.

@tRAM 0ANX Of lollot
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8. Exemption from all taxes on transactions with insurance companies and banks, including but
not limited to 207o final tax on interest deposits a nd 7.5% final income tax on interest income
derived from a depository bank underthe expanded foreign currency deposit system.

2.1 Basis of Pre paration



The Board also added an exception to the recognition principle of PFRS 3 to avoid the issue of
potential 'day 2' gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be

within the scope of PAS 37 or IFRIC 21 Levies, if incurred separately.

At the same time, the Board decided to clarify ex isting gu idance in PFRS 3 for contingent assets

that would not be affected by replacing the reference to the Framework forthe Preparatbn
and Presentation of Financial Statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before lntended Use - Amendments to PAS 16

The amendment prohibits entities deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and

equipment, any proceedsfrom selling items produced while bringingthat assetto the location

and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by

management. lnstead, an e ntity recognizes the proceedsfrom se lling such items, and the costs

of producing those items, in profit or loss.

onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a contract - Amendments to PAs 37

The amendments apply a "directly related cost approach". The costs that relate directly to a

contract to provide goods or serviceS include both incre me ntal costs and an allocation of costs

directly related to contract activities. General and administrative costs do not relate directly to

a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the

contract.

PFRS 1 First-time Adoption of lnternational Financial Reporting standards - subsidiary as a first-

time

The amendment permits a subsidiary that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of PFRs 1 to

me asu re cu mu lative translation diffe re nce s using the a mou nts re porte d by the pare nt, based

on the parent,s date of transition to PFRS. This amendment is also applied to an associate or

joint venture that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of PFRS 1.

pFRS 9 Financial lnstruments - Fees in the '10 percent'test for derecognition of financial

liabilities

The amendment clarifies the fees that an e ntity includes when assessing whether t he terms of

a new or modified financial liability are substantially different f rom the terms of the original

financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received between the borrowe r and the

lender,includingfeespaidorreceivedbyeithertheborrowerorlenderontheothe',sbehalf.
An entity applies the amendment to f inancial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or

after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the

amendment.

PAS 41 Agriculture - Taxation in fair value measurements

The amendment removes the require rne nt in paragraph 22 of PAs 41that entities exclude cash

flows for taxation when measuring the fair value of assets within the scope of PAS 41'

@oPalaTlvE 6ailr of 8ollot
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2.5 Future Accounting Changes

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to
the date of issuance of the Bank's financial statements are disclosed below. The Bank intends to
adopt these amendments, if applicable, when they become effective. Except as otherwise indicated,
theBankdoesnotexpecttheadoptionofthesenewandamendedPFRSstohaveasignificantimpact
on its financial statements.

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will

replace PFRS 4, lnsurance Contracts. This new standard on insurance contracts applies to all

types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless

of the type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial

instruments with discretionary participation features. A few scope exceptions willapply.

The overall objective of PFRs 17 is to provide an accounting modelfor insurance contracts that
is more usefuland consistent for insurers. ln contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4 which are

largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, PFRS 17 provides a

comprehensive modelfor insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The

core of PFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:

A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee

approach); and

A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duratbn

co ntracts.

An entity applies those amendments prospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on

or after lanuary 1, 2023, with earlier application permitted.

PFRS 17 ls not applicable to the Bank since it is not engaged in providing insurance nor issuing

insurance contracts.

Amendme nts to P AS !: Clossilication of Liobilities os Current or Non-current

ln January 2020, amendme nts to paragraphs 69 to 76 of lA5 1 to specify the requirements for

classifying liabilities as current or non-current were issued. The amendments clarify:

What is meant by a right to defer settlement

That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting pe riod

That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity willexercise its deferralright

That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument

would the terms of a liability not impact its classification

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after

January 1, 2023 and must be applied retrospectively. The amendment will have no impact on

the Bank as the account balances are presented in accordance with llquidity'

@Pti Tlvt [^tI or sfio(
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2.5 Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place e ither:

. ln the principal market for the asset or liability, or

. ln the abse nce of a principa I market, in the most adva ntageous ma rket for the asset o r liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Bank. The fair value of an

asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when

pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes Into account a market participant's ability

to generate economic beneflts by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another

market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Bank uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs

and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured o r disclosed in the financial statements are

categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input

that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

. Leve I 1 - Qu oted (u n adiusted ) market price s in act ive ma rkets f or ide ntical assets o r liabilities

o Level 2 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

o Level 3 - valuation techniques for whlch the lowest level input that is siSnificant to the fair

value measurement is unobse rvable

The Bank periodically reviews its valuation techniques including the adopted methodologies and

model calibrations. However, the base models may not fully capture all factors relevant to the

valuation of the Bank's financial instruments such as credit risk (cVA)' own credit (DVA) and/or

fundlng costs (FVA). Therefore, the Bank applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk

associatedwithitsfinancialinstrUmentsmeasuredatfairvalue,whichincludeaportfolio.ba6ed
approach that estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the

iniividual assets, in order to reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-

collateralizedfinancialinstruments.TheBankestimatesthevalueofitsowncreditfrommarket
observabledata,suchassecondarypricesforitstradeddebtandthecreditspreadoncreditdefault
swaps and traded debts on itsell.

The Bank evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrume nt basis and

reclassifies instruments when necessary, based on the facts at the end of the reporting period'

2.7 Cash and Cash Equivalents

For pu rposes of re po rting cash f lows, cash and cash e q u ivale nts include cash and oth e r cash ite ms

1iolL1 wittr originai matuiities of three months or less from dates of placements and that are su bject

io insilniticant-rist of changes in value, amounts due from BSp, and due f rom other banks. Due from

C&'ERATVE AANI Of DIIOT
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The Bank measures fina ncial in stru me nts at fairvalue at each balance sheet date.



2.8 Financial lnstruments

Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date on which the Bank becomes

a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assetsand liabilities are initially measured at fair valu e. Transactio n costs that are directly
attributab le to the acq u isition or iss ue of f ina ncia I assets a nd liabilities (othe r than f inancial asseB

and liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or liabilities at FVTPL are recognized immediate ly in prof it or losses.

I nitiol Recog n itio n o nd M easure ment
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measUred at amortized cost,

FVOCI, and FVTPL.

ln order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or FVOCI, it needs to

give rise to cash flows that are SPPI on the principal amount outstandinS. This assessment is refened

to as the SPPI test and is performed at instrument level.

The Bank's business modelfor managing financialassets refers to how it manages its financiala ssets

in orderto generate cash flows. The business modeldetermines whether cash flows will result from

collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both'

Su b seq uent M eo su rement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financialassets are classified in four (4} cateSories:

o Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instrument);
. Financial assets at Fvocl with recyclinS of cumulative gains and losses (debt instrument);

o Financial assets at FVOCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognitif,n

(equity instruments); and

o Financial assets at FVTPL

Finonciol Assets ot Amottized Cost

The Bank measures financial assets at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

. The financial asset is held within a business modelwith the objective to hold financial assets in

order to collect contractual cash flows; and

. The contractua lte rms of fina ncial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solev

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding'

Finan cial assets at amortized cost a re subse q ue ntly measu red using the effe ctive inte rest rate (BR)

method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the

asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

c@PEMTtVa SANX Of &llot
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BSP includes statutory reserves required bythe BSP, which the Bank considers as cash equivalents
wherein drawings can be made to meet cash requirement.

2.9 Financial Assets

The classification at initial recognition depends on the contractual cash flow characteristics of
financial assets and the Bank's business model for managing them. The initial measurement of

financial assets, except for those classified as FVTPI- includes the tran saction cost. The Bank initially

measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVTPI,

transadion costs.



Financial assets at amortized cost are classified as current assets whe n the Bank expects to realize
the asset within 12 months from reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent
assets.

The Bank's financial assets at amortized cost consist of cash and other cash ite ms, due from BSP and
other banks, loans and receivables, and investment securities (see /Votes 5 6, 7, 8, dnd 9).

FinonciolAssets at FVOCI (Debt lnstruments)
The Bank measures debt instruments at FVOCI if both of the following conditions are met:
o The f inancial asset is he ld with in a busine ss mod e I with the obj e ctive of both hold ing to colle ct

contractualcash flows and selling; and
. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principalamount outstanding.

For debt instruments at FVOCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment

losses or reversals are recognized in the consolidated statement of income and computed in the
same manner as for financial assets measured at amortized cost. The remainingfair value changes

are recognized in Ocl. Upon derecognition, the cumulative Fvocl is recycled to profit or loss.

The Bank has no financial assets at FVOCI (debt instruments) as at December 3L, 2022 and 2021

Finonciol Assets Designated ot FvOCI (Equity lnstruments)
upon initial recognition, the Bank can elect to classify its equity investments irrevocably as equity

instruments designated at FVocl when they meet the definition of equity under PAS 32, Financial

lnstruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an

instrument-by-instrument basis.

6ains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are

recognized as othe r income in the consolidated statement of income when the right of payment has

been established, except when the Bank benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the

cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in ocl. Equity instruments

designated at FVOCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

The Ban k has no fin ancial assets de signate d at FVocl (eq uity instru me nts) as at Dece m be r 31, 2022

and 2021.

Finonciol Assets ot FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon

in itial recognition at fair valu e th rough profit or loss, or financial assets man d atorily re q uire d to be

measured itfair value. Financial assetsareclassifiedasheldfortradingiftheyareacquiredforthe
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded

derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging

instruments. Financialassetswith cash flowsthat are not solely payme nts of principal and interest

are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortized cost or at fair value

through ocl, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value th rough proftt

or losion initial recognition if doingso eliminates, orsignificantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at FVTPLaTe carried in the co nsolid ated state me nt of financia I position at fair value

with net changes in fair value recognized in the consolidated statement of income'

The Bank has no financial assets at FVTPL as at FVTPL as at Decembe r 31, 2022 and 202L.
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The Bank recognizes loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial assets that
measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risks since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument. Equity
instruments are not subject to impairment under PFRS 9.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise overthe life of the asset (the

lifetime ECL), unless there has been no signif icant increase in credit risk since origination, in which
case, the allowance is based on the 12 months' ECL. The 12-month ECL represents the losses that
result from default events on a financial asset which may happen within 12 months afterthe
reporting date. The lifetime ECL, on the other hand, represents the losses that result from defauh

events on a financial asset which may happen over its life. Both lifetime and 12-month ECLS are

calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis, depending on the nature of the
underlying portfolio of f inancial instruments.

Stage Migrotion ond Signilicont lncrease in Credit Risk (5lCR)

Financial instruments subject to the ECL methodology are categorized into three stages:

. Stage 1 is comprised of all non-impaired financial instruments which have not experienced a

S|CR since initial recognition. Entities are required to recognize 12-month ECL for stage 1

financial Instruments. ln assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly, entities are

required to compare the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the

reporting date, with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instru ment as at the date of

initial recognition.
. Stage 2 is comprised of all non-impaired financial instruments which have experienced a SlCR

since initial recognition. Entities are required to recognize lifetime ECL for stage 2 financial

instruments. ln subsequent reporting periods, if the credit risk of the financial instrument

improves such that there is no longer a SICR since initial recognition, then entities shall revert

to recognizing 12-month ECL.

. Financial instruments are classif ied as stage 3 when there is objectlve evidence of impairment

as a result of one or more loss events that have occurred after initia I recognition with a negative

impact on the estimated f uture cash f lows of a financial instrument or a portfolio of f inancial

instruments. The ECL model requires that lifetime EcL be recognized for impaired financial

instruments, which is similar to the requirements under PAS 39 for impaired financial

instruments.

Definition of "Defoult" ond "Cure"

A default is considered to have occurred when (a) the obligor is past due for more than 90 days on

any material credit obligation to the Bank, or (b)the obligor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations

to the Bank in fu ll, without recourse by the Bank to actions such as realizing collateral, as applicable.

An instrument is considered to be no longe r in default whe n it no longer meets any of the default

criteria and has exhibited a satisfactory and acceptable track record for six consecutive payment

periods, subject to applicable rules and regulations of the BSP'

Determining Signilicont lncreose in Credit Risk

At each reporting date, the Bank shall assess whether the credit risk on a loan or credit exposure

has incre ased sign if icantly since in itial recogn ition. Th e Ban k's asse ssme nt of SICR involve s looking

at (a) quantitative element, (b) qualitative element, and (c) if unpaid for at least 30 days

("backstop").

The quantitatlve element is being looked throu8h statistical models or credit ratings process or

scoring process that captures certain information which the Bank shall consider as relevant in

assessing changes in credit risk. The Bank may also look at the numbe r of notches downgrade of
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credit risk rating (CRR) or certain thresholds forthe probabilities of default being generated fmm
statistical models to determine whether SICR has occurred subsequent to initial recognition date.

Meosurement of EcL

ECLS are generally measured based on the risk of default over one of two different time horizons,

dependin8 on whether there has been SICR since initial recognition. ECL calculations are based on

the following components:
. Probability of default (PD) - an estimate of the likelihood that a borrower will default on its

obligations overthe next 12 months for Stage 1or ove r the remaining life ofthe credit exposure

for Stages 2 and 3.

. Exposure-at-default (EAD) - an estimate of the exposure at a future/default date taking into
account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of

principal and interest, expected drawdown on committed facilities and accrued interest from

missed payments.
. Loss-give n-default (LG D) - a n e stimate of the loss arising in the case wh e re defaults occu r at a

given time. ltisbasedonthedifferencebetweenthecontractualcashflowdueandthosethat
the Bank would expect to receive, including from any collateral.

. Discount rate - re presents the rate to be used to discount an expected loss to a prese nt value

at the reportinB date using the original effective interest rate (ElR) determined at initial

recognition.

Forward-looking information shall be considered in estimating/determining the 12-month and

lifetime PD, EAD and LGD depending on the credit exposure.

Mocroeconomic Forecosts, Forword-looking lnlormotion and Probobility-weighted Scendrios

ECLmeasurementisdeterminedbyevaluatingarangeof possib le outcomes and usin g re asona ble

and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date

about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions'

Experie nced credit.iudgment is essential in assessing the soundness of forward -lookng informatbn

and in ensuring that these are adequately supported.

Forward-looking macroeconomic information and scenarios shall consider:

. Factors that may affect the ge ne ra I eco nom ic or market cond itions in wh ich the Ba nk o pe rates,

suchasgrossdomesticproductgrowthrates,foreignexchangerates,inflationrate,etc.
. changes in government policies, rules and regulations, such as adjustments to policy rates

. Othe;f acto;s pe rtine nt to the Bank, including the prope r id e ntif ication a nd mitigation of risks

such as incidences of loan defaults/losses, etc.

TheBankappliedasimplifiedEcLapproachforitsotherloansandreceivableswhereintheBank
uses a provisioning matrix that considers historical chanSes in the behavior of the portfolio to

product conditions over the span of a given observation period'
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2.11 Financial Liabilities

I n itio I Recoq n itio n o n d M eo s u re m ent
Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost, except for the following:
. Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL;

. Financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for
derecognition of when the Parent Company retains continuing involvement;

. Financial guarantee contracts;

. Commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate; and

. Contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in accordance with PFRS 3

Su bseq ue nt M eo su rem ent
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below

F ino n cio I Lio b ilities ot FVTP L

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities

designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasingin the nearterm.This category also includes derivative financial instru me nts e ntered

into by the Bank that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined

by PFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are

designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held fortrading are recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are

designated at the initialdate of recognition, and only if the crite ria in PFRS 9 are satisfied. The Parent

Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss

The Ban k has no f in a ncial liabilitie s at FVTP L and de rivatives de signate d as hedging instru me nts in

an effective hedge.

Finoncial Liobilities ot Amortized Cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at

amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the

liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process'

Amortized cost i5 calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees

or costs that are an integral part of the ElR. The EIR amortizatio n is inclu ded as finance costs in the

statement of profit or loss.

This category generally applies to short term and long term debt'

The Bank,s financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include deposit liabilities, bills payabb,

and accounts payable and other liabilittes (see Notes 14, 75, ond 16)'
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FinonciolAsset
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognized when: a) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; b) the
Bank retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay

them in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; or c) the
Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either has transfened
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what exte nt, it has retained the risks and rewards

of ownership. When it has neithe rtransferred nor retained all of the risks and rewards of the asset

substantially, nor transferred controlof the asset, the Bank continues to recognize the transfened
asset to the extent of its continuing involve me nt. ln that case, the Bank also recognizes an associated

liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on the basis that reflects

the rights and obligations that the Bank has retained.

Finonciol Liability
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled

or has expired. When an existing f inancial liability is replaced by anotherf rom the same lender on

substantiallydifferentterms,orthetermsofanexistingliabilityaresubstantiallymodified,suchan
exch ange or mod if ication is tre ate d as a d e recogn ition of th e o rigina I liability and the re cogn itio n of
anewliability,andthedifferenceintherespectivecarryinBamountsisrecognizedinprofitorloss.

2.13 Classification of Financial lnstruments Between Liability and Equity

A financial instrument is classified as a liability if it provides for a contractual obligation to:

o Deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity;
. Exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are

potentially unfavorable to the Parent Company; or
o Satisfy the obligation othe r than by the excha nge of a fixe d amou nt of cash or a nothe r financial

asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

suppose the Bank does not have an u nco nditiona I right to avoid delivering cash or anotherfinancial

asset to settle its contractual obliSation. ln that case, the obliSation meets the definition of a

financial liability. The components of issued financial instruments that contain both liability and

equity elements are deducting f rom the instrument as a whole the a mount se parately determined

as the fair value of the liability component on the date of issue.

Modificotion of Contractuol cosh Flows

when the contractualcash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified and the

renegotiation or modification does not result in the de recognition of thatfinancial asset, the Parent

com fany recalcu late s the gross carrying amou nt of th e fina ncial assets as the prese nt value of the

re negotiated or modified ;ontractual cash flows d isco u nte d at the o rigin a I EIR (of cre d it-adjusted

EIR for purchased or original credit-impaired financial assets) and recognizes a modification gain or

loss in the statement of income.

Whe n the mod if ication of a f in an cial asset resu lts in the d e recogn ition of the ex isting f in anc ial asse t

and the subsequent recognition ofthe modified financial asset, the modified asset is considered a

,new'financial asset. Accordingly, the date of the modification shall be treated as the date of initial
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recognition of that financial asset when applying the impairment requirements to the modified
financial asset.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation underthe liability is discharged, cancelled
or has expired.

2.14 Offsetting of Financial lnstruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset. The net amount is reported in the financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is

intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The

Parent Company assesses that it has a currently enforceable right of offset if the right is not
contingent on a future eve nt, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, the event

of default, and the event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Parent Company and all of the
counte rparties.

2.15 Prepayments and Other Current Assets

2.16 Bank Premises, Furniture, Fixture and Equipment

Bank premises, furniture, fixture and equipment, including construction in progress, are measured

initially at its cost. Bank premises, furniture, fixture and equipment, after initial recognition are

carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Land

is not depreciated.

The initial cost of Bank premises, furniture, fixture and equipment consists of its purchase price,

includ ing im port d uties, taxes a nd a ny costs d irectly attributable to b ringing the asset to the locatbn

and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the

management. Directly attributable costs can include the (1) costs of employee benefitsarising

directly from the construction or acquisition of the item of bank premises, furniture, fixture and

equipment; (2) cost of site preparation; (3) initial delivery and handling; (4) installation and

assembly; (5) costs of testing whetherthe asset is functioning properly, after deducting the net

proceeds from selling any items produced while bringing the asset to that location and conditiou

and (6) professional fees.

The following costs are not costs of an item of bank premises, furniture,fixture, and equiprnenL and

the Bank recognized them as an expense when they are incurred: (1) costs of opening a new facility;

(2) costs of introducing a new product or service (including costs of advertising and promotional

activities); (3) costs of conducting business in a new location or with a new class of customer

(including costs of staff training); and (4) administration and othe r general overhead costs.

An asset,s carrying amount is written down lmmediately to its recoverable amount if the asse(s

carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amou nt'

lf the re is an indication that there has been a significant change since the last annual re porting date

in the patte rn by which an entity expects to consume an asset's future economic benefits, the e ntity

shall ieview its present depreciation method and, if current expectations differ, change the
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Prepayme nts and other current assetsare primarily comprised of pre payments, deferred creditable

withholding tax, and are carried at cost less the amortized portion. Prepayme nts and othe r current

assets that are expected to be reallzed for no more than 12 months afterthe balance sheet date arE

classified as cUrrent assets; otherwise, these are classified as Other noncurrent assets. These are

recorded as assets and expensed when utilized or expired'



depreciation method to reflect the new pattern. The entity shallaccount for the change as a change
in an accounting estimate.

Factors such as a change in how an asset is used, significant unexpected wear and tear, technological
advancement, and changes in market prices may indicate that the residualvalue or useful life of an

asset has changed since the most recent annual reporting date. lf such indicators are present an

entity shall review its previous estimates and, if current expectations differ, amend the residual

value, depreciation method or usefullife. The entity shall account for the change in residual value,

depreciation method or usefullife as a change in an accounting estimate.

An item of bank pre mises, furnitu re, fixture, and equipment is derecognized upon disposalor when

nofutureeconomicbenefitsareexpectedfromitsuseordisposal.Anygainorlossarisingfromthe
derecognition of an item of bank premises, furniture, fixture, and equipment (calculated as the

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in

profit or loss when the item is derecognized (unless PAS 17 requires otherwise on a sale and

leaseback), such gain is not recognized as revenue.

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets

2.17 Non-current Assets Held for Sale (NCAHS)

Assets acquired in the settlement of loans are initially recognized at the carryinB amount of the loan

plus acCrued interest net of allowance for credit losses plus transaction costs incurred upon

acquisition. The carrying amount, which becomes their initial costs, is allocated to acquire assets

basedon their fa ir values. Land, buildings and non -fina ncial assets a re su bseq ue ndy carried at cost

less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

An allowance for impairment is provided when the carrying value of NCAHS exceeds the appralsed

value.

Appraisals are conducted every otheryear or when there is a material decline in value. NcAHs with

a carrying value exceeding P5 million is appraised by an independent appraiser'

Holding costs subsequent to the foreclosure or acquisition of the properties are charSed to prof it or

loss.

2.18 lmpairment of Non-financial Assets

TheBankpremises,furniture,fixturesandequipmentaresubjecttoimpairmenttestinS.Allother
individual assets are tested for impairm ent whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate

that the carrying amount may not be recoverable'

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the Iowest levels for which there

are separately identifiable cash flows (cash -ge ne rating units). As a result, assets are tested for

impairment either individually or at the cash-generating unit level'

lmpairmentlossisrecognizedfortheamountbywhichtheassetorcash-generatingUnit,scarrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,

reflectingmarketconditionslesscosttosell,andvalueinuse,basedonaninternalvaluationof
discounted cash flow. lmpairment loss is charged pro-rata to other assets in the cash-generating

unit.
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All assets are subsequently reassessed for indlcations that an impairment loss previously recognized
may no longer exist and the carrying amount of the asset is adjusted to the recoverable amount
resulting in the reversalof impairment loss.

2.19 Leases

The Bank assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange

for consideration.

Bonk os o Lessee

The Bank applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Bank recognizes lease liabilities to make lease

payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

TheBankrecognizesright-of-useassetsatthecommencementdateofthelease(i.e.,thedate
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of

lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities

recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the

comme ncement date less any lease ince ntives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on

a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease liabilities
Atthecommencementdateofthelease,theBankrecognizesleaseliabilitiesmeasuredatth€
prese nt value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include

fixed payments (less any lease incentives receivable), variable lease payments that de pend on

an index or a rate, and amou nts expected to be paid under residualvalue guarantees. The lease

payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be

exercised by the Bank and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term

reflects exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease paymen ts that do not de pend on an

index or a rate are recognized as expenses in the period in which the event or condition that

triggers the payment occurs.

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Bank did not record any right-of-use assets and lease

liabilities as the Bank did not have any long-term lease contract.

Bonk os o Lessor

Lessor accounting under PFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from PAs 17. The Bank continues to

classify leasesas eithe r operating or finance leases using similar principles as in PAS 17. Therefore,

PFRS 16 did not have an impact on leases where the Bank is the lessor'
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2.20 Deposit for Future Stock Subscription (DF55)

DFSS represents payments made on the subscription of shares that cannot be directly credited to
"Preferred stock" or "Common stock" pending registration with the BSP of the amendmentto the
Articles of ln-Cooperation increasing capital stock.

Underthe provisions of BSP Circular 1027, section X128, DFSS shall be classified as an equity
instrument if all of the following criteria are met:

a. The oFSS meets the definition of an equity instrument under PAS 32, Finonciol instruments:
Presentation, such that the DFss shall not interest-bearing nor withdrawable by the subscriber;

b. The bank's existing authorized capital is already fully subscribed;
c. The bank's stockholders and board of directors have approved the proposed increase in

authorized capital;
d. The bank has filed an application for the amendment of its articles of cooperation for the

increase in authorized capital with the appropriate department, duly supported by complete

documents as listed in Annex B of Circular Letter No. 2009-042 dated 14 May 2009.

e. The bank must have obtained the approval of the Monetary Board on transactions involving

significant ownership of voting shares of stock by any person, natural or.iuridical, or by one

group of persons as provided in ltem "b" of Subsection. X126.2, if applicable.

lf any or all of the foregoing elements above are not present, the DF55 should be recognized as a

financial liability.

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Bank's DFSS recorded under liabilities amounted to

Php13.38 million and Php10.70 million (see Note 17).

2.21 Equity

Common Stock

common stock is classified as equity and is measured at par value per share issued. lncremental

costs directly attributable to the issuance of newsharesarerecognizedasadeductionfromequity,
net of tax. Otherwise, these are recognized in profit or loss.

Prelerred Stock

Perpetualstock is classified as equity if its non-redeemable, or redeemable only at the Bank's optbn

and any dividends thereon are discretionary. Preferred stock is classified as a liability if this is

redee mable on a specific date or at the option of the stockholders, or if dividend payme nts are not

discretionary. Dividends thereon are recognized as interest expense in profit or loss as accrued.

Sto ck Div id en d Distrib u t o b le

Stock dividend distributable are stock dividends declared which have not yet issuedto stockholdeE

These are stated at parvalue.

Surplus Reserves

Surplus reserves include all current and prior period appropriation from net surplus'

Surplus Free

surplus free includes all current and prior period resu lts of operations net of allocation to surplus

reserves and cumulative dividends distributed.
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Donoted Copital
This account represents contributions, grants or aid received by the Bank in the form of cash,

commodities or services and all other forms of services given by an e ntity source to the Bank.

Dividends
Cash dividends are recognized as liability and deducted from the equity when approved by the BOD

while stock dividends are deducted from equity when approved by BOD and ratified by
stockholders. Dividends for the year that are approved after the reporting date are dealt with as

subseque nt events. Stock issuance costs are accounted for as deduction from equity.

Provisions

Provisions are recognizedwhentheBankhasa prese nt obligation, e ithe r legal or co n structive, as a

result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic be nefits will

be required to settle the obligation, and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

When the Bank expects reimbursement of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a

provision, the entity recognizes a separate asset for the reimbursement only when it is virtually

certain that reimbursement will be received when the obligation is settled.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the curre nt best est imate

Contingent Liobilities
Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognized because their existence will be confirmed onV

by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more unce rtain future events not wholly within the
co ntrol of th e e ntity. Continge nt lia bilitie s, if any, are d isclose d, u n le ss the possib ility of an outf bw

of resources e mbodying economic be nefits is remote. Contingent assets are disclosed only when an

inflow of economic benefits is probable.

2.23 Reve nue Recognition

Reve n ue fro m co ntracts with custome rs is recogn ized upon tran sfe r of se rvice s to the cu stome r at

an a mou nt that reflects the con sideration to wh ich the Ba n k ex pects to be e ntitled in e xch ange for

those services.

o) Fees Eorned from Services thot ore Provided Over d Certain Period of Time

Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period.

These fees include investmentfundfees,custodianfees,fiduciaryfees,credit-relatedfeet
trust fees, portfolio and other management fees, and advisory fees. However, commitment

fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down are deferred (together with any incremental

costs) and recognized as an ad.iustment to the EIR of the loan.
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2.22 Provisions and Contingencies

The amou nt of the provision recognized is the best estimated of the consideration required to settle

the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and

uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows

estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash

f lows.

Service Fees ond Commission lncome

The Bank earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of services it provides to its

customers. Fee income can be divided into the following two categories:



bl Fees Eorned from Providing Tronsoction Services

Fees arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third party

-suchasthearrangementoftheacquisitionofsharesorothersecuritiesorthepurchaseor
sale of businesses - are recognized on completion of the underlying transaction.

Fees or components of fees that are linked to a certain performance are recognized after
fulfilling the corresponding criteria. These fees include underwriting fees, corporate finance
fees, remittance fees, brokerage fees, commissions, depo6it-related and other credit-related
fees. Loan syndication fees are recognized in the statement of income when the syndication

has bee n completed and the Bank retains no part of the loans for itself or retains part at the
same EIR as the other participants.

Other lncome
lncome from sale of services is recognized upon rendition of the service. lncome from sale of
prope rties is recognized upon completion of the earning process (i.e., upon transfe r of control under

PFRS 15 and transfer of risks) and whenthe collectability of thesales price is reasonably assured.

lncome from penalties is recognized upon collection or when there is a reliable assurance of
collection.

Revenues outside the scope of PFRS 15:

lnterest lncome
For all financial instrume nts measured at amortized cost and interest-bearing financial instrume nts

classified at FVOCI, interest income is recorded using the ElR, which is the rate that exactly discounts

estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life ofthe f ina ncia I instru me nt or

a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial

liability. The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for

example, pre payment options), includes any fees or increme ntalcosts that are d irectly attributable

to the instrument and are an integral part of the ElR, but not future credit losses The adjusted

carrying amount is calculated based on the original ElR. The change in carrying amount is recorded

as "interest income".

Under PFRS 9, when a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as

Stage 3 (as discussed in "lmpairme nt of F ina ncia I Assets" above), the Ban kcalcu lates inte rest income

by applyinB the EIR to the net amortized cost of the financial asset. lf the financial asset cures and

is no longer credit-impaired, the Ban k reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis. u nder

pAS 39, once the recorded value of a financial asset or group of similar financial assets carried at

amortized cost has been reduced due to an impairment loss, interest income continues to be

recognized using the original EIR applied to the new carrying amount.

Dividend lncome
Dividend income is recognized when the Bank's right to receive payment is established'

Rentdl lncome
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis ove r the lease terms and is included in the

statement of income under "Other income".

2.24 Expe nse recogn ition

costs and expenses encompass losses as well as those expenses that arise in the course of the

ordinary activities of the Bank.
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Costs and expenses are recognized in the statement of comprehe nsive income when a decrease in

future economic be nefit related to a decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability has arisen that
can be measured reliably. Expenses are recognized: on the basis of a direct association betweenthe
costs incurred and the earning of specific items of income; on the basis of systematic and rational
allocation procedures when economic benefits are expected to arise over several accounting
periods and the association with income can only be broadly or indirectly determined; or
immediately whe n an expenditure produces no future economic be neflts or whe n, and to the extent

that, future economic benefits do not qualify, or cease to qualify, for recognition in the reporting
period as an asset.

2.25 Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are allforms of consideration given by the Bank in exchange for services re ndered

by employees, including direaors and management. Employee be nefits have four types as follows:

Sh o tt-te rm Em ploy ee Ben ef its.
Short-term benefits given by the Bank to its employees include salaries and wages, socialsecurity

contributions, short-term compensated absences, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits.

Terminotion Benefits.
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts volu ntary redundancrT in exchange for these be nefits. The

Bank recognizes termination benef its whe n it is de monstrably committed to e ithe ri terminating the

employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without the possibility of

withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage volu ntary

redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting date are

discounted to present value.

Retirement Benefits.
Pursuant to RA No. 7541, otherwise known as the "Retirement Pay Law", all companies are required

to provide retirement benefits to alltheir employees, except when the company does not have more

than ten employees.

The computation of such retirement benefit obligation is based on giving retirement benefits

equivalent to at least l-month salary for every year of service, a fraction of at least six (6) months

being considered as one whole year.

U nder pAS 19, the costs of defined retirement benefits should be determined using the projected

unit credit method and unbiased and mutually compatible actuarial assumptions about

demographic variables (such as employee turnover and mortality) and financial variables (such as

future increases in salaries, changes in medicalcosts and certain changes in nationalbenefits).

2.25 Earnings per Share

Basic earnings pe r (EPS) is computed by dividing prof it for the year by the we ighted average number

of common shares issued and outstanding during the year, after giving retroactive effect to any

stock dividends or stock splits, if any, declared during the year.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing profit applicable to common stockholders by the weighted

ave rage numbe r of common shares issued and outstanding during the year after giving e ffect to the

assumed conversion of diluted potential common shares.
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2.27 Dividends on Common Shares

Cash dividends on common shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity upon
approval by the BOD and the BSP and stock dividends upon approval by the Board of Directors,
stockholdersandtheBSP.DividendsdeclaredduringtheyearapprovedbytheBSPafterreporting
date are disclosed as a subsequent event.

Current Tox
The tax currently payable is based on taxable income forthe year. Taxable income diffe rs from the
profit as reported in the statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income because it excludes

items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in otheryears and it further excludes

items that are neve rtaxable or deductible. The Bank's liability for current tax is calculated using tax

rates that have been enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred lncome Tox

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax assets and

liabilitiesarerecognizedforthefuturetaxconsequencesattributabletothetemporarydifferences
(principally relating to provisions for receivable impairment and retirement benefit-cost) and

between financia I re porting bases of assets and liabilities and their related tax bases.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have bee n e nacted or substantially enacted

at the end of the reporting period and are e xpected to apply whe n the related defe rred income tax

asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Defe rred tax liabilities are ge ne rally recognized for all taxable temporary differences, and defened

tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is

probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences

can be utilized.

The rates enacted at the end of the reporting period are used to determine deferred income tax.

Howeve r, the def erred income tax is not acco u nte d for if it a rises f rom initial re cogn ition of an asset

or liability in tran sactio ns that affects n e ithe r the taxa ble profit nor the acco u nting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reportinS period and

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits that will be available

to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

2.29 Related Party Disclosures

Related party relationships exist when one party has the ability to control, diredly or indirectly

through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercise significant influe nce over the other

party in making financial and operating decisions. This includes: (11 individual owning, directly or

indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by, or under common

control with, the Bank; (2) associates; and (3) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest

in the voting power of the Bank that gives them significant influence over the Bank and close

members of the family of any such individual.

The key management personnelof the Bank and post-e mployment benefit plans for the benefit of

Bank's employees, if any, are also considered to be related parties'
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The Bank's related parties include the Bank's Key Management. The compensation of the key
management personnel of the Bank pertains to the usual monthly salaries and government-
mandated bonuses; there are no other special benefits paid to management personnel.

2.3O Prior Period Adjustments

Prior period ad.iustments are errors or omissions from, and misstatements in, the Bank's financial
statements for one or more periods arising f rom a failu re to use, or misuse of, re liable information
that was available at the time the financial statements were authorized for issue and could
reasonably be expected to have been obtained and taken into account in the preparation and
presentation of those financial statements. Such errors may include the effects of mathematical
inaccu racy, e rrors in applying accou nting policies, ove rsights or m isinte rpretation of facts a n d fraud.

The effect of prior period adjustments are recognized in the financial statements of the current
period in accordance with the standard chart of accounts of cooperatives.

2.31 Events after the End of Reporting Period

Events after the end of the reporting period that affect the financial position of the Bank are

reflected in the financial statements; however, no adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

2.32 Comparatives

Except whe n a standard or an inte rpretation permits or requiresotherwise, allamou nts are re ported

or disclosed with comparative information. Where necessary, comparative figures have been

adjusted to conform to changes in the current year/s presentation.

The Bank'sfinancial statements which are prepared in accordance with PFRSs require management

to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and

related notes. Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical

experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable underthe circumstances. Actual results may ultimately differfrom these estimates and

the differences could be significant.

3.1 Critical Management Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

ln the process of applying the Bank's accounting policies, Management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which has the most significant effect on the

amounts reco8nized in the financial statements:

Clo ssilicotion of F ino ncia I I n stru m ents
The Bank classifies its financial assets de pending on the results of the SPPl testsand on the business

model used for managing those financial assets.

The SPPI test is the first of two tests that determine the classification of a financial asset. When

performing the SPP| test, the Bank applies judgment and evaluates relevant factors and

characteristics such as the behavior and nature of contractual cash flows, its original currency

denomination, the timing and frequency of interest rate repricing, contingent events that would
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alter the amount and/or timing of cash flows, leve rage features, prepayment or extension options
and other features that may modify the consideration for the time value of money.

The business modelassessment is the second test. The assessment model reflects how financial
assets are managed in order to generate net cash inflows. The Bank performs assessment model
based on the followinB factors:

o Business obiectives and strategies for holding financial assets
o Performance measures and benchmarks being used to evaluate the Bank's key managernent

personnel accountable to the financial assets
. Attendant risks and the tools applied in managing them
. Compensation structure, including whether based on fair value changes of the investments

managed or on the generated cash flows from transactions
. Frequency and timing of disposals

ln a pplying judgme nt, the Bank also consid e rs the circu msta nces su rrou nd ing the transaction as well

as the prudential requirementsof the BSP, particularly the guidelines contained in Circular No. 1011.

Determining the Leose Term ol Controcts with Renewol ond Terminotion Options (8onk as Lessee)

The Bank determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any

periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any

periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is re asonably ce rtain not to be exercised.

The Bank has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Bank

applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the

option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an

economic incentive for it to exe rcise either the re newal or termination. Afte r the commen@ment

date, the Bank reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances

that is within its control that affects its ability to exe rcise or not to exercise the option to renew or

to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customization

of the Ieased asset).

Foir value of Finonciol lnsttuments
where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of

financial position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using valuation

techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The input to these models is taken flom

observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required

in establishing fair values. The judgments include considerations of liquidity and model inputs such

as correlation and volatility for longer dated derivatives.

Determining the Leose Term of Controcts with Renewol ond Terminotion Options (8onk os Lessee)

The Bank determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any

periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any

periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Bank has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Bank

applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the

option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an

economic incentive f or it to exe rcise either the renewal or termination. After the commen@ment

date, the Bank reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances

that is within its control that affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or
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to terminate (e.9., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customization
of the leased asset).

3.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of resources and liabilities within the next financial year.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods ifthe revision affects both

current and future periods.

Estimdtion of Allowonce for ECL

The Bank provides ECLforfinancialassets that have passed the SPPl test.The Bank's ECL calculations

are based on the application of the general approach in measuring ECL, which uses certain

assumptions, including the Bank's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in

credit risk; and development of expected credit loss models, including the choice of inputs relating

to macroeconomic variables. The calculation of cred it-impairment provisions also involves expert

credit judgment to be applied based upon counterparty information received f rom various soures
including relationship managers and on external market information.

Estimoted lJsefulLives of Premises, Furniture, Fixtures dnd Equipment ond lntongible Asset

The Bank estimates the useful lives of its premises, furniture, fixtures and equiprnent, and intangble

assets based o n the pe riod over wh ich th e assets are e xpected to be availa b le for use. The estimated

useful lives of premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment, and intangible assets 3re reviewed

periodically and are updated if expectations differfrom previous estimates due to physicalwear and

tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets.

suppose there is an indication that there has been a significant change since the last annual

reporting date in the pattern by which Bank expects to consume an asset's future economic

benefits. ln that case, it shall review its present depreciation method and, if current expectations

differ, change the depreciation method to reflect a new pattern. The Bank shall account for the

change as a change in an accounting estimate.

Factors such as a change in how an asset is used, significant unexpected wear and tear,

technological advancement, and changes in market prices may indicate that the residualvalue or

useful life of an asset has changed since the most recent annual reporting date. lf such indicators

are prese nt, th e Ban k will review its p revious e stimate s and, if cu rre nt ex pe ctations d iff e r, a mend

the residual value, depreciation method or useful life. The Bank will account for the change in

residual value, depreciation and amortization method or useful life as a change in an accounting

estimate.

Oepreciation and amortization ofowned assets are computed using the straight-line method over

the estimated useful lives of the assets:

Building and improvements
Off ice equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Transportation equipme nt
Lease hold improvement
lnformation and technology

1G20 years
3-5 years

5- 10 years

3-5 years

3-5 years

1-3 years
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As at December 31 ,2022 and2Q27, the carrying amount of bank's premises, furniture, fixtures and

equipment amounted to Php23.34 million and Php21.84 million, respectively (see Note 11).

Depreciation expense amounted to Php3.55 million and Php3.52 million in 2022 and 2021,
respeclively (see Note 22).

Based on manageme nt's assessment as at Decembe r 31, 2022 and 202L, there is no change in the
estimated useful life of premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment, and intangible assets during
the year. Actual resu lts, however, may vary due to changes in estimates brought about by changes

in factors me ntioned above.

Estimotion of lmpohment ol Non-finonciol Assets
UnderPAS36, lmpoirmentof Assets, the Bankis required to perform an impairment review when

certain impairment indicators are present.

Determining the value in use of non-financialassets requires the determination of future cash fbws
expected to be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets, requires

the Bank to make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the financial statements.

Future events could cause the Bank to conclude that assets are impaired. Any resulting impairment

loss could have a material adverse impact on the Bank's financial condition and results of
operations.

The preparation of the estimated future cash flows involves significa nt judgme nts and estimates

While the Bank believes that the assumptions are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes

in the assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recoverable values and may lead to
future impairment charges.

There is no impairment recognized in both 2021and 2022.

Clossificotion ond Determinotion of Foir Volue ol Acquired Properties

The Bank classifies its acquired properties as Bank Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment if

used in operations, as Non-cu rre nt Assets Held-for-Sale if the Bank expects that the properties will

be recovered through sale ratherthan use, and as lnvestment Properties if held for rental or for

currently undetermined future use and is regarded as held for capital appreciation, or as financial

assets in accordance with PFRS 9. At initial reco8nition, the Bank determinesthe fair value of

acquired properties through internal and external appraisal depending on the Bank's threshoh

policy. The appraised value is determined based on the current economic and market conditiont

as well as the physical condition of the property.

Estimoting the lncrementol Borrowing Rqte under PFRS L6

The Bank cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses lts

incre mental borrowing rate (lBR) to measu re lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the

Bank would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds

necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic

environment. The lBR, therefore, reflects what the Bank 'would have to pay', which requires

estimation when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into

financing transactions) or whe n they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the

lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary's f u nctionalcurrencl). The Bank estimates

the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required to

make certain entity-specific adjustments (such as the subsidiary's stand-alone credit rating, or to

ref lect the terms and conditions of the lease).
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The Bank has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: (a) credit risk;
(b) market risks; (c) interest rate risk; and (d) liquidity risk.

Risk M a n o g em ent F ro mew o rk
The BOD has the overall responsibility forthe ove rsight of the Bank's risk manageme nt process and

oversees the implementation of its risks policies. Risks exposures are regularly identif ied, measured,
controlled, monitored and reported to senior management and the Board of Directors.

The Bank's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and these involve analysis, evaluatbn
and manage me nt of some degree of ris k or combinatio n of risks. Taking risk is a core to the b u siness

and operational risks are an inevitable consequence ofbeing in business. The Bank's aim is,

therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risks and return and minimize potential

adverse effects on the Bank's financial performance.

The Bank's risks management policies are designed to identify and analyze these risks, to set

appropriate limits and controls by means of reliable and up to date information systems. The Bank

regularly reviews risk manageme nt policies and systems to ref lect change s in the market products

and emerging best practices. A centralgrou p carries out risk manageme nt in the Bank under policies

approved by the Board of Directors.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Bank if the counte rparty to a financial instrument fails

to meet its contractual obligations. The Bank manages and controls credit risks by setting limits on

the amount of risk it is willing to accept for the individual counterparties, related groups of

borrowe rs, and industry concentrations, and by monitoring exposures in re lation to such limits. Sudr

risks are monitored on a revolving basis and subject to an annual or more frequent review.

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analyses of the ability of the borrowers and

potential borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment obligations. The credit risk is structured

by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one borrow er orgroups of borrowers

and its geographical and industry segments. Such risks are monitored on a revolving basis and

subject to an annual or more freque nt review. changing lendinS limits are made when appropriate.

Exposure to credit risk is also managed by obtaining sufficient collateral as well as corporate and

personalguarantees.

lmpairment provisions are provided for losses that have bee n incurred at the statement of financial

position date. Significant changes in the economy or in the health of a particular industry segment

that represents a concentration in the Bank's portfolio could result losses that are different from

those provided for at the statement of financial position date. Management, therefore, devebps

system of measurement and mitigating controls and policies that carefully manages Bank's exposurc

to credit risk.

pursuant to regulatory requirements and best practices, the Bank conducts se nsitivity analysis and

stre ss testing of th e cre d it portfolio to assess the se nsitivity of the Ba n k's capital to Bo D's a pproved

credit risk scenario.

Moximum Exposure to Credit Risk

The Bank's maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhanceme nts b

equal to the carrying amount of the financial assets.
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lnformation on the concentration of credit as to counterparties as at December 31. are as follows:
2022 2021

Percent Amount Percent Amount
Falmels
Commercial laaders

Auto dealers
Realtors
Financial tradeE
lndi\iduals
Others

39,292,339
67,595,320
25,371,118

9,301,025
116.250,342
77,657,463

5,'t90,415

40,056,452
57.057,319
16,673,006
21,727,697
44.868,246

107.191.072
44.509,589

11.53oh PhP
.t9.u%

7.45%
2.73%

y.13%
u..80%

't.52%

12.060/0 Php
17.1A./.
5.02v.
6. yo

13.51yo

32.24v.
13.40Vo

Credit Qudlity per Closs of FinonciolAssets
The following table shows the credit quality of the Ban k's financial assets as at December 31 are as

follows:
2022

Stage 1 Stase 2 Stage 3 Total

Due from BSP

High grade Php 14,169,A25

Due from other banks

High grade 130,057,286

Loans receivable

Standard grade 272,416,U1

lmpaired

sales contrad receivable

standard grade

lnvestment in government bonds

l-ligh grade 30,m0

lnvestment in non-marketable securities

Php Php 14,759,825

730,067,286

51.,507,536

289,1s0,486

51,507,536

2,707,419

30,000

8,514,141High

Php

76,733,639

2,707,479

8,514,141

Php 417,283,958 Ph 27 2m Php Ph 496,11(),693

2027

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Due from BSP

High grade

Due from other banks

High grade

Loans receivable

Standard grade

lmpaired

Sales contract receivable

Standard grade

lnvestment in govemment bonds

High grade

lnvestment in non-marketable securities

High grade

Php 14895,944 Php Php Php 14,895,944

182,U4,U5 7A2,U4,04s

223,&7,171 45,A92,112 269,899,889

62,183,49362,183,493

2,749,079 2,149,019

30,000 30,000

5,387,3995, 387,399

Php 419,977,766 Php s4,428,S90 Php 62,183,493 Php s36s89,849

High Grode-This rating is givento a borrowerwith a verylow probability of defaultand with

a high degree of stability, substance, and dive rsity. The borrowe r has access to raise substantial

amounts of funds through the public market at any time; ve ry stronB debt service capacity and

has conservative balance sheet ratios. Track record in profit terms is very good. Borrower

exhibits the highest quality under virtually all economic conditions.
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Stondord Grade - This rating is give n to smaller borrowers with limited access to public capital
markets or to alternative f inancial markets. Access is, howeve r, limited to favorable economic
and/or market conditions. While the probability of default is quite low, it bears characte ristics
of some degree of stability and substance. Howeve r, the susce ptibility to cyclical changes and
more business risk concentration, by product or market, may be present.

Typical is the combination of comfortable asset protection and an acceptable balance sheet
structure. Debt service capacity is strong.

5ub-Stondord Grude - This rating is give n to a borrower that belongs to an u nfavorable industry
or has company-specific risk factors representing a concern. Operating performance and
financial strength may be marginal and it is uncertain if the borrowercan attract an alternative
course of finance. The borrowerfinds it hard to cope with any significant economic downtum
and a default in such a case is more than a possibility. Borrower which incurs net losses and has

salient financial weaknesses reflected on statements specifically in profitability. credit
exposures are not at risk of loss at the moment, but the borrower's performance has weakened

and unless present trends are reversed, could lead to losses.

lmpoired - This rating is give n to a n on pe rform ing borrowe r whose loa ns or portions th e reof

have the weakness inherent in those classified as 5ub -standard, with the added characteristics

that existing facts, conditions, and values make collection or liquidation in fully highly

improbable and in which substantialloss is probable.

Morket Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows as a result of changes

in interest rate, foreign exchange rate, commodity prices, equity prices and other market changes.

lnterest Rote Risk

The Bank prepares gap analysis to measure each resources'sensitivity gap and liabilities at the

statement of financial position date to interest risk fluctuations. The focus of the analysis is the

impact of changes in interest rates on actual or reported earnings.

These analyses would give Management a glimpse of the maturity and pricings profile of each

sensitive financial assets and liabilities. An interest rate gap analysis is prepared by classifying all

financial assets and liabilities into various timed buckets according to contracted maturities or

anticipated re-pricing dates and other applicable behavioral assumptions. The difference in the

amount of assets and liabilities maturing or being re -priced in anytime period category would th€n

give the Bank an indication on the extent to which it is exposed to the risk of potentialchanges h

net interest income.

lnterest rate on loans, deposits and borrowings are fixed and pre -determined. Rates on loans and

deposits are reviewed regularly by manageme nt of wh ich changes are made considering prevailing

interest rates and market forces. Further, to mitigate the risk, the Bank follows prudent policy on

managing assets and liabilities so as to ensure the exposure to interest rate risk are kept within
acceptable levels.
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The Bank's exposure to market risk arises from adverse movements in interest rates and prices of

financial instruments relating primarily to its' holdings of government securities, debts securities

and various overnight lending transactions with the BSP; mismatched with the contractual

maturities of assets and liabilities embedded optionally to the loans and deposits due to pre-

termination and potential cash run-offs arising from changes in overall liquidity and funding

conditions in the market. The Ba nk ma nages its risk by ide ntifying, analyzing and measuring re levant

or likely market risk.



Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the current and prospective risk to earnings or capital arising from the
Bank's inability to meet its obligations when they become due. The Bank manages liquidity risk by
holding sufficient liquid assets of appropriate quality to ensure short-term funding requirements
are met and m aintain a balanced loa n portfolio that cou ld be re priced wh e n circu mstan ces de m and.

ln addition, the Bank seeks to maintain sufficient liquidity to take advantage of interest rate and

exchange rate opportunities when they arise.

The aging analysis of financial assets as at December 31 are as follows:
2022 Curent l-90days 91 180dav5 181-360daYs ov€r mdaYs

Cash andothercaih items' Php

Du€ frcm 85P

Ure frcm otherb.nks

lnvenment in s.(urities

416.277 Php

14759,825

L:0,67,26
272,4!4,222

Php 456,271

74,769,825

130,067,285

340,558,022

a,w,l4't
15,864,666 9,617,108

2,530,m
30,181,552

5,Ot4,t4t
10,9fr,474

417,727,m Php 16868,666 Php 12,147,108 Php 10,95O,474 Php 35,801,693 Php494,495,545

'Ercludes cosh on hdnd

202i CLrrfent 1-90days 91 180days 181'360days over350days Tohl

carh and other cash items'

Du€ from BS,

D(E from oth€r banls

Loanr and reteivables

llwestmit in seruritie!

Php 232,491 Php

14895,944

182,044,045

258,355,709

232,491

14,8958{4

182,014,015

332,083,381

5,m7,530

Php Php Php Php

13,159,497 11,205,719

2,530,m0

35,451,591

2,557,530

13,894,864

Php 455,528,189 13,159,497Php 13,735,719 Ptrp 13,894,864 Php 38,025,222 Php 534,343,491

The table below summarizes the maturity prof ile of the Bank's f inancial liabilities as at

December 31 based on undiscounted contractual payments:

2022 Due not ater lhan 1 mo

Dua laler than

'l mo. but not later

lhan 6 mos.

Due later lhan 6

mos. but nol later

than I yr.

Due laler

lhan 1 yr. Total

oeposil liabilitios

Bills payable

A(ounts payaue and other

liabilities

Php 147,458,5,67 Php 95,972,525 php 228,805.472

10,319,254

472,236,564

10,319,254

Php

7,671,918 7.671 918

Php 155,130,485 Php 95,972,525 Php 228,805,472 Php 10,319,2514 PhP 490.227,736

Due later than

1 mo. bul nol later

oue not later lhan I mo. than 6 mos.

oue laterlhan 6
mos. but nol lator

han 1 yr.

Due laler

than 1 !r. Total
2021

Php 159,ss2.807 Ptrp tSI3ZS,ZSS PhP 207,011,268 PhP Php 517,889,374

5,366,0865.366,086

7.152,699 152,699

705 506 Ph 207 011 159151

Beginning January 2019, the Bank is subject to a MLR of 207o. However, pursuant to BSPS

Memorandum No .2O2GO2O, the MLR for all stand-alone thrift banks, rural banks, and cooperative

banks is reduced to 16% in response to the impact of COVID-19to all covered banks. This is effective

untilthe end ofthe reporting period unless revoked by the BSP.

Deposit liabililies

B ls payable

Acao0nls payaue and other

liatrilities

M inimum Liquidity Rotio

Minimum Liquidity Ratio (MLR) is expressed as a percentage of eligible stock of liquid assets to its

total qualifying liabilities. The stock of liquid assets is required to be unencumbered and readily

liquefiable, while the qualifying liabilities include both on balance sheet and off-balance sheet

commitments.
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The Bank's MLR as at December 3L,2022 and 2021, as reported to the BSP is shown in the table
below:

2022 2021
Stock of liquidated assets
Qudirying liabilities
MLR

226,381,887
502,703,628

45.03%

Copitol Monogement
The primary objectives of the Bank's capital management are to comply with the capital

requirements of the BSP

a) to safeguard the Bank's ability to operate continuously to earn dividends and other benefits for
members;

b) tomaintain a strongand healthycapital basetosupportthedevelopmentofthebusinessand
maximize stockholder value.

U nder existing regulations, ban ks are required to maintain daily, a risk based capital ratio of not less

than 10Yo. The ratio, expressed as a percentage of qualifying capital to risk weiShted assets, is

determined by the risk assets of banks, on balance sheet and off balance sheet, measured and risk

weightedaccordingtodefinedcriteria.Riskassetsaredefinedastotalassetslesscashonhand,due
from BSP, loans covered by holdout or assignment of deposits, loans or acceptances under letters

of credit to the extent covered by marginal deposits and other non-risk items as determined by

Monetary Board.

The Bank's capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored regularly by

Management e mploying appropriate techniques. The required information is filed with the 85P on

regular basis. The BSP requlres each bank or banking group to hold the minimum levelof regulatory

capital and maintain a ratio of total regulatory capital to the risk weiBhted assets at or above the

agreed minimum.

The Bank's regulatory capitalas monitored by management is divided into two tiers:

Tier 1 (core) capital - share capital (net of any book value of the treasury shares), retained

earnings less unsecured directors, officers, stockholders and other related interest (DOSRI)

accounts and deferred income tax;

Tier 2 (supplementary) capital- redeemable preferred stocks, general loan loss provision and

deposits for common stocks subscriptions.

The details of CAR as reported to the BSP are as follows
2022

Tier l capital

Tier 2 capital

Php 74,505,000 Php

2,566,000

74,360,777

2,411,523

Total qualifyinB capital Php 77,271,000 Php 75,A37,635

Total risk weighted on financial position

Total operational risk-weighted assets

Php 534,733,000 Php

76,409,0O0

570,492,102

6A,739,674

Total risk wei as5et5

Tier l capitalratio
Tier 2 capital ratio

6U,142,000 Php 639,237,776

72.21%

0.44%

17.630/o

0.39%

@IMIIVT BAnt OI MHOt
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Ph

72.64% 12.02%Risk based capital adequacy ratio

Php 160,806,464 Php
461,363,653

y.85y.

2021



2022 2021
Cash on hand
Checks and other cash items

Php '1s,808,656 Php
456,270

28,852,612
232,491

Php 16,264,926 Php 29,085,'103

Cash on hand represents the total amount of cash in the bank's vault in the form of Philippine
currency notes and coins underthe custody of the cashier including those in possession of the
telle rs.

Checks and other cash items (Cocl) represent the total amount of checks and other cash items

received after the se lected clearing cut-off time until the close of the regular banking hours. These

may consist of checks drawn on other ban ks, manage/s or cashier's checks and demand drafts. All

COCIs are to be presented for clearance/acceptance/settlement on the immediate following
banking day.

5. Due from BSP

Due from BSP as at December 3L, 2022 and 202L amounted to Php14.77 million and

Php14.90 million, respectively.

This is a savings deposit of the Bank maintained with the BSP to meet legal reserve requirement

equivalent to 3%.

7. Due from Other Banks

Due from other banks as at December 3L,2022 and 2021 amounted to Php130.07 million, and

Php182.04 million, respectively.

Due from other banks represents deposits in various reputable local banks. These deposits earn

interest based on the prevailing de posit rates of respective banks. The Bank reconciles the book and

other banks' balances regularly as part of its cash monitoring and internalcontrol measures.

lnterest earned f rom deposits with othe r ban ks in 2022 and 2027 amounted to Php0.72 million and

Phpo.38 milllon, respectively /see Note 19/.

Loans and receivables as at December 3l consist of:
2022 2021

Loans recai\ables
Uneamed lnterest Discount
Allowance lor expected credit losses

Php 340,658,022
(3,731,362)

Php 332,083.381
(2,969,344)

996,,148) (3e,23s,163)

Sales contract recei\able
Accounls recei\able

296,930,212
2,101,419
2,557,440

289,878,874
2,149,O79
1,803,676

cmft^^rv€ oAlrx of mHot
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Php 301,589,071 Php 293,831,629

5. Cash and Other Cash ltems

Cash and other cash items as at December 3l consist of:

8. Loans and Receivables



Breakdown of provision for credit losses are as follows
2022 2021

Specifc loan loss pro\,ision

General loan loss pro\,isaon
Php 37,375,950 Php

2,620,494
36,803,740
2,431,423

Php 39,996,448 Php 39,235,163

The following table shows the movement in the allowance for credit losses:
2022 2021

At beginning of year
Pro\,ision during the year

Actual writsof during the year

Prior vear adiustment (Note 18)

Php 39,235,163 Php
1,456,075

(694,790)

32.206.919
2,046,493

(400,405)

5,382.156
At end of year Php 39,996,448 Php 39,235,163

Breakdown of interest income on loans and receivables is as follows fsee Note 19,1:

2022 2021

Loans recei\able
Sales contract recei ble

Php 67,'t64,869 Php
152,041

65,1 19,988
45,138

Php 67,316,910 Php 65,165,126

Current BSP regulations allow banks with no unbooked valuation reserve and capitaladjustments

to exclude from non-performing classification receivables classified as loss in the latest examinatbn

of the BSP, which are fully covered by allowance for credit losses interest on said receivables shall

not be accrued for regulatory accounting purposes.

Non-perf orming loans (N PB) not f ully cove red by the allowance for impairment and credit losses as

at December 3l consist of:
2022 2021

Total NPLS

Less: NPLS fully co\ered by allowance icr crediuimpairment

losses

Php 51,507,536 Php 62,224,127

(39, 996,,r48) (3s, 235,163)

Php 11,5fi ,088 Php 22, 988,964

Under banking regulation, NPLs shall, as a general rule, refer to loan accounts whose contractual

principal and/or interest is unpaid for thirty (30) days or more after the due date or afte r they har'e

become past due in accordance with existing rules and regulations. This shall apply to loans payable

in lump sum and loans payable in quarterly, semiannual or annual installment, in which case, the

total outstanding balance thereof shall be considered non-performinS'

ln the case of loans payable in monthly installme nts, the total outstanding balance thereof sh all be

conside red tech nical past due when three (3) or more installments are in arrears or whe n the total

amount of arrearages reaches 2fflo of the total loan receivable balance.

ln the case of loans payable in daily, weekly or semi-monthly installments, the total outstanding

balance shall be considered technical past due in accordance with existing BSP regulation, i.e. the

entire outstanding balance of the receivable shall be considered technical past due when total

amount of arrearages reaches 10% of the total receivable balance.

Restructu red receivablesthat do not meet the requirernents to be treated as performing receivabl€s

are also considered NPLs. Restructured loans as of December 31-, 2022 and 2021 amounted to

Php3.12 million and Php2.34 million, respectively.

Outstanding loans to directors, office rs, stockholders and othe r re lated interests (OOSRI)amounted

to php19.55 million and Php25.40 million as at Decembe(31,2022 and 2021, respectively. lnterest

caoftr rivl 6Alw of rcHo(
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income on DOSRI loans amounted to Php9.41 million and Php5.46 million in 2022 and 2021,
rcspeclively (see Note 24).

lnformation relating to loans receivables by security as at December 31 are as follows:

Percenl Arnount Percent Amount
Secured

Real estate mortgage
Others

205,383,057
36,877,310

177,938,555
43.517,880

60.29% Php
10.E3%

53.58% Php
13.100/o

7'1.12% 242,260,367 66.690/. 221,456,435

Unsecured 28.88% 98,397,655 33.3'1% 110.626,946
100.00% Php 340,658,022 100.00o/o Php 332,083,381

lnformation on the conce ntration of loans rece iva ble as to e conom ic activity as at the ye ars e nded

December 31 are as follows:

2021 Current Past Due

Items in

Litigation

Percentto

TotalTotal

Agriculturalloans

SME loans

Other loans

Php 27)9,r% Php

152869,010

87,275,076

13,150,362 Php

2t,979,851

27.ts4,034

41.045,258

185,541,878

114,010,876

12.05%

34.476/o

33.49/.

04,710 Php

693,017

3,801,825

Php 272,4!4,222 Php 63,L24,247 Php 5,099,553 Php W,658,O22 1m.00%

2021 Current Past Due

Items in

LitiSation

Percent to

TotalTotal

Php 25,452,399 Php

r3s,6L7,527

97,28s,183

1121&139 Php

22,021,U3

35,389,276

Php 35,w,11s

159,m6,506

136,235,7m

169,637

1,361,136

3,561,641

11.W"

47.88%

41.02%

Php 25&355,709 Php 68,535,258 Php 5,092,414 Php 332,083,381 100.ffi/1

The BSP considers that loan concentration exists when the total loan exposure to a particular

industry exceeds 307o of the total loan portfolio.

ln December 2020, the Bank applied for temporary relief measures in booking its Allowance for

credit Losses (AcL) pursuant to BSP Me morandum No. M -202G008. The Bank has submitted to BSP

an intent tetter indicating the total EcL for staggered booking over a period of 2 years with the

approved board resolution. However, the issuance of BsP Memorandum Nos. M -2021-055 and M-

2021-056 which provides the guidelines on the regulatory treatment of restructured loans for

purposes of measu ring Expected credit Losses (EcL) amid the pande mic and temporary regulatory

reliefonthecapitaltreatmentofprovisioningrequirementsunderthePFRS,respectively,prompted
the Bank to reassess its current portfolio and to conduct stress testing to see which among the

available relief measures is more advantageous.

The Bank, in its letter to the BsP dated Fe bruary 10, 2022, has ex presse d its d ecision to avail ofthe
temporary regulatory relief on the capital treatment of provisioning requirements under the PFRS

(M-2021-056) and withdraw its application for staggered booking of Allowance for credit Losses.

(mPtR Ilvt SaNx oa sHor
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2022 2021

Agriculturalloans

SME loans

Other loans



2022 2021
ln\estment in non-marketable equity securities
ln\,estment in qo\emment bonds

Php 8,5'14,141 Php
30,000

5,387,399
30,000

Php 8,544,141 Php 5,417,399

lnvestment in non-marketable equity securities include investments other cooperatives and
cooperative banks. The Bank carries these investments at cost. All dividends are recogn ized as part
of miscellaneous income when received. When there is a significant and apparently permanent
decline in value of investment, as indicated by a series of operating losses of a n investee or other
factors, the carrying amount of the investment is written down to its recoverable amount.

lnvestments in government bonds are quoted non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable paymentsand fixed maturity, which are subsequently measured at amortized cost.

10. Prepavments and other curren t Assets

Prepayments and other current assets at December 31 consist of:
2022 2021

Accrued interest recei\aue
Prepayments
Restricted tunds

Petty cash tund

Stationery and supdies
Others

Php Php53,196,451
2,737,69',1

4,192,109
39,000

391,672
321,913

37,212,173
1 ,613,044
4,277,325

39,000
417,62

6,363

Php 60,881,836 Php 43,564,967

COOPIi^IIVE BAI{I OF &IIOT
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9. lnvestment Securities

lnvestment securities as at December 31 consist of:



11. Bank Premises, Furniture, Fixture and Equipment, net

Bank premises, furniture, and equipment as at December3l consist of:

2022 Land Buidl ng!

Fumitureend

Fixture

T€ntportalion

[quipment lT Equipment Tota

coST

At be8innins ol the year

Addition5

D6posals

Php 4,626,708 Php 25,837,455 Php 8,001,750 php

1,148,806

(67,3s1)

2,825,m0 Php 13,5t2,057 Php 54,841,970

1,048,000 2,8s3,081 s,049,887

l$9,0m) (696,ss11 11,602,905)

4,626,708 25,837,455 9,085,205 3,034,0m 15,708,584 58,291,952

ACCUMUTATID DEPRECIATIOI'/

Al beginninS ofthe year

Depreciation

Dirporals

17,374,553

1,103,087

5,343,983

950,221

{57,3s1)

1,954,283

239,474

(839,000)

8,334,354

1,759,712

1596,554)

33,m7,173

3,551,9s4

(1,602,90s)

At end of the year t8,471,640 6,226,853 t,354,151 8,896,972 34,956,222

CARRYING AMOUNT Php 1,625,708 Php ,,359,815 Php 2,858,352 Php 1,679,243 Php 6,81r,612 Php 23,335,730

7421, Buidlingt Equipmenl lT Equipm€nt

coST

At beginnanS ol th. year

Additiont

Di3pos.k

Php 4,580,208 Php 25.347,749 Php

46,500 489,705

7,398,471 Php

frl,739

12,460)

2,493,0m Php 12,745,590 Php 52,525,018

871,00 805,457 2,821,411

{199,000} {so1,1m)

4,625,708 25,837,455 8,003,750 2,82S,m0 13,552,057 54,844,969

ACCUMUTATTD DEPRECIAIION

At b€ginning of the year

D€pre.iation

Disposak

16,319,726

1,0s4,827

4,479,455

866,975

(2,1s81

2,093,49t

359,192

1,218,771

1,744,749

129,1671(499 ,000)

30,1r1,153

3,475,344

(s30,625)

17,374,551 5,34t.983 1,954.283 8,334,354 33,007,112

Pfip 4,525,708 Php 8,462,901 PhP 2.659,767 PhD 870,717 Php 5,217,703 Php 71,837,797

The Bank premises, furniture, fixture and office equipment are properties that the Bank holds title

to and are free from any lien or encumbrances.

Depreciation expenses are charged to operating expenses (see Note 22)' ln 2072 and 2027,

management has assessed that there are no indications of impairme nt of Bank premises, furniture,

fixture and equipment.

cooEMnvl6 Nxof rc ot
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12. Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets held for sale as at December 31 consist of:

2022 2027
cosT

At beginning of Vear

Additions

Di5posals

15,O17,357 Php

2,L67,447

14,067,As7l

76,565,977

3,244,597

(4,833,211)

Php

At end ofyear 73,116,947

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

At beginning of year

oepreciation

Di5posals

1,065,436

1255,507)

7,344,543

tzt,29A
(400,40s)

At end of year 809,929 1,065,436

CARRYING VALUE Php 12,307,05E

This account refers to real and other prope rties acquired (ROPA) that are available for immediate

sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such

assets. ROPA refersto realand other properties, othe rthan those used for banking purposes or heh

for investment, acquired by the Bank in settlement of loans through foreclosure or dation in

payment and/or for othe r reasons.

Gain on disposal of certain ROPA in 2022 and 2OZ7 amounted to Php0.83 million and Php2.45

million, respectivelv (see Note 20).

Total appraised value of RoPA amounted to Php24.77 million and Php24.28 million in 2022 and

2021.

13. Other non -current assets

other non-current assets include sinking fund set aside by the Bank for retirement plan of its

employees.

As at December 31, 2022 and 2OZL, other non-current assets amounted to

Php U.2O million and Php8.39 million, respectivery fsee Note 23,1.

14. Deoosit Liabilities

Deposit liabilities as at December 3l consist of

Php 13,951,921

2022 2021

Sa\,ings deposits
lime deposits

Php t47,458,567 PhP 142,'113,026

324,777 ,997 375,776,U8
Php 472.236,5 Pho 517,889,374

lnterest expense incurred on deposit liab ilities are as follows (see Note 21)
2022 2021

Salings deposits
llme deposits

Php 1,939,702 Php
10,522,U9

2,176,239
10,207,908

Php 12,462,551 Php 12,

@P€t Trvt SANX Of mfiOi,
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lnterest rates for savings and time de posits range from L% lo 4% pe r annum.
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15.Bills Payable

Bills payable represents loan with Land Bank of the Philippines (LBP), which carries interests from
60/o to7.25% per annum payable within 1 yearto 10 years, and with Agricu ltu ral Credit Policy Council
(ACPC), which do not carry any interest and is payable within 10 years from the end of the reporting
period.

Movements in bills payable as at December 31are as follows:
2022 2021

Beginning
A\ailments
Payments

Php 5,366,086 Php
30,248,63/t

(25,295,466)

4,788,520
7,705,619
(7,128,053)

Php 10,319,2s4 PhD 5,366,086

lnterest expense paid related to bills payable amounted to Php 0.42 million and Php0.32 million in

2022 and 2021, respectively (seeNote2l).

Accrued interest, expense, and other payables as at December 3l consist of:
2022 2021

Accrued interest expense
Accounts payable

Due to CETF APEX
Withholding taxes payable

Redeemable prefened shares
SSS, Pag-ibig, PhilHealth payable

Documentary stamp tax PaYable
Due to Nationlink and Cebuana
Other accrued expenses

Php 4,176,603 Php
2,365,976

470,331
286,832

45,'t 00

226,7'',tO

287,127
659,008

1,810,543

4,471,624
1,791,964

230,103
249,895

46,100

163,471

197,281
659,008

't,211,882

As at December 37, 2022 and 2021, the Bank's DFss amounted to Php13.38 million and

php10.70 million, respectively. The Bank classified this under Deposit for Future stocks

subscriptions as equity instrument eligible for capital relative to the provisions of 85P Circular 1027,

section x128, which states that DFSS shall be classified as equity instrument if all of the following

criteria are met:

Php '10, 329,230 Php 9, 021.328

Accrued interest expense relates to interest payable for deposit liabilities and bills payable.

othe r accrued expenses are non-interest bearing and are expected to be settled within 12 months

from the end of the reporting period.

17. Deposit for Futu re Stocks Su bsc flp tion IDFSS]

a. The DFSS meets the definition of an equity instrument under PAS 32, Findnciol instruments:

Presentotion, suchthat the DFSS shall not interest-bearing nor withdrawable by the subscribet

b. The ban k's ex isting authorized capita I is already f ully subscribe d;

c. The bank,s stockholders and board of directors have approved the proposed increase in

authorized capital;

€mpt TMt S tlx of mlot
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15. Accounts Pavable and Other liabilities



d. The bank has filed an application for the amendment of its articles of cooperation for the
increase in authorized capital with the appropriate department, duly supported by complete
documents as listed in Annex B of Circular Letter No. 2009-042 dated 14 May 2009.

e. The bank must have obtained approval of the Monetary Board on transadions involving
significant ownership of voting shares of stock by any person, natural or juridical, or by one
group of persons as provided in ltem "b" of Subsection. X126.2, if applicable.

On September 18,2019, the Bank has proposed amendments to its articles of cooperation (Aoc)

for the increase in its authorized common shares from 20,000 to 56,000- The application for the
amendment of AOC was forwarded to BSP for favorable endorsement to CDA.

On December5,2019, BSP returned the Bank's application together with the su pporting documents

and considered the application as "closed" due to the Bank's failure to comply with the
requirements under Annex C of Circular Letter No. 2W-UZ dated May 14, 2009 and

def iciencies/inconsistencies with the requirements originally provided. On March 2, 2020, the Bank

re-applied to 85P, however, this was subsequently returned for requirement deficiencies.

on Nove mber 21, 2020, subject to approval of BSP, at least three-fourtk of the number of voting

shares of all membe rs with voting rights of the Bank approved the amendment of the Bank's by-

laws to include, among others, the following increase in authorized capital stock:

Common
shares

Preferred
shares

Total authorized
capital

Current structure 20,ooo
150,OOO

20,ooo
50,000P roposed amendment in authorized capital stock

40,ooo
2m,ooo

All shares have a minimum par value of Php1,000

ln March 2022, the Bank re-submitted its application for the increase in authorized capital stock

along with the amended by-laws to the BSP but were later on returned due to the latte/s proposed

amendments to the Bank's By-Laws (BL), particularly Article Vlll, Sections 3 and 4, on the

constitution of the Mediation and Conciliation Committee and the Ethics Committee in relation to

Art. 43 of Republic Act No. 9520 (The Cooperative Code of 2008).

The BSP on its letter to the Bank dated January 26, 2023 further clarified the matter on the

constitution of committees in the Bank referencing to its recently issued Memorandum on the
proposed Templates of Articles of cooperation (Aoc) and BL of cooperative Banks (No. M-2023-

m1i. The Bank inte nds to re-apply by 2023 and is now preparing all the requ irements in accordance

with the aforementioned memorandum.

cd)}€i^TrvE E nxof r or
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18. Share Capital

The Bank's share capital consists of;
2022 2021

S ha res Amount Shares
Authorized common stock - Php1.000 par,,/alue

Authorized prefened stock - Php1,000 par \alue
000
000

20,000,000
20,000,000

000 Php
000

20
20

20

20

20,000 Php
20,000

000,
000,

40,000 Php 40,(x)9,000 40,000 Php 40,000,000

Movement in share capital for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows
2022 2021,

Shares Amount sharo6 Amount

lssued and outstaMinq - cormon shares 20,000 Php 20.000.000 20,000 Pho 20,000,000

lssued and outstanding - prefuned shares
At beginning of year
lssued during the year

12,188
31

12,,1EE,000

31,(x)0
12,421

67

12,421,@O
67,000

At end of year 12.519 12,519,000 12,488 12,488,000

Total share capital 519 Php 32,519,000 12. 555 Php 32,488,000

As at December 37,2022 and 2021, the Bank has 51 and 48 stockholders owning 100 or more

common shares each, resPectivelY.

Distibution of Net Surplus
2022 2021

Surplus Reserves
Mortuary fund
Contingency fund
Provision for retirement of redeemable

Php

preferred shares

Statutory Fund

General Reserve Fund

Cooperative Education & Trainihg Fund

Due to APEX'

Optional Fund

Community DeveloPment Fund

7L7,257

119,543

119,s43

167,359

7t,726

510,O10

85,0O2

85,m2
119,OO2

51,m1
1, ,9s,427 a50,o17

Total surplus reserves t, tgs,427 a50,017

Su rp lus Free 7,795,427 850,017

Php 2,390,49 Php L,7@,O34

' Recognized unde.'dccounts Pdwble ond orher liobilities'

statutory reserves are being provided for in accordance with Article 86 of RA No.9520, allocation

of the net surplus are as follows:

RA No. 9520

Actual Allocation

20t2 2027

General reserve fund

Cooperative educational and training fund

Optionalfund
Community development f und

Dividends and patronage refund

At least 1f/6 of net surplus

Not more than 10% of net surplus

Not more than 7% of net surplus

At least 3% of net surplus

Excess

M
5%

n4
194

3M
50/o

T/o

!/o

Excess

cooPtR nvE 3l r of 30Hot
Nor.5 lo ll^a..l.l Sllt.@.|! rt .l .ni fd th. Y..r thd.d D.c.6 b.r 31 rcrland2021

Excess

Php



Breakdown of surplus free
ln accordance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 11 issued in November 2008, the Bank's surplus
free available for dividend declaration as at December 31 is as follows:

2022 2021
At beginning ofyear Php 16,117,319 Php
Add (deduct) the f3llowing:

Prior year adjustments (l,176,889)
Appropriation to statutory tunds
Net income irr the year 2&31x2

22,901,U1

(8,027,909)
(4ss,&r7)

't,700,034

At end ot year Php 17,2,t3,68 Php 16,117,3'19

Prior year adjustments pertain to unrecognized profit or loss in prior year recorded only during the
current year. lncluded in prior year adjustments are adjustments for the reversal of allowance for
expected credit losses pertaining to past due loans in prior years which were subsequently collected
or reclassified to currcnt (see Note 8).

19- lnterest lncome

lnterest income for the years ended December 31 consists of:
2022 2021

Php 67,164,869 Php
7',t7,371
171,466
152,O41

65,1 19,987
379.102
77,813
45,'138

Php 68,205,747 Php 65,622,M0

20. Non-lnterest lncome

Non-interest income for the years ended December 31 consists of
2022 2021

Lease income
Senice income and commission
Gain (loss) on sale of NCAHS
Fees and other miscellaneous income

Php 171,891 Php

7s7,869
829,581

3.671,024

767.980
43A,252

2,447 ,379
3,205,007

Php 5,430,365 Php 6,858,6'18

Lease income pertains to income generated from renting out one of its acquired assets and bUildinS.

Gain (loss) on sales of NcAHs refers to income generated by the bank through sale of its acquired

assets.

Fees and other miscellaneous income include service fees and bank charges.

lnterest expense for the years ended December 31 consist of:
2022 2021

lnterest expense on deposit liabilities Php 12,462,55i Php
/119,080

12,3U,147
315,998lnterest expense on bills payable

cooPatarvt a N( or aolrot
{dBroFid6o.lSt t mt3a.t.nr,rdth.Y..uan&dt).<.mbd,llO22..d202r

Php 12,881,631 Php 12,700,145

lnterest on loans recei\able
lnterest on deposits with banks
lnterest on in\€stment securities
lnterest on sales contract recei\able

21. lnterest Expense



22. Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses for the years ended December 31

2022 2021
Compensation and emdoyees' beneft expense
Taxes and licenses
Other oDeratinq exDenses

Php 18,844,509 Php
3,801,244

35,087,250

18,772,538
3,639,4s1

34,872,687
Php 57,733,003 Php 57,2U,676

Compensation and e mployees' benefit expe nse for the years ended Dece mber 31 consist of:
2022 2021

Salaries and wages
Fringe benefts
Staff benefits
Retiremenl benefts

't1,747,665 Php
3,105,233
2,686,701
1,304,910

'l'1,00'1,565

3,581,253

2,824,415
1,365,30s

Php

PhD '18.8114,51,9 Php 18,772,538

Other operating expenses for the years ended December 3l consist of:
2022 2021

Depreciation /amortization
Trdining expenses
Tra\eling expenses
Security, messengerial and janitorial setuices

Documentary stamps used

Directo/s be
General assembly expenses
Pro\ision for credit losses on loans and recei\ables

Power. light, and water
lnsurance POIC

Postage, telephone, cables and telegrams

Ad\ertising and publicity

lnsurance expense
Representation and entertainment
Fuel and lubricants
Stationeries and supplies used

Litigation/asset acquired expenses
Repairs and maintenance
Management and other pofessional tees

lnilrmation and technology
Rent
Banking fees

Bank charge
Donations and charitable contributions

Php Php3,55r,9s4
2,812,382
2,439,325
2,375,488
2,200,039
1,916,599
1,479,058
1,456,075
1,38/,412

985,411
860,559
779,'115
758,706
621,000
546,268
543,396

516,096
295,750
270,541
169,198
'102,329
63,016
r8,415
9,300

3,518,476
1,998,705
1,551,7'10

2,307,374
2,O25,211
1,828,111

602,267
2,046,493
1,050,964

881,236
627,085

't,481,963

600,094

565,500
361,061
504,914

2U,067
326,070
252,88
213,997
79,288
92,856
72,216
18,200

't 1 ,601,941Olher expenses 932,818
Php 35,087,250 Php U,872.687

@af MTtvE 8ar{l of mfio(
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23. Retirement Ben efits

The Bank has a funded, non-contributory benefit retirement plan covering all of its officers and
regular employees. The date of the latest actuarial valuation re port is Jan uary 74,2021.

The movement in the pension liabilities are as follows
2022 2021

At beginning of year
Eflects of changes in actuarial assumptions

Php 9,9'10,696 Php 7,011,190

3,7M,481
At beginning of year - restated
Cunent senice cost
lnterest expense
Benefts paid

9,910,696
1,367,424

49,553

10,755,671

1,367,424
35,056

(2,247,455\

At end of year Php 11,327,673 Php 9,910,696

The Bank's restricted fund set aside for retirement plan of its employees included in prepayments

and other current assets consists of short-term money market placement (see Note 10r.

2022 2021

At beginning of year

lnterest income
Contributions made
Benefits paid

Php 8,387,787 Php
'112,067

2,700,000

10,598.067
37,175

(2.247,455)

At end of year Php 11,199,854 Php 8,387,787

The Bank's retirement obligations are not offset against the restricted fund for retirement plan

The principal assumptions used to determine retirement benefits are as follows:

2022 202L

Discount rate

lnterest rate

salary increase rate

0.s%

o.5%

2%

o.s%

0.5%

2%

sDPtl^lrvE B rltoa Etlot
{or.r to Fiofri:l si.l@nl! :3 .! a.d fti rh. Y6B E^.hd t .emh.r 31, 1022 t'd 2011

The movements in the Bank's restricted fund for retirement are as follows:



24. Related Party Transactio ns

ln the ordinary course of business, the Bank enters in to loan and other transactions with certain
DOSRI. U nder the Bank's policy, these loans and othe r transactions are made substantially on the
same terms as with other individuals and business of comparable risks. The amount of individual
loans to DOSRI, of which 7trl6 must be secured, should not exceed the amount of their respective
deposits and book value of their respective investments in the Bank. These limits do not apply to
loans secured by assets considered as non-risk as defined in the regulations.

The significant transactions of the Bank with its related parties are as follows

DOSRI occounts

Transaction5
Transaction

Amounts
outstandint

Balance Terms Condition

Loans and receivables 2022 Php

2027

(s,847,889) Php

224,902

19,sss,444
2s,403,333

lnterest
bearing

secured/
Unsecured

lnterest income 2022
2027

9,406,415
5,457,23A

Deposit liabilities 2022
202L

(7,429,7L71

6,971,O74
70,7 19,32s
72,749,O42

lnterest
bearing

secured

lnterest exPense 2072
2021

r,s47,775
1,9s7,364

2022
2027

Php
Php

3,676,544
74,614,582

Php
Php

90,274,769
97,552,375

K ey M o n o ge me nt Co mpen sotio n

The compensation of key management personnel (persons having authority and r€sponsibility for

planning, directing, and controlling the operational activities of the Bank, directly or indirectly):

2022 2021

Short-term emplovee benefits Php 7,956,904 Php '?,634,944

Members of the BOD are e ntitled to a per diem for atte ndance at each meeting of the Board and of

any committees, and other non -cash be nefit in the form of healthcare plans and insurance. ln 2022

and 2027, total per diem given to the BoD amounted to Php1.92 million and Php1.83 million,

respectively, recorded in 'Director's Fee' in the statement of comprehensive income. Directors'

remuneration covers all Board activities.

cm*MTrvE B nx of mi{o(
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25. lncome Tax

(a) Regular lncome Tax

lncome bebre income tax
Add (deduct):

Permanent differences
lncome already subjected to final tax
lnterest arbitrdge
lncome from members
Re\€rsal of pro\,ision br EcL

Temporary difierences
Prolision for ECL

Php 3,021,478 Php 2,495,837

(888,837)

222,209
(s93,641)
(6e4,7s0)

(4s6.915)
114,229

(616,025)

(400,405)

2,046,4931,455 ,075
Net taxable income
lncome tax rate

2,522,494
25%

3,183,214
25./"

Reqular income tax Php 630,624 Php 795,803

The reconciliation of the statutory income tax rate to the Bank's effective income tax rate are as

follows:
2022 2021

lncome before income tax
Add (deduct):

Permanent differences
lncome already subiected to final tax
lnterest arbitrage
Other non-dedudible expense
lncome from members
Reversal of provision for ECL

lmpairment loss on NCAHS

Temporary differences
Provision for ECL

(7.3s)
1.84

(4.s8)
7.14

(5.17)
(4.o1)

25-OO

12-O5

25.OO

ReB ular income tax 20.47 31.88

(b) Minimum Corp orate lncome Tax
2022 2021

Gmss income
Less: lncome already subiected to fnal tax

Php 68,205,747 PhP 65,622,UO
(888, 837) (456, 915)

67 316 9'10 65 165,125

Cost of senice:
lnterest expense
Salaries and wages

12,881,631
20,761,108
3,2/l8,466

12,700,145
20,600,649
2,999,303Bankinq, supe^,ision fees, and insurance

36,891,205 36,300,097

Gross income for MCIT Purpose
lncome tax rate

30,425,705
't%

28,865,028
1%

Minimum corporate income tax Php 304,257 Php 288,650

(c) lncome Tax Payable (Prepaid lncome Tax)

2021

lncome tax due

Less: Prior year excess credits

lncome tax credits and payments during the year

Php 630,624 Php

17,156

940,349

795,803

1@,160

70a,199

cmPf n TvE g N(of rcHot
lld6 ro tiDrc.l lbr.mnte .t ,r ..d h. lh. Y..4 tnd.d OEtr$.. 31 2022 ..d 2021

Php (326,881) Php (17,1s6)

2022 2021

(4.s1)
(s.7s)

20.50

2022



(d) Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets recognized in the state ment of financial position for the years 2022 and 202L
consist of:

Amount

MCIT

Excess of contribution over retirement expense

oct

52,716

1,765,937

437,

MclT from 2020 amounting to Php52,716 was recomputed in line with the effectivity of the new

tax rates per CREATE Law and remains unapplied against 2022 tax due.

25, Leases

Bonk os o Lessee

The Bank has non-cancellable lease contracts for various stalls spaces used as branchlites, with

terms of 1 yearto 3 years. These include extension and termination options. A security deposit b

required for the faithful compliance of all terms and conditions. These security deposits should be

refunded upon termination of the lease. The management assessed that the existing lease contracts

are not within the scope of PFRS 16 as there are no identifiable assets.

The approximate annualfutu re minimum re nt payable of the Bank unde r its existing non-cancellable

lease agreements as a lessee as at December 31, 2021amounts to Php99,348.

The Bank has entered into operating leases on its investment property portfolio consisting of ce rtain

office buildings. These leases have terms of between 5 and 20 years. All leases include a clause to

enable upward revision of the rental charge on an annual basis according to prevailing market

conditions. The lessee is also required to provide a residualvalue guarantee on the properties. Lede

income recognized by the Bank amounted to Php171,891 and Php767,980 forthe years ended

December 31, 2022 and 7071, respectively.

27. SuDplementa rv lnformation Reouired under Revenue RePulations No. 15-2010

ln compliance with the requirements set forth under Revenue ReSulations (RR) No. 15-2010

here under as the information of taxes and license fees paid or accrued as at and for the year ended

December 31, 2022:

Amount

Final tax

Withholding tax on comPensation

Php 2,351,U9

337,97

377,377Exp anded witholding tax
Php 3,012,013

Php

Php 781,s3

(a) Withholding taxes

.ineriArvE BANI of rcfiot
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(b) Taxes and licenses

Amount

Percentage tax

Municipal licenses and permits

Real property tax

Vehicle registrations and permits

Others

Php 3,368,258

3ffi,477

45,904

a,u2
18,023

Php 3,&7,2M

(c) Tax cases and assessments

As at December 31, 2022, the Bank has no outstanding tax cases and assessments.

On February 7, 202L, lh'e BSP issued Circular No. 1074 which amends certain provisions of
Section 174 of the Manualof Regulations for Banks relating to the audited fin ancial state me nts. lt
also required banks to disclose the following supplementary information in the fina ncial state me nts:

The following basic ratios measure the financial performance of the Bank:

2022 2021

Return on average equity (a/b)

a) Net income Php

3.89o/"

2,390,8tr Php

6t,5?3.,ffi

2.56%

1,7m,034

6,378,970b)Average total equity

Return on average assets (c/dl

c) Net income

d) Average total assets

Php

O.AryO

2,390,831 Php

s96,759,2G1

o.3e/o

7,7fi,034

572,777,447

N et inte rest margin on ave rage earning assets (e/f) O.8/" O 35%

e) Net income Php 2,390,854 Php 7,7@'oA

f) Ave interest earni asset5 498,254,585 497,2i,401

Note: Awruqe bolonces ore the sum ol &ginning ond ending bolonces ol the rcspectite stoaement ol linonciol posilion

occounts divided by two (2).

(b) Description of capital lnstruments lssued

As at December 37, 2022 and 2021, the Bank has only two classes of capital stock, which are

common shares and preferred shares.

@ott Twt 3 ixof mfiot
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28. Report on the Supplementary lnformation Required Under BSP Circular No. 1074

(a) Basic Quantitative lndicators of Financial Performance



(c) Significant Credit Exposures as to lndustry Sector

An industry sector analysis of the Bank's receivables from customers before taking into account the
unearned and other deferred income and allowance for credit losses as reported to BSP is shown
below:

2022 2021
Percent Amount Percent

Farmers
Commercial traders
Auto dealers

Realtors
Financial traders
lndiVduals
Others

40.056.452
57.057,319
16.673,006
21.727,697
44,864,246

107,19',t,072
44,509,589

1't.53% Php
19.U%
7.45%
2.73%

31.1Xo/.

22.AOo/"

1.520/.

39,292,339
67,595,320
25,371,118

9,301,025
116,250,312
77,657,463

5,190.415

12.060/" Php
17.'t80/.

5.020/.

6.54yo
13.510/o

32.28%
13.40%

Php 340,658,022 Php 332,083,381

(d) Breakdown ofTotal Loans as to Security

The information (gross of unearned and other deferred income and allowance for expected credit

losses) relating to receivables from customers as to secured and unsecured and as to types of
collateral as reported to BSP, as follows:

2022 2021

Percent Amount Percent

Secured
Real estate mortgage
Others

60.29% Php
10.83%

205,383,057
35,877,310

53.58o/o Php
13.10v.

177,938,555
43,517,880

71.12% 242,260,367 66.69% 221.4*.435

Unsecured 2a.a8% 98,397,655 33.31% 110,626.946
'100.00% Php 340.658,022 100.00% Php 332.083.381

(e) Breakdown of Total LoansastoStatus

Non-performing loans (NPLs) of the Bank as at December 37, 2022 and 2O2L are presented as

follows
2022 2021

Loans recei\able
Sales contract recei\Eble

Php 67,1M,869 Php

152,O41

65,119,988
45,138

Php 67,316,910 Php 65,165,126

Loans receivables are considered NPL, even without any missed contractual payments, when

considered impaired under existing accounting standards, classified as doubtfulor loss, in litigation,

and/or there is evide nce that full repayment of principal and interest is unlikely without foreclosure

of collateral, if any. All other loans, even if not considered impaired, are considered NPL if any

principal and/or interest are unpaid for more than 90 days from contractual due date, or accrued

interests for more than 90 days have been capitalized, refinanced, or delayed by agreement

Microfinance and other small loans with similar credit characteristics are considered NPL after

contractual due dateor aftertheyhavebecomepastdue. Restructured loans are consideredNPL

However, if prior to restructuring, the loans were categorized as performing, such classification is

retained.

N PLs remain classified as such until (a) there is sufficient evidence to support that full collection of

principal and interests is probable and payments of interest and/or principal are received for at le ast

six (6) months; or (b) written-off .

@oP€xarvt 8aNl of mflot
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(f) Related Party Loans

As at December 31,2022 and 2021, the Ban k's re lated party loans sole ly consists of DOSRI loans, as

shown below:

2022 2021

Total outstanding loans

Total DOSRI loans

Unsecured OOSRI loans

Past due DOSRI loans

Performing

Non-performing

% of DOSRI loans to total loan portfolio

% of past due DOSRI loans to total DOSRI loans

% of non-accruing DoSRl accounts to total DosRl loans

Php :140,558,022 Php

19,555,444

15,492,269

332,083,381

25,@3,333

77,@2,931,

3,9s8,(r1

5,887,s99

5.74%

*.35%
l0.ll%

4,O24

s,509,960

7.65%

2L.77%

2t.69%

(g) Secured Liability and Asset Pledged

As at Decembe r 31 ,2022 and2O2!, bills payable amounted to Ph p 10.32 million and Php5.37 million,

respectively. There are no financial assets pledged as security against these bills payable as at

Decembe r 31, 2022 and 2021.

(h) Commitments and Contingencies

As at December3L,2022 and 2021, the Bank has no commitmentsand continge n cies a ris ing from

off-balance sheet items.

@ftranvE 6ar{x of mfio(
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COOPERATIVE BAI{I( OF SOHOI
COMPARISOI{ OT SUBMITTEO AATAi'CE SHT€I AiIO INCOME STATTMENT

AND AUDITEO FII{AI{CIAI. STATEMEI{TS

A5 AT DECEMBER 3r" 2022
(in fhousend Pesosl

Submitt€d Report Audil€d Report
Reasonstor

Varian(e/Oi5{repancy discrep.ncy

Cash and other cash items

Due from 8SP

Due from other banks

loans receivable, net

lnvestment securilies

Prepayments and other current assets

Bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipm€nt, n€t

RiSht-of'us€ assets

Non-curr€nt assets held for sale

Defeared tax assets

Other non-current assets

16,265

74,710

130,198

298,906

8.214
53,196

23,327

Php Php 16,265 pHP

14,770

130,067

301,589

8,544

60,882

23,336

rl
2/
3l

12,307

141

21,346

12,307

741

11,200

0
0

(10,145) sl

Php 579,310 Php 579,747 Ph? 421

Deposit liabalities

Bills pay.ble

A.count5 payable and olher liabilities

lncome tar payable

Deposit5 ,or futurc stocks subscrlptlon

Redeemable pref erred shares

Pcnsion liabiliiies

Php 472,237 Php

10,319

10,050

472,231 PHP

10,319

10,329

0
(0)

279

46

10,218

13,379 13,319
(45)

1,11011,128

TotalLi.bilaties soz.a70 s17,592 14,722

Share capital

Additaonal paid in capital stock

Stock dividend distributable

Donated capital

Remeasurement loss on retkement plan

Surplus fund

32,519

7t
218

469

(9,29s)

38.165

113,379)
0

(0)

459

0
(1,382)

45,898

7l
218

6l

8l
9l

10/

trl

121

(9,29s)

39,548

Tota lStockholderr'EqultY 76,441 62.149 (14,292)

Tota I Lia balities . nd stockholderr' Equity Php 579,310 Php 319,747 Php 430

Iotallncome Php 73,368 Php 73,636 Php 268

r,292)
L3/
t4/TotalE ,323)

4,045 Php

70,6ts
3,021 Php (1,023)

Net lncome Eefore lncome Tax

(0)

0

1131)

2,643

330

7,685



COOPERATIVE BAI{X OF BOHOL

COMPARISO Of SUBMITTED SALAI{CE SHE€T AND IT{COME STATEMENT

ANO AUDITED FINAIICIAI. STATEMENTS

AS Ar DECIMEER 31,2022

linlhousand Pesos)

Rearons fo. dircrepancy

U Due from other banks

fo record book reconciling items

2/ Loans receivable

To record book reconcilinS items

To rerlassafy from other non current assets

3/ lnvestments€curities

To reclassifyfrom other non cur.ent assets

4/ Prepayment and olher current assets

To account for 2022 taxexpense

To reclassify from other non curent assets

(13r) {131i

2,683

330

7,685

(10,146)

13,319

1,110

(13,379)

126

2,551

330

314

7,371

5/ Other non{u.renl atsets

To reclassilyto loans recelvable

To record income from .etirement fund

To reclassifo to investment securities

To reclassifyto prepayments and other current assets

l2,ss7l
112

(330)

,371],

6/ accountr p3yable and oth€r liabilities

To record book reconciling llems

To correct recording ofincome tax

To reclassify from p€nsion liabilaty

Toreclarsifyredeemableble prelerred sharesunderotherliabilities

7/ Deporits for future stocks subscription

To reclassifv DFSS recognized as part ofequity

9/ Pension liabllities

To reclassify pension liability previously lodSed as pa( of other current

liabilities.

To record adjustmentfor Crefined Benefit Obligation.

10/ Sharecapat.l

To adiust DFSS and stockdlvidends recorded in share.apital

1

{70)

102

46 219

(46)

t1,379

{46)

(302)

1,472

(13,379)

8/ Redeemable preferred shares

To r€classify redeemablabl€ preferred shares under other liabilities
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'ALAIICE 

SHEETAND INCOME STATEMENT

AND AUOITID FIiIAI{CIAL STATEMEflTS

AS AT DECEMBER 31,2022
(in rhousand Pesor)

11/ Oonated capital

To reclasrit donated capitallodged in surplusfund

12l Surplur tund

To account for prior period adjuslments

lncome for the currentyear
To properly accountfor gain on sale of NCAHS

To record adjustments in income statement accounts

1,177
(2,391)

{273)
10s

13/ Totallncome

To rerord bool reaoncilin8 atems

To properly account for Bain on sale of NC.AflS

14/ TotalExpen!€s

To record retire ment erpense and adjustment in the D8O and PA

To rPcord boo& recon€iling items

(1,300)

8

469 469

{1,382}

(1,292)

268

(s)

273
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STATEMENT OF REPRESENTATION

TO THE COOPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY:

ln connection with our examination of the financial statements of COOPERATIVE BANK OF BOHOL
(the "Cooperative") covering the year ended December 31, 2022 that are herewith submitted to the Cooperative
Development Authority (CDA), we hereby represent the following:

It is however, understood that our accountability is based on matter within the normal coverage of an audit

conducted in accordance with PSA and the sAsC.

MINERVA & COMPANY, CPAS

PRC/BOA Reg. Cert. No. 4870 - Valid until 01.31.2026

SEC Accred. No. 396-F - Valid until 10.13.2023

BSP Accred. No. 4870 - 8SP - Valid until 01.21.2025

N EA Accred. No. 2019-07-00062 - Valid until 07.21.2025

CDA Accred. No. 0068-AF - Valid until 01.04.2024

E

c
R P.'VIINERVA

a/d cert. No. 82086PA Bo

T.r.N. 130-291-145

PTR No. 3600013 dated 07.27.2023

SEC Accred. No. 1816-A - Valid until 10.13 2023

BSP Accred. No. 82086-8SP - Valid until 01.21.2025

BIR Accred. No. 13-021018-002-2020 - Valid until 7L.07.2023

March 20, 2023

Cebu City, Philippines

The Executiye Floor, FryB Bldg., osmeia Blvd., cebu city G-100 Mile Long Building, Amorsolo st., Makati city

Tet/FaxNos.(+63-32)238-2566,412-3838,&412-3636Te|./FaxNos.(O2)478-4048t>
E-mail Address: epminerva@minerva-cpa.com

llG

1. That said financial statements herewith attached are prepared and presented in conformity with financial
reporting standards applicable to cooperatives in the Philippines;

2. That in the conduct of our audit, we adhered to the Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA) and the Standard

Audit Systems for Cooperatives (SASC);

3. That we are qualified as a provider for in Section 8 of the Code of Professional Ethics for Certified Public

Accountants.
4. That we are fuliy aware of our responsibility as independent auditors for the audit report issued and attached to

the financial statements and the sanctions to be bestowed on us for our misrepresentations that we may have

willingly or unwillingly committed;
5. That we nor any member of our immediate families do not have any direct or indirect financial interest with the

Cooperative;
6. That no one from our firm is an employee nor officer of a secondary cooperative or tertiary cooperative of which

this Cooperative is a member;
7. That no one from our firm is an employee of the CDA nor has engaged an employee of the CDA in the course of

audit;
8. That we make representation in a capacity as an auditing firm;
9. That we are members of PICPA Cebu Chapter.



 COOPERATIVE BANK OF BOHOL  [ 05-040385 ]

 As of: December 31, 2022

PART I.  CALCULATION OF RISK-BASED CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO (in absolute amounts)

Item Nature of Item Account Code

   A.  Calculation of Qualifying Capital 

A.1 Net Tier 1 Capital 395000000000710000 74,605,389.16

A.2 Net Tier 2 Capital 395000000000720000 2,666,598.31

A.3 Total Qualifying Capital [Sum of A.1 and A.2] 395000000000700000 77,271,987.47

   B.  Calculation of Risk-Weighted Assets

B.1 Total Credit Risk-Weighted Assets [B.1(d) minus B.1(h) ] 195931000000000000 534,733,100.04

(a) Risk-Weighted On-Balance Sheet Assets 100000000000811000 534,733,100.04

(b) Risk-Weighted Off-Balance Sheet Assets 400000000000812000 0.00

(c) Counterparty Risk-Weighted Assets 110100000000813000

(d) Total Credit Risk Weighted Assets [Sum of B.1(a), B.1(b) and B.1(c) ] 100000000000810000 534,733,100.04

(e) Deductions from Total Credit Risk-Weighted Assets

(f) General Loan Loss Provision (in excess of the amount permitted to be 

included in upper Tier 2 capital) 

[Part III.1, Item G.(1)(b) minus Part II, Item B.1 (7) ]

175150500000000000 0.00

(g) Unbooked valuation reserves and other capital adjustments affecting asset 

accounts based on the latest report of examination as approved by the 

Monetary Board

365052000000711000 0.00

(h) Total Deductions [Sum of B.1(f) and B.1(g) ] 165000000000810000 0.00

B.2 Total Operational Risk-Weighted Assets 195000000000830000 76,409,475.26

B.3 Total Market Risk-Weighted Assets 100000000000820000

B.4 Total Risk-Weighted Assets [Sum of B.1, B.2 and B.3 ] 100000000000800000 611,142,575.30

   C.  RISK-BASED CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO [A.3 divided by B.4 

multiply by 100 ]

990000000000000000 12.64

$$$

Amount



 COOPERATIVE BANK OF BOHOL  [ 05-040385 ]

 As of: December 31, 2022

PART II.   QUALIFYING CAPITAL  (in absolute amounts)

A.  Tier 1 (Core plus Hybrid) Capital

A.1 Core Tier 1 Capital

(1) Paid up common stock 305050000000000000 33,379,000.00

(2) Deposit for common stock subscription 305250500000000000

(3) Paid-up perpetual and non-cumulative preferred stock 305100000000000000 12,519,000.00

(4) Deposit for perpetual and non-cumulative preferred stock subscription 305251000000000000

(5) Additional paid-in capital 305200000000000000 71,138.88

(6) Retained earnings 315000000000000000 36,518,247.15

(7) Undivided profits 315150000000000000 3,030,048.44

(8) Net gains on fair value adjustment of hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge of available for sale equity 

securities

320101000500000000

(9) Cumulative foreign currency translation 320150000000000000

(10) Minority interest in subsidiary financial allied undertakings (i.e., RBs and venture capital corporations 

(VCCs) for TBs, and RBs for Coop Banks) which are less than wholly-owned (for consolidated basis) 
1/

325150000000000000

(11) Sub-total [Sum of A.1 (1) to A.1 (10)] 300000000000711000 85,517,434.47

A.2 Deductions from Core Tier 1 Capital

(1) Common stock treasury shares (for consolidated basis) 365050500000711000

(2) Perpetual and non-cumulative preferred stock treasury shares (for consolidated basis) 365051000000711000

(3) Net unrealized losses on available for sale equity securities purchased 365051500000711000

(4) Unbooked valuation reserves and other capital adjustments based on the latest ROE as approved by the 

Monetary Board

365052000000711000

(5) Total outstanding unsecured credit accommodations, both direct and indirect, to DOSRI, net of allowance 

for credit losses

365052500000711000 10,912,045.31

(6) Total outstanding unsecured loans, other credit accommodations and guarantees granted to subsidiaries 

and affiliates, net of allowance for credit losses

365053000000711000

(7) Deferred tax asset, net of deferred tax liability 
2/ 365053500000711000

(8) Goodwill, net of allowance for losses 
3/ 365054000000711000

(9) Total Deductions 

[Sum of A.2 (1) to A.2 (8)]

365050000000711000 10,912,045.31

A.3 Total Core Tier 1 Capital [A.1 (11) minus A.2 (9)] 395000000000711000 74,605,389.16

A.4 Hybrid Tier 1 Capital

(1) Perpetual preferred stock 310030500000000000

(2) Perpetual unsecured subordinated debt 310031000000000000

(3) Total Hybrid Tier 1 Capital

[Sum of A.4 (1) and A.4 (2)]

300000000000712000 0.00

(4) Eligible Hybrid Tier 1 Capital

[limited to 17.65% of Total Core Tier 1 Capital (Item A.3)]

396000000000712000 0.00

A.5 Total Tier 1 Capital

[Sum of A.3 and A.4 (4)]

300000000000710000 74,605,389.16

Item Nature of Item Account Code Amount



 COOPERATIVE BANK OF BOHOL  [ 05-040385 ]

 As of: December 31, 2022

Item Nature of Item Account Code Amount

B.  Tier 2 (Supplementary) Capital

B.1 Upper Tier 2 Capital

(1) Paid-up perpetual and cumulative preferred stock 305150000000000000

(2) Deposit for perpetual and cumulative preferred stock subscription 305251500000000000

(3)
Paid-up limited life redeemable preferred stock with the replacement requirement upon redemption 220250500000000000 46,100.00

(4)
Deposit for limited life redeemable preferred stock subscription with the replacement requirement upon 

redemption

305252000000000000

(5) Appraisal increment reserve – bank premises, as authorized by the Monetary Board 325050000000000000

(6)
Net unrealized gains on available for sale equity securities purchased (subject to a 55% discount) 320052000500000000

(7)
General loan loss provision [limited to 1.00% of total credit risk-weighted assets computed per Part I, Item 

B.1(d)]

175151000000000000 2,620,498.31

(8)

Unsecured subordinated debt with a minimum original maturity of at least 10 years (subject to a cumulative 

discount factor of 20% per year during the last 5 years to maturity, i.e., 20% if the remaining life is 4 years 

to less than 5 years, 40% if the remaining life is 3 years to less than 4 years, etc.)

295202001000000000

(9) Hybrid Tier 1 Capital (in excess of the max allowable 15% limit of total Tier 1 capital)

[A.4 (3) minus A.4 (4)]

310031500000000000 0.00

(10) Sub-total 

[Sum of B.1 (1) to B.1 (9)]

300000000000721000 2,666,598.31

B.2 Deductions from Upper Tier 2

(1) Perpetual and cumulative preferred stock treasury shares (for consolidated basis) 365100500000721000

(2) Limited life redeemable preferred stock treasury shares with the replacement requirement upon redemption 

(for consolidated basis)

365101000000721000

(3) Sinking fund for redemption of limited life redeemable preferred stock with the replacement requirement 

upon redemption 

365101500000721000

(4) Net losses in fair value adjustment of hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge of available for sale equity 

securities

365102000000721000

(5) Total Deductions [Sum of B.2 (1) to B.2 (4)] 365100000000721000 0.00

B.3 Total Upper Tier 2 Capital [B.1 (10) minus B.2 (5)] 395000000000721000 2,666,598.31

B.4 Lower Tier 2 Capital

(1) Paid-up limited life redeemable preferred stock without the replacement requirement upon redemption 

(subject to a cumulative discount factor of 20% per year during the last 5 years to maturity, i.e., 20% if the 

remaining life is 4 years to less than 5 years, 40% if the remaining life is 3 years to less than 4 years, etc.)

220251000000000000

(2) Deposit for limited life redeemable preferred stock subscription without the replacement requirement upon 

redemption

305252500000000000

(3) Unsecured subordinated debt with a minimum original maturity of at least 5 years (subject to a cumulative 

discount factor of 20% per year during the last 5 years to maturity, i.e., 20% if the remaining life is 4 years 

to less than 5 years, 40% if the remaining life is 3 years to less than 4 years, etc.)

295202002000000000

(4) Sub-total [Sum of B.4 (1) to B.4 (3)] 300000000000722000 0.00



 COOPERATIVE BANK OF BOHOL  [ 05-040385 ]

 As of: December 31, 2022

Item Nature of Item Account Code Amount

B.5 Deductions from Lower Tier 2

(1) Limited life redeemable preferred stock treasury shares without the replacement requirement upon 

redemption (for consolidated basis)

365150500000722000

(2) Sinking fund for redemption of limited life redeemable preferred stock without the replacement requirement 

upon redemption (limited to the balance of redeemable preferred stock after applying the cumulative 

discount factor)

365151000000722000

(3) Total Deductions

[Sum of B.5 (1) and B.5 (2)]

365150000000722000 0.00

B.6 Total Lower Tier 2 Capital [B.4 (4) minus B.5 (3)] 395000000000722000 0.00

B.7 Eligible Amount of Lower Tier 2 Capital (limited to 50% of total Tier 1 capital per Item A.5) 396000000000722000 0.00

B.8 Total Tier 2 Capital [Sum of B.3 and B.7] 300000000000720000 2,666,598.31

B.9 Eligible Amount of Tier 2 Capital (limited to 100% of total Tier 1 capital per Item A.5) 396000000000720000 2,666,598.31

C.  Gross Qualifying Capital

(Sum of A.5 and B.9)

396000000000700000 77,271,987.47

(1) Total Tier 1 Capital (Item A.5) 300000000000710001 74,605,389.16

(2) Total Tier 2 Capital (Item B.9) 396000000000720001 2,666,598.31

D.  Deductions from Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital

(1) Investments in equity of unconsolidated subsidiary RBs and VCCs for TBs, and RBs for Coop Banks after 

deducting related goodwill, if any (for solo basis)

365200500000700000

(2) Investments in other regulatory capital instruments of unconsolidated subsidiary RBs for Coop Banks (for 

solo basis)

365201000000700000

(3) Investments in equity of unconsolidated subsidiary non-financial allied undertakings after deducting related 

goodwill, if any (for both solo and consolidated bases)

365201500000700000

(4) Significant minority investments (20%-50% of voting stock) in banks and other financial allied undertakings 

(for both solo and consolidated bases)

365202000000700000

(5) Reciprocal investments in equity/other regulatory capital instruments of other banks/quasi-

banks/enterprises

365202500000700000

(6) Total Deductions [Sum of D (1) to D (5)] 365200000000700000 0.00

E. Net Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital 

E.1 Net Tier 1 Capital 
4/
 {C (1) minus [D (6) multiply by 50%]} 395000000000710000 74,605,389.16

E.2 Net Tier 2 Capital 
4/
 {C (2) minus [D (6) multiply by 50%]} 395000000000720000 2,666,598.31

F. Total Qualifying Capital [C minus D (6)] 395000000000700000 77,271,987.47

$$$
1/

2/

3/

4/

This shall include those relating to unconsolidated subsidiary RBs and VCCs for TBs, and RBs for Coop Banks (on solo basis) and unconsolidated non-financial allied undertakings (on solo and 

consolidated bases).

The amount to be deducted from Tier 2 capital shall be limited to its balance and any excess thereof shall be deducted from Tier 1 capital.

Provided that a bank shall not use minority interests in the equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries as an avenue for introducing into its capital structure elements that might not otherwise 

qualify as Tier 1 capital or that would, in effect, result in an excessive reliance on preferred stock within Tier 1.

Provided that the conditions to offset under PAS 12 are met and that any excess of deferred tax liability over deferred tax assets (i.e., net deferred tax liability) shall not be added to Tier 1 capital.



 COOPERATIVE BANK OF BOHOL  [ 05-040385 ]

 As of: December 31, 2022

PART III.1.   RISK-WEIGHTED ON-BALANCE SHEET ASSETS (in absolute amounts)

Net Carrying Amount 
1/  Risk    Weight         

(in %) 
Risk Weighted Amount

(1)  (2) (3) = (1) * (2)

   A.    

(1) 105050000000000000 15,808,655.80

(2)

(a) 105150000500000000 14,769,824.57

(b) 115001000500000000

(c) 195201000500000000

(d) 195251000500000000 4,656,349.01

(e) 195301000500000000 3,558,023.24

(f) 195401200500000000

(g) 195402000500000000

(h) 199000000000000000

(3) 108100500000000000

(4) 108101000000000000

(5) 140150507500600000 7,988,000.00

(6) 140150508000600000

(7) 140150508500600000

(8) 140150510500600000

(9) 140150509500600000

(10) 100000000000811100 46,780,852.62 0 0.00

   B.    

(1) 105100000000000000 456,270.64

(2) 108101500000000000

(3) 108102000000000000

(4) 108102500000000000

(5) 108103000000000000

(6) 195401000500000000

(7) 108103500000000000

(8) 108104000000000000

(9) 140150519500600000

Item            Nature of Item

Loans to the extent covered by hold-out on, or assignment of, deposits/deposit substitutes maintained with the lending 

bank

Loans or acceptances under letters of credit (LCs) to the extent covered by margin deposits

Due from BSP

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

Available for sale financial assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets

Unquoted debt securities classified as loans

Loans and receivables  

Claims on or portions of claims guaranteed by or collateralized by securities issued by non-central government public 

sector entities of foreign countries with the highest credit quality 

Loans and receivables arising from repurchase agreements, certificates of assignment/participation with recourse, 

and securities lending and borrowing transactions

Others

Claims on or portions of claims guaranteed by or collateralized by securities issued by central governments and central 

banks of foreign countries with the highest credit quality

Claims on or portions of claims guaranteed by or collateralized by securities issued by multilateral development banks 

with the highest credit quality

Account Code

0% Risk Weight –

Cash on hand (including foreign currency notes and coins on hand acceptable as international reserves)

Peso denominated claims on or portions of claims guaranteed by or collateralized by peso-denominated securities issued 

by the Philippine National Government and the BSP

Interbank call loans

Claims on or portion of claims guaranteed by Philippine incorporated private enterprises, including claims on government 

corporations and MSME not qualifying under highly diversified loan portfolio definition, with the highest credit quality 

Peso denominated special time deposit loans to the extent guaranteed by Industrial Guarantee and Loan Fund (IGLF)

Peso denominated real estate mortgage loans to the extent guaranteed by the Home Guaranty Corporation (HGC)

Peso denominated loans to the extent guaranteed by the Trade and Investment Development Corporation of the 

Philippines (TIDCORP)

Sub-total 

[Sum of A (1) to A (9)]

20% Risk Weight -

Checks and other cash items (including foreign currency checks and other cash items denominated in currencies 

acceptable as international reserves)

Claims on or portions of claims guaranteed by or collateralized by securities issued by local government units (LGUs) with 

the highest credit quality 

Claims on or portions of claims guaranteed by Philippine incorporated banks/quasi-banks with the highest credit quality 

Claims on or portions of claims guaranteed by foreign incorporated banks with the highest credit quality 

Claims on or portion of claims guaranteed by foreign incorporated private enterprises, including claims on government 

corporations, with the highest credit quality 

Loans to small farmer and fisherfolk engaged in palay and/or food production projects/activities to the extent guaranteed 

by the Agricultural Guarantee Fund Pool (AGFP) subject to the conditions enumerated in Circular No. 713 dated 14 

February 2011



 COOPERATIVE BANK OF BOHOL  [ 05-040385 ]

 As of: December 31, 2022

Net Carrying Amount 
1/  Risk    Weight         

(in %) 
Risk Weighted Amount

(1)  (2) (3) = (1) * (2)

Item            Nature of Item Account Code

(10) 140150520000600000

(11)
100000000000811200 456,270.64 20 91,254.13

   C.    

(1) 140150004000100000 7,928,999.73

(2) 108104501500000000

(3) 100000000000811300 7,928,999.73 50 3,964,499.87

   D.    

(1) 140180500000000000  75 0.00

   E.    

(1) 140150004000000000 676,262.85  100 676,262.85

   F.    

(1) 142001000000000000 17,342,058.37  150 26,013,087.56

(2) 195501201500000000 12,307,057.91  150 18,460,586.87

   G.    

(1)

(a) 100000000000000000 579,310,457.90

(b) 175150000000000000 2,620,498.31

(c) 100050000000811000 85,491,502.12

(d) 195000500000811000 496,439,454.09

 (2) 

(a) 165500500000811000 10,912,045.31

(b) 165501000000811000 0.00

(c) 165501500000811000 0.00

(d) 165502000000811000 0.00

Loans to individuals for housing purpose, fully secured by first mortgage on residential property that is or will be occupied 

by the borrower, which are not classified as non-performing

Sub-total [Sum of B (1) to B (10)]

50% Risk Weight -

100 % Risk Weight –

Other Assets

Total Assets per Balance Sheet

Deferred tax asset, net of deferred tax liability 

[refer to Part II. Item A.2 (7)]

Goodwill, net of allowance for losses 

[refer to Part II. Item A.2 (8)]

75% Risk Weight –

Qualified micro, small and medium enterprise (MSME) loan portfolio

100% Risk Weight –

Sub-total 

[Sum of G(1)(a) and G(1)(b) minus G(1)(c)]

Deductions from Other Assets

Total outstanding unsecured credit accommodations, both direct and indirect, to DOSRI, net of allowance for credit 

losses 

[refer to Part II. Item A.2 (5)]

Total outstanding unsecured loans, other credit accommodations and guarantees granted to subsidiaries and 

affiliates, net of allowance for credit losses 

[refer to Part II. Item A.2 (6)]

Non-performing loans to individuals for housing purpose, fully secured by first mortgage on residential property that is or 

will be occupied by the borrower.

150% Risk Weight –

All non-performing loans (except non-performing loans to individuals for housing purpose, fully secured by first mortgage 

on residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower), all non-performing sales contract receivables, and all 

non-performing debt securities

Real and other properties acquired and Non-current assets held for sale, net of allowance for losses 

Loans to performing MSME loans to the extent guaranteed by a Credit Surety Fund (CSF) Cooperative, subject to the 

conditions prescribed under Appendix 63c of the MORB

Foreign currency denominated claims on or portions of claims guaranteed by or collateralized by foreign currency 

denominated securities issued by the Philippine National Government & the BSP.

Sub-total [Sum of C(1) to C(2)]

General Loan Loss Provisions per Balance Sheet

Total Exposures excluding Other Assets [Sum of A(10), B(11), C(3), D(1), E(1), F(1) and F(2)]



 COOPERATIVE BANK OF BOHOL  [ 05-040385 ]

 As of: December 31, 2022

Net Carrying Amount 
1/  Risk    Weight         

(in %) 
Risk Weighted Amount

(1)  (2) (3) = (1) * (2)

Item            Nature of Item Account Code

(e) 165502500000811000 0.00

(f) 165503000000811000 0.00

(g) 165503500000811000 0.00

(h) 165504000000811000 0.00

(i) 165504500000811000 0.00

(j) 165505000000811000 0.00

(k) 165505500000811000 0.00

(l) 165506000000811000

(m) 165506500000811000

(n) 165507000000811000

(o) 165500000000811000 10,912,045.31

 (3) 195000000000811000 485,527,408.78  100 485,527,408.78

   H.    100000000000811000 534,733,100.04

$$$
1/

Significant minority investments (20%-50% of voting stock) in banks and other financial allied undertakings (for both 

solo and consolidated bases) 

[refer to Part II. Item D (4)]

Investment in equity of unconsolidated subsidiary RBs and VCCs for TBs, and RBs for Coop Banks, after deducting 

related goodwill, if any (for solo basis) 

[refer to Part II. Item D (1)]

Sinking fund for redemption of limited life redeemable preferred stock with the replacement requirement upon 

redemption 

[refer to Part II. Item B.2 (3)]

Sinking fund for redemption of limited life redeemable preferred stock without the replacement requirement upon 

redemption (limited to the balance of redeemable preferred stock after applying the cumulative discount factor) 

[refer to Part II. Item B.5 (2)]

TOTAL RISK-WEIGHTED ON-BALANCE SHEET ASSETS [Sum of A(10), B(11), C(3), D(1), E(1), F(1), F(2) and G(3) ]

Investment in equity of subsidiary non-financial allied undertakings, after deducting related goodwill, if any (for both 

solo and consolidated bases) 

[refer to Part II. Item D (3)]

Investments in other regulatory capital instruments of unconsolidated RBs for Coop Banks (for solo basis) 

[refer to Part II. Item D (2)]

This shall refer to the outstanding balance of the account inclusive of unamortized discount/(premium) and accumulated market gains/(losses), and net of allowance for credit losses, except that for 

available for sale debt securities, any accumulated market gains/(losses) shall be deducted/added back.

Reciprocal investments in equity/other regulatory capital instruments of other banks/quasi-banks/enterprises 

[refer to Part II. Item D (5)]

Net accumulated market gains/(losses) on available for sale debt securities purchased

Financial Assets Held for Trading

Derivatives with Positive Fair Value Held for Hedging

Total Deductions 

[Sum of G(2)(a) to G(2)(n)]

Net Other Assets 

[G (1)(d) minus G (2)(o)] 



 COOPERATIVE BANK OF BOHOL  [ 05-040385 ]

 As of: December 31, 2022

PART III.2  RISK-WEIGHTED OFF-BALANCE SHEET ASSETS (in absolute amounts)

0% 20% 75% 100%

(1)  (2) (3) =(1)*(2) (4) (5) (6) (7) (Sum of 4 to 7)

A.

(1) 405000000000000000 100% 0.00

(2) 410050500000000000 100% 0.00

(3) 410051000000000000 100% 0.000

(4) 403000000000000000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(5) 403000000000812000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

B.

(1) 410100500000000000 50% 0.00

(2) 410101000000000000 50% 0.000

(3) 425200000000000000 50% 0.00

(4) 408000000000000000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(5) 408000000000812000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Guarantees issued other than shipside bonds/airway bills

Financial standby letters of credit - domestic (net of margin deposit)

Item Nature of item

Credit Equivalent 

Amount 

Distribution of Credit Equivalent Amount According to Risk Weights  
1/

Total

Direct credit substitutes (.e.g. general guarantees of indebtedness and acceptances)

Account Code
Seq. 

No.

Notional Principal 

Amount 

 Credit 

Conv. 

Factor 

(CCF) 

Financial standby letters of credit - foreign (net of margin deposit)

Sub-total 

[Sum of A (1) to A (3)]

Risk-weighted amount 

[ A(4) x applicable risk weight]

Transaction-related contingencies  (e.g., performance bonds, bid bonds, warrantees and 

stand-by LCs related to particular transactions)

Performance Standby LCs – domestic (net of margin deposit) established as a 

guarantee that a business transaction will be performed

Performance Standby LCs – foreign (net of margin deposit) established as a 

guarantee that a business transaction will be performed

Other Commitments e.g. formal standby facilities and credit lines with maturity of 

more than one year 

Sub-total 

[Sum of B (1) to B (3)]

Risk-weighted amount 

[ B (4) x applicable risk weight]



 COOPERATIVE BANK OF BOHOL  [ 05-040385 ]

 As of: December 31, 2022

0% 20% 75% 100%

(1)  (2) (3) =(1)*(2) (4) (5) (6) (7) (Sum of 4 to 7)

Item Nature of item

Credit Equivalent 

Amount 

Distribution of Credit Equivalent Amount According to Risk Weights  
1/

Total
Account Code

Seq. 

No.

Notional Principal 

Amount 

 Credit 

Conv. 

Factor 

(CCF) 

C.

(1) 420100000000000000 20% 0.00

(2) 420050000000000000 20% 0.00

(3) 415050500000000000 20% 0.00

(4) 415051000000000000 20% 0.000

(5) 415100500000000000 20% 0.00

(6) 415101000000000000 20% 0.000

(7) 415150500000000000 20% 0.00

(8) 415151000000000000 20% 0.000

(9) 415200500000000000 20% 0.00

(10) 415201000000000000 20% 0.000

(11) 425250000000000000 20% 0.00

(12) 412000000000000000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(13) 412000000000812000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

D.

(1) 425150000000000000 0%

Trade related guarantees  – shipside bonds/airway bills

Trade related guarantees  – LCs confirmed

Trade-related contingencies arising from movement of goods (e.g., documentary credits 

collateralized by the underlying shipments) and commitments with an original maturity of 

up to one (1) year

Risk-weighted amount 

[ C (12) x applicable risk weight]

Other commitments which can be unconditionally cancelled at any time by the bank 

without prior notice

Sight LCs - domestic (net of margin deposit)

Sight LCs - foreign (net of margin deposit)

Usance LCs - domestic (net of margin deposit)

Usance LCs - foreign (net of margin deposit)

Deferred LCs - domestic (net of margin deposit)

Deferred LCs - foreign (net of margin deposit)

Revolving LCs - domestic (net of margin deposit) arising from movement of goods 

and/or services

Revolving LCs - foreign (net of margin deposit) arising from movement of goods 

and/or services

Other commitments with an original maturity of up to 1 year

Sub-total 

[Sum of C (1) to C (11)]

Credit card lines



 COOPERATIVE BANK OF BOHOL  [ 05-040385 ]

 As of: December 31, 2022

0% 20% 75% 100%

(1)  (2) (3) =(1)*(2) (4) (5) (6) (7) (Sum of 4 to 7)

Item Nature of item

Credit Equivalent 

Amount 

Distribution of Credit Equivalent Amount According to Risk Weights  
1/

Total
Account Code

Seq. 

No.

Notional Principal 

Amount 

 Credit 

Conv. 

Factor 

(CCF) 

E.

(1) 495050000000000000 0%

(2) 495100000000000000 0%

(3) 495150000000000000 0%

(4) 495200000000000000 0%

(5) 495250000000000000 0%

(6) 495260000000000000 0%

(7) 495350000000000000 0%

(8) 495400000000000000 0%

(9) 495950000000000000 _a 0.00 0%

- _ 495950000000000000 1 0%

- $

$$$

(10) 495000000000000000 0.00

F. 400000000000000000 0.00

G. 400000000000812000 0.00

$$$
1/

Trust department accounts

Items held for safekeeping/custodianship

Items not involving credit risk

Late deposits/payments received

Inward bills for collection

Outward bills for collection

Travelers’ checks unsold

Assign the appropriate risk weight according to the obligor, or if relevant, the qualified guarantor or the nature of the collateral.

Items held as collaterals

Deficiency claims receivable

Total Notional Principal Amount

[Sum of A (4), B (4), C (12), D (1) , E (10)]

TOTAL RISK-WEIGHTED OFF-BALANCE SHEET ASSETS [Sum of A (5), B (5) and C 

(13)] 

Others (Please specify)

Sub-total

[Sum of E (1) to E (9)]





 COOPERATIVE BANK OF BOHOL  [ 05-040385 ]

 As of: December 31, 2022

2,022.000

PART IV.  OPERATIONAL RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS (in absolute amounts) 0.120

Gross Income

A.1 505050000000000000 55,985,129.62 54,138,513.37 65,687,443.52

A.2 605100000000000000 11,483,790.41 12,080,489.14 12,695,842.49

A.3 505000000000000000 44,501,339.21 42,058,024.23 52,991,601.03

B.1 510050000000000000

B.2 510100000000000000

B.3 510150000000000000

B.4 510200000000000000

B.5 510250000000000000 (2,415.75) (122,976.17) 91,145.61

B.6 510350000000000000

B.7 510450000000000000 3,677,518.08 5,388,952.89 4,235,761.38

B.8 510000000000000000 3,675,102.33 5,265,976.72 4,326,906.99

500000000000000000 48,176,441.54 47,324,000.95 57,318,508.02 50,939,650.17

990000000000830000 6,112,758.02

996000000000830000 7,640,947.53

195000000000830000 76,409,475.26

$$$
1/

Interest Income

Interest Expense

Year 2 Last Year Average 
1/ 

A.  Net interest income

Item Nature of Item Account Code
Year 3

Net Profit/loss on Foreign Exchange

Net Gain/loss on Fair Value Adjustment in Hedge Accounting

Sub-total 

(A.1 minus A.2)

B.  Other non-interest income

Dividend Income

Fees and Commissions Income

Net Gain/loss on Financial Assets and Liabilities Held for 

Trading

Net Gain/loss on Financial Assets and Liabilities Designated 

at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

When calculating the average, include only the positive annual gross income; hence, figures for any year in which annual gross income is negative or zero should be excluded from both 

the numerator and denominator.

Other Income 

Sub-total 

(Sum of B.1 to B.7)

C.   Gross Income 

      (Sum of A.3 and B.8) 

D.   Capital Charge 

       [C (average) multiply by Capital 

       Charge Factor of 12% ]

E.    Adjusted Capital Charge

      (D multiply by 125%)

F.   TOTAL OPERATIONAL RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS

      (E multiply by 10)


